1079124, 3:25 PM BoardDocs® PL

{3

ONSTED

COMUUNITY SCHODLS

Book Policy #anual

Section Vol,39, No. 1 - Septembar 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions
Thle Vol, 39, No. 1 - September 2024 - Ml OVERVIEW

Code 01 - OVERVIEW

Status

MAGSE | POLICY UPDATE SERVICE

MICHIGAN AssoCIATION | pROVIDED BY NEOLA, INC.

MI LOCAL UPDATE OVERVIEW AND COMMENTS

VOLUME 39 NUMBER 1
SEPTEMBER 2024

MASB Policy Services Provided by Neola

Effective policles are at the core of successful school district governance. Malntaining pollcles that reflect both local oversight and ever-
thanging state and federal [aws Is an enormous task, School board members can rely on the MASB-Neols Partnership to keep thelr policy
manuals up-to-date. Under this partnership, Neola provides comprehensive pollcy services for MASE members on behalf of MASB. Working
together, MASB and Neola preduce unlform school policles and guldetines to better serve all Michigan school districts.

Policy Development and Updating

Neola, with assistance from MASB If and when needed, will work with the board, administrators, and committee(s) to develop a
comprehensive policy manual that suits your district's needs. Each manual Is based on templates that have been thoughtfully prepared, then
vetted by Neola’s outslde counsel and MASB' lagal counsel. These templates are customized to the dlstrict's unique circumstances through
cholces made by the board and administrative team. The bylaws, policies, and administrative rules/regulations are a unique collection
assembled by educators and attorneys. The end result wiil be & policy manual that's in {ine with faw and court decislons containing iegal
citations, footnoted reference material, and will be searchable by keyword or phrase,

OVERVIEW AND COMMENTS

All production-related materials and questions should be directed to the Production Office at 632 Main Street, Coshocton, Ohio 43812
{phone: 800-407-5815 or 740-622-5341, e-mall: praduction@neocla.com). Billing questions should be directed to the Stow Office at 3914
Clock Polnte Trall, Sulte 103, Stow, Ohlo 44224 (phone 330-926-0514, e-mall: accounts@neola.com).

Please do niot retype Neola materlals before returning them for processing. We prefer to have the original materlals returned after you have
marked them indicating which changes and addftions you choose to have/not have for your District, If & District chooses nok to adopt a
policy or an administrative guldeline, the District Is still obligated to follow applicable Federal and State laws relating to that section,

The proposed new, revised, and replacement polictes, administrative guldelines, and forms included In this update have been thoughtfully
prepared and reviewed by Neola's legal counsel for statutory comptiance, If you make changes or substitute in Its entirety policies or other
materials of your own drafting, those materials should be reviewed by your {egal counsel to verify compliance, Neola does not review
District-specific edits to update materials or District-specific policies for statutory compliance.

If a pollcy or guideline is marked as a revislon, the changes have been marked In bold/green font (to add material) and crossed out/red font
{to delete material). As you review a revised policy or guideline, you may choose to accept one {1), many, or all of the changes provided. If
a policy or guldeline Is marked as a replacement, that means there have been enough changes made that justify a complete, clean
replacement copy. As you review a replacement policy or guldeline, you should also check the materials you have In your currant policy or
guideline to see iF there Is some District/other specific wording you want to be included In the replacement policy. If so, any wording from
the current policy should be added using “Track Changes™ in the BoardDocs platform In the replacement policy or guideline before returning

it electronleaily to the Preduction Office for processing.

113

hitne* linn hnarddnere ramimlinnedRaard nefiPrivala?ananfianindt




1019724, 3.25 PM BoardDocs® PL

If the District alters language and adds it to & policy template or deletes content that Is not marked as a cholce in the pollcy template, then
these actions wili constltute District-specific edits,

Policies that are to ba removed from the policy manual require Board actlon to resclnd the policy,

As the Update "season” gets underway, Neola offers some suggestions for accessing the comprehensive policy services through your Neola
Assoclate, While “In-person” consultation sesslons are the preferred method for Neofa Update “visits”, the means by which you and your
Neola assoclate accomplish this review should be mutually determined based on availabllity and level of comfort with the consultation
process. Overall, health and safety are the primary concerns, Your Neola associate will be in contact with you soon to discuss thase options
with you and to schedule an appointment to review thls update and ensure you are current on this and previous updates, Please consider

the following options:

A. schedule an appolntment dateftime to review the update materfals during an In-person conference;

B. schadule/reschedule update or drafting visits for a later time;

C. schedule an appointment dateftime to review the update materials via a virtual meeting such as Google Meat or other electronic
options; or

D. schedule ah appolntment date/time to review the update materials in a telephone conference,

If you are not an adminlstrative guldelines client, you did not recelve those materials in this packet. Contact your Assoclate for more
information about becoming an administrative guidelines client,

Processing Update Materials

1f you will be making changes to these Update documents electronicaily, use the “Track Changes” editing tool In the BoardBocs platform to
mark the Neola materlals Indicating which of tha proposed revisions and additions you choose to Include or not include for your District, or
to make additiona! edits, bafore returning them electronically for processing, Be sure to leave the “track changes” and marked up verslon as

the ane you submit to the Production office In Coshocton, Ohie.

District-Specific Material

If the District chooses during any step of the Update process te incorporate District-specific material Into a new policy or guldeline that has
been proposed, or to Insert District-specific material into a current policy or guideline for which revisions have been proposed In an update
Issued by Neola, then the District agrees to hold Neela harmless for those District-specific edits and acknowledges that Neola’s warranty for
iegal challenges to that District-speclfic language In that policy or guideline will not be in effect, In additlon, Neola retains ownership of the
text from the original pollcy template that remalins in a palicy to which District-specific materlal has been added. District-specific materlals

Include the followling:

A. materlals from the District’s existing materials that the District requests be incorporated during the drafting process;
B. new materials that the District develops In thelr entlrety and exclusive of Neola; and

C. revislons or deletions that substantively depart from Neofa's templates.,

Further, Neo'a does not recommend the use or incorporation of District-specific materlals, Neola will, at the request of the District,
tncorparate District-specific materiais Into the licensed materials, with the implicit understanding that the District bears all risks associated
with the Distrlet’s declsfon to request that such District-specific materlals be incorporated. Neola reserves the right, but Is not obligated, to

advise the District to seek its own legal review of Dlstrict-specific materlals.

FY 2023-24 Thresholds for Compatitive Bids, Value of Awards, and Gifts

The Michigan Department of Education {MDE) provides updated Information on statutory requirements that determine thresholds for
competitive bids and value of awards and gifts, The fiscal year 2023-24 base for M.C.L.s 380.623a, 380.1267, and 380,1274 Is 429,572,
There are changes to the Iimits on the value of awards given by an ISD to an employee, volunteer, or pupll, as well as the value above which
an 1SD adminlstrator may not accept a gift from a vendor or potential vendor. The fiscal year 2023-24 upper Hmit (M.C.1, 380.634) for

awards {s $169 and the cap for glfts is $73.
Notice Regarding Legal Accuracy

Neola is vigilant In providing policy language to cllents that has been vetted for legal accuracy by outside legal counsel. Should questions
arise as to the legal compliance or accuracy of Neola's materials, IE is our expectation that Neola's counsel would have the opportunity to
assist In the resolutlon of such a clalm. Please notify the Neola corporate office If an Issue arises In which such a review or assistance Is

necessary.

Policies in this update have been reviewed by Varnum, LLP (Grand Raplds, MI) for consistency with Federal and State law,

LEGAL ALERTS

Included with this update are five (5) legal alerts, These include:

03 - Legatl Alert - Sexual Assault/Harassment Information for the 2024-25 Academic Year
04 - Legal AMert - Current Status of Law Regarding Transgender Students’ Use of Bathrooms and Locker Raoms

05 - Legat Alert - Highlighted Toplcs (Senate Bl 518)

htlns:fan hoarddnes.com/mifanstBoard.nsf/Privale?open&loalndt

2/3




10/8/24, 3:25 PM BoardDocs® PL.

POLICIES
Policy 2264 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex In Education Programs or Activities (Technical
Correction)

An Instance of "notice of discriminatlon® has been changed to "notice of nondiscrimination.”

Policy 3120.08 ~ Employment of Personnel for Co-Curricular/Extra-Curricular Activities {Revised)

public Act 37 makes It necessary to reguire any Individual serving as a high school athietic coach to hold a valid certification In CPR and the
use of an AED beginning with the 2025-2026 school year. This policy has been revised to refiect this forthcoming requirement,

Policy 5330.02 - Opioid Antagonists (Revised)

This policy has been revised to reference Narcan, to make it easler to find in searches of this manual, and miscellaneous
grammar/punctuation changes,

Pollcy 5340 - Student Accidents (Revised)

Public Act 36 makes it necessary to develop a cardiac response plan. This pollcy has been revised to reflect this requirement.

Policy 5500 - Student Conduct (Revised)

This policy has been revised to Include provisfons addressing use of academic honesty and optionat provisfons addressing use of artificial
Intelligence (AI).

Policy 7440.03 - Sma}ll Unmanned Alrcraft Systems (Technical Correction)

This template has been updated to cross-reference the appropriate administrative guideline and miscellaneous corrections to
grammar/punctuation.

Policy 7540.09 - Artificial Intelllgence ('AL") (New)

This policy has been added to address the use of artificlal intelligence (A} by district staff and students, We anticipate that this policy will
evolve as this too] evolves,

Policy 8321 - Criminal Justice Information Security (Non-Criminat Justice Agency), {Revised)

This policy has been revised to reflect the updated requirements of the Michigan State Police (MSP),

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

AG 5605A - Disciplining Students With Disabilities (IDEA Eligible) (Revised)

This guideline has been revised to reflect that student removal to an alternative education setting for not more than forty-five (45) school
days and misc. granmar/punctuation correctlons,

AG B452 - Use of Automated External Defibriliators (AED) (Technical Correction)

Technical correction to include a cross-reference to Board Polley 3120.08 - Employment of Personnel for Go-Currlcular/Extra-Currlcutar
Activities and miscellaneous corrections to grammar/punctuation,

COMMENTS

Reviewing Board Minutes

A feature of your subscription to the Update Seirvice is the review of your District’s Board minutes to identify actions that result in new policy
of revision to existing policy. If such action has been taken and coples of the related materials have not been submitted to the Coshocton
Office, the District will be contacted and addltional information regarding the acton wili be requested, Please take advantage of this valuable

service by sending coples of your Board minutes to the Coshocton Office for review.

hitns:foo.boarddoos.com/mifensBoard.ns#/Private Topan&logint 33



1018724, 3:26 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMUNITY SCHODLS

Book Policy Manual

Section Vol.39, No, 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions
Title Vol, 39, No, 1 - September 2024 MI Policy Disposition Sheet
Cotle 02 - Policy Dispaosition Sheet

Status

DISPOSITION OF NEW/REVISED/REPLACEMENT
POLICIES FOR BOARD ADOPTION

Vol, 39, No, 1 -~ September 2024

Coding for District-Specific Edits

*¥1 = drafted by District staff
*2 = If the material was a work for hire, that is, material the District pald someone efse to develop but from whom the

District purchased the rights to publish
¥3 = If the material Is copyrighted to someone else from whom the District has secured permission to publish the material

{No code Is needed for accepting Neola's vetted material)

Date District-Speciflc Edits Date Rejected
Adopted | (1, 2, or 3) :| Pate Tabled

Policy Number

po3120.08

p05330.02

po5340

po5500

po7440.03

po7540,09 NEW

p0o8321

hllps:ffgo.boarddocs,com/mionstBoard.nsf/Private Popen&iogint!

11



10/9/24, 3:26 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
Book Policy Manual
Section Vol.39, No. 1 - September 2024 - Ml Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FORCO-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR
ACTIVITIES
Code p03120.08 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted May 19, 2003

Revised Policy - Vol, 39, No, 1

3126.08 - EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FOR CO-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

The Board of Education may find It necessary to employ, on a part-time basis, coaches or activity sponsors who are not
members of the professional staff, Such part-time employees:

A, may be members of the District's support staff, or
B, may be individuals from the community or nearby areas,
The Board authorizes the Superintendent to recommend candidates for employment by the Board,

The Superintendent shall establish administrative guidelines to ensure that each person employed as a coach or actlvity
sponsor has the appropriate qualifications, has been properly Interviewed, and signs an employment contract which
includes the conditions of employment, compensation arrangements, and contract termination procedures,

Appropriate quallfications shall, at a minimum, include any requirements established by the State, and may also Include
ahy program specific tralning or certification as determined by the Superintendent. Starting with the 2025-2026 school
year, an Individual hired to serve at the high school as an athletic coach shali have a valid certification in cardiopulmonary
resuscitation and use of an automated external defibrillator Issued by the American Red Cross, American Heart Association,
or a comparable organization or institution approved by the Michigan Department of Education ;-such-as-cardie-pulmenary

resuseltaor-andfer-frstald:

© Neola 202426032




10/9/24, 3:26 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMURITY SCHOOLS
Book Policy Manual
Sectlon Vol.39, No. 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revislons
Title Copy of EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FORCG-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR
ACTIVITIES
Code po3120,08 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted May 19, 2003

Revised Policy - Vol. 39, No. 1

3120.08 - EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FOR CO-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

The Board of Education may find it necessary to employ, on a part-time basls, coaches or activity sponsors who are not
members of the professional staff, Such part-time employees:

A. may be members of the District's support staff, or
B. may be individuals from the community or nearby areas.
The Board authorizes the Superintendent to recommend candidates for employment by the Board,

The Superintendent shall establish administrative guidelines to ensure that each person employed as a coach or activity
sponsor has the appropriate qualifications, has been propetly Intervlewed, and signs an employment contract which
inciudes the conditlons of employment, compensation arrangements, and contract termination procedures,

Appropriate gualifications shall, at a minimum, Include any requirements establishied by the State, and may also include
any program specific tralning or certification as determined by the Superintendent. Starting with the 2025-2026 school
year, an individua! hired to serve at the high school as an athletic coach shall have a valid certification in cardiopulmonary
resuscitation and use of an automated external defibrillator issued by the American Red Cross, American Heart Assoclation,
or a comparable organization or institution approved by the Michigan Depariment of Education.;steh-as-cardlo-pulmenary

resuseitation-andfor-frstaid:

® Neola 202420063




10/8/24, 3:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

/‘4‘
ONSTED

COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

Book Policy Manual

Section Vol.39, No. 1 - September 2024 - Mi Update Board Revisions
Title Vol, 39, No. 1 - September 2024 Revised OPIOID ANTAGONISTS
Code p05330.02 - CH/IR 20241008 - NOT A CURRENT POLICY

Status

Revised Policy ~ Vol, 39, No. 1

5330.02 - OPIOID ANTAGONISTS

The Board has determined that it Is In the best Interests of its students and employees to have opleld antagonists available
to be administered, If necessary, by appropriately tralned personnel, Therefore, the Board adapts this policy to govern the
handling and administration of opiold antagonists consistent with the following processes, procedures, and limitatlons.

The District shall purchase oploid antagonlists and distribute the opiold antagonists to an employee or agent of the District
who has been tralned In the administration of that oplold antagonist. An opiold antagonlst is naloxone hydrochioride,
Narcan, or any other similarly acting and equally safe drug approved by the U.S, Food and Drug Administration for the

treatment of drug overdose.

A District employee or agent may possess an oplold antagonist distributed to that employee or agent and may administer
that oploid antagonlst to an Individual only if both of the following apply:

A. The employee or agent has been tralned in the proper adminlstration of that oplold antagonist,

B. The employee or agent has reason to believe that the Individual Is experfencing an oplold-related overdose.

X I [OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]

Each schoot! In the District shali have at least (X ) two (2) (&) [END OF OPTION] employees who have heen
tralned In the appropriate use and administration of an aploid antagonist. The tralning shall be done in a manner that has
bean approved by { X) a licensed registered professional nurse [END OF OPTION]. Only an
approptiately trained school employee or agent may possess and adminlster an opiold antagonist,

Fach school In the District shall possess at least one {1} package of an opioid antagonist on site. The oplold antagonist may
be administered by a tralned schoc! employee or agent to a student or other individuat on school grounds who 1s belleved

to be having an oplold-related overdose,

[END OF OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]

An oplold-related overdose is a condition, including, but not limited te, extreme physlcal lliness, decreased level of
consclousness, resplratory depression, coma, or death, that results from the consumption or use of an opiold or another
substance with which an opiold was combined or that a reasonable person would believe to be an oploid-related overdose

that requires medical asslstance.

Any scheol parsonnel who have reason to believe that a student is having an oplold-related overdose must call 911.

[SELECT ANY OR NONE OF THE FOLLOWING OPTIONS]

hilmnitlrn hmereddnnn namdml lan ot naed waf0 mtad mnnn @ lanind) 112




10/8/24, 3:27 PM Baardocs® PL

[X ] Any person who administers an oplold antagonist to a student shail promptly notify the { X} student’s
parent/guardian, (X ) The School Nurse , who shall be responsible for promptly notifylng

the student’s parent/guardian that an injection has been administered.

[} Fhe-person-who-petifies-the-student'sparent/guardianmust encourage-the-parent-or-guordinrte-seeltreatment-forthe
stadent-fromasubstance tse-diserder-serdices-prograin:

[x ] It shall be the responsibllity of the School Nurse [insert person or position] to be sure that the
supply of opiold antagonists is maintained at the appropriate level and that they have not expired. The School
Nurse shall also be respansible for coordinating the tratning of District employees to administer the oploid
antagonlsts and to maintain the list of employees authorized to administer the antagonists,

[x ] The District's training regarding, administration of, and the maintenance and storage of oploid antagonists shall be
consistent with PolicyP& 5330, Administrative Guldelline 5330,A6-5336 and the Michigan Departmernt of Education's

medication administration guidelines, as amended.
{END OF OPTIONS]

© Neola 20242839

Legal Administration of Opioid Antagonists Act



10/8124, 3:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMIUHITY SCHOOLS
Book Policy Manual
Sectlon Vol.39, No. 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions
Title Vol, 39, No. 1 - September 2024 Revised OPIOID ANTAGONISTS
Code pe5330.02 - CH/IR 20241008 - NOT A CURRENT POLICY
Status

Revised Policy - Vol. 39, No. 1

5330.02 - OPIOID ANTAGONISTS

The Board has determined that it Is In the best interests of its students and employees to have oplold antagonists avallable
to be administered, If necessary, by appropriately tratned personnel, Therefore, the Board adopts this pelicy to govern the
handiing and administration of oplold antagonists consistent with the following processes, pracedures, and limitations,

The District shall purchase oplold antagonlsts and distribute the oploid antagonists to an employee or agent of the District
who has been trained in the adminlstration of that epiold antagonlst. An oploid antagonlst Is naloxone hydrochloride,
Narcan, or any other similarly acting and equally safe drug approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration for the

treatment of drug overdose.

A District employee or agent may possess an oploid antagontst distributed te that employee or agent and may administer
that oplold antagonist to an individual only if both of the following apply:

A. The employee or agent has been tralned In the proper administration of that oploid antagonist.

B, The employee or agent has reason to believe that the Individual Is experiencing an oploid-refated overdose.

X ] [OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]

Each school in the District shall have at feast (X ) two (2) £ [END OF OPTION] employees who have been
trained In the appropriate use and administration of an oplold antagonist. The training shall be done in a manner that has

been approved by ( X) a licensed registered professional nurse {5 [END OF OPTION]. Only an
appropriately trained school employee or agent may possess and administer an oplold antagonist.

Each schoo! in the District shall possess at least one (1) package of an oploid antagonist on site. The oplold antagonist may
be administered by a tralned school employee or agent to a student or other Individual on school grounds who is belleved

to be having an oploid-related overdose,

[END OF OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]

An oplold-related overdose Is a condition, Including, but not limited to, extreme physieal {iiness, decreased feve! of
consclousness, respiratory depression, coma, or death, that results from the consumption or use of an oploid or another
substance with which an aplold was combined or that a reasonable person would believe to be an oploid-related overdose

that requires medical asslstance,

Any school personnel who have reason to believe that a student is having an oplold-related overdose must call 911.

[SELECT ANY OR NONE OF THE FOLLOWING OPTIONS]



10/9/24, 3:27 PM

BoardDocs® PL

[X 1 Any person who administers an oploid antagonist to a student shall promptly notify the ( X) student’s
parent/guardian, (X ) The School Nurse , who shall be responsible for promptly notifying

the student’s parent/guardian that an injection has been administered.

1+ Fhe-personwhe-noetiflesthe-student's parentfguardian-must-epsodrage-the parent-er-guardian-to-secktreatmentfor-the
student-frem-a-substaneedse-disorder-servicesprogram:

[x ] It shall be the responsibility of the School Nurse [Insert person or posliion] to be sure that the
supply of oplold antagonists is maintained at the appropriate level and that they have not expired. The School
Nurse shall also be responsible for coordinating the training of District employees to administer the oploid

antagonists and to maintaln the Jist of employees authorized to administer the antagonists.

[x ] The District's training regarding, administration of, and the maintenance and storage of oploid antagonists shall be
consistent with PolicyP® 5330, Administrative Guideline 5330,A6-5336 and the Michlgan Department of Education’s

medication administration guidelines, as amended,
[END OF OPTIONS]

® Neola 20242645

Legal Administration of Oploid Antagonists Act



10/9/24, 3:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMURHY SEHOOLS
Book Policy Manual
Section Vol.39, No. 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions
Title Capy of STUDENT ACCIDENTS
Code po5340 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted May 19, 2003

Revised Policy - Vol, 39, No. 1

5340 - STUDENT ACCIDENTS

The Board of Education belleves that school personnel have certaln responsiblilties in case of accldents which aceur In
school, Sald responsibilities extend to the administration of first ald by persons trained to do so, summoning of medical
assistance, notification of administration personnel, notification of parents, and the filing of accident reports.

Employees should administer first aid within the limits of thelr knowledge of recommended practices. All employees should
make an effort to increase their understanding of the proper steps to be taken In the event of an accldent.

Beginning with the 2025-2026 schoo! year, the Board shall develop a cardiac response plan. This plan will include utilizing

employees to respond to sudden cardlac arrests or other life-threatening emergencles that may occur on school campuses
during school hours or at school-sponsored events including, but not limited to, school-sponsored athletic events.

The-Superintepdentmoy-provide-feran-in-service-program-on-first-ald-and-CRR-procedures:

The administrator In charge must submlit an accident report to the Superintendent on all accidents,

© Neola 2024286063




10/9/24, 3:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMURIY SCHOOLS

Book Policy Manual

Section Vol.39, No, 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of STUDENT CONDUCT

Code po5500 - CH/IR 20241008

Status

Adopted May 19, 2003

Revised Policy - Vol, 39, No. 1

55060 - STUDENT CONDUCT

Respect for faw and for those persons in authority shajl be expected of all students, This includes conformity to school rules
as well as general provisions of law regarding minors. Respect for the rights of others, conslderation of their privileges, and

cooperative citizenship shall alse be expected of all membars of the school community.

Respect for real and personal property; pride in one's work; achievement within the range of one's ability; and exemplary
personal standards of courtesy, decency, and honesty should be maintained In the schools of this Dlstrict.

Academic Honesty

The Board values honesty and expects integrity in the District’s students. Violating academic honesty expectations erodes
the trust between teachers and students as weli as compromises the academic standing of other students. So that each
student learns the skills being taught and Is judged solely on their own merits, the Board prohibits any student from
presenting someone else’s work as thelr own, using artificlal intelligence platforms in place of one's own work, providing

unauthorized assistance to another student, and cheating in any manner.
All school work submitted for the purpose of meeting course requirements must be the indlvidual student’s original work or

the original work of a group of students for group profects. It is prohibited for any student to unfairly advance their own
academic performance or that of any other student. Likewise, no student may intentionally limit or impede the academic

performance or intellectual pursuits of other students,
Academic dishonesty includes, but is not limited to:
A, plagiarism (of ideas, work, research, speech, art, music, etc.);

B. forgery of another's work;

C. presenting the results that are the product of an artificial intelligence {Al) platform as one’s own where the use of Al
was not specifically allowed by the teacher as part of the assignment;

D, downloading or copying information from other sourcaes and presenting it as one’s own;

E. using language translation work of someone else or using technology when the expectation is doing one'’s own
translation;

F. copying another person’s work;



10/0/24, 3:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

G. allowing another person to copy one’s own work;

H. stealing another person’s work;

1. doing another person‘s work for them;

J. distributing coples of one's work for use by others;

K. distributing coples of someone else’s work for use by others for academic gain or advantage;

L. Intentionafly accesstng anather’s work for the purpose of presenting it as one's own for academic galn or advantage;
M. distributing or recelving answers to assignments, quizzes, tests, assessments, etc.;

N. distributing or recelving questions from quizzes, tests, assessments, etc,;

0,

L L oY
dr

¥

P,
[OPTIONAL LANGUAGE - ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE/NATURAL LANGUAGE PROCESSING TOOLS]

b o

HUse-ef-Artifeintintelligenee/Natural-Language Proeessing-Teols-Fer-Scheol-Work

Irerder-te-ensure-the-integiiy-of-the-educational process-and-to-promete-fairond-equal-oppertunites-for-all-studentsy

except-ns-ottined-belowrthe useof -ArtificlalHntelligenec{ADand-NotoraHmngunge-Processing-(NLR)-tosls-{eollectively;
SAHNERtoolsHastrcti-prohibited-for-the-eompletion-ofschoolwork—The-use oFAL/NEP toslswitheut-te-express

permissionfeopsent-ofo-teacher-undermines-the-learningand-preblem-—selving-sldlis-that-are-essential-to-academicshecess
ang-thotthe-staffis-tasked-to-develop-in-cach-student-Students-are-encovraged-to-develop-thelr-ewn-knowledgersidiisy

ohd-unrderstanding-of-course-materialbrather tharrelying-solely-en-AlNER-toolsand-they-should-ask-thelr-teachers-when
they-have-guestlons-ondiorneed-assistanceYnradthorzed-use of- Al/NLP-toolo-is-considered-o-form-of-plaglarsm-ond-any
student-found-using-these-teols-without permissiororfr--prohibited-manner-will-be-diseiplined-in-accordanea-with-the

Student-Code-of Conduet{ ) {See-Polleyp-7546:09—Artificiabinteligepse{AT) TEND-GF-OPTION]

Netwlthstanding-the-precedingstudentscan-use-ALNEP-tools-tn-the-schootsetiing-li-they-recetve-priorpermissionfcensent
fromtheirteachersojongas-they-use-the-AlNEP-tesls-in-an-ethical-and-respensiblemannerTeachers-have the-diseretion
te-adtherze-students-to-use AL NH toolsfor-the-followmgusess
A. Researeh-assistaneet- ALNLP-tools-can-be-used-ta-help-students-quicldy-and-efficlentiy search-for-and-find-relevant
informatiorfor-thelr-sehoeol prejects-and-assignments:
B, bata-Analysis+-ALNEP-tools-can-be-usedto-help-students-to-analyzeunderstand,-and-interpretlarge-smounts-of
is-can-be-particularlyuseful-for resenreh-projects-or date

datarsteh-as-text-documents-er-sockal-media-pests~This-ea
analysisassignments—erghrselentifie-cxperimentsand-marketing-researchy

C. Lenguage-transiatior-Al N tosls-can-be-used-to-transiate-textser-docuomenis-inte-differentlonguageswhichcan
be-helpfo-forstudents-whoarelearning-o-nenlanguage-er-for-students-who-are-studying-texte-written-in-a-different
lerguages

D. WMWHM@MWWth%ﬁﬂWHW%WWM
eheme&aﬁéfeﬂteﬁe&ﬁ%ewre—%&heiﬁﬁ%aéeﬁmmpmvahdﬁwﬂﬂﬂgﬁkﬂh-

E. mwmemmﬂammwﬁbﬂ&kﬂmdﬁmﬂmwﬁa&
oftware-can-help-stodeniswith-speelfictearning-disabilities-ervissaHmpalrmentsto

Ferexamplertext-to-speeeh-50
read-textsand-Al-powered-transloHonteslscanhelpstudents-with-hearing-fmpaliments-understond-spolen
larguages

FEND-OF-OPTIONAL-LANGUAGE —ATANERT
Staff and Administration have the responsibility for monitoring students’ work for compliance with this policy.

{HAlteachers-beginning-inthe-elementary-grades;-wil-edueate-students-as-to-what-constitte s neademie-dishonesty-and
whit-ls-acceptable-and-unacceptable-behavier-n-Bistrict-sehosls-regarding-academie-integrty—)-Such-education-shall

reference-this-Boord polieyr fENP-OF-OPTIONY

Students who violate this policy are subject to disclplinary consequences.



10/9/24, 3:27 PM BRoardDoes® PL

X ] Teachers are authorized, In consultation with their Princlpal, to apply appropriate consequences for violations of this
policy. Disciplinary consequences for significant violations may inclide removal from the class with a falling grade, removal
from student leadership positions, elimination of honors recognition, loss of membership in honor organizations, as well as
other disciplinary consequences appropriate to the nature of the violation, {END OF OPTION]

parents shall be contacted as soon as practicable to report any alleged acts of academic dishonesty by thelr child,
Repeated violations of this policy wilf result In additional disclplinary consequences in accordance with the Student Code of
Conduct.

Student and/or parent appeals of disclplinary consequences resuiting from violation of this policy may be made based on
the appeals pracess documented in the student handbook.

The Superintendent shall establish procedures to carry out Board policy and philosophy, and shall hold ail school persennel,
students, and parents responsible for the conduct of students in schools, on school vehicles, and at school-related events,

Student conduct shall be governed by the rules and provisions of the Student Code of Conduct. This Code of Conduct shall
be reviewed perlodically.

%mmw&%ﬂaﬂa%%&héﬂéeﬁ%e&u&eﬂ%ﬁbem%e&mmeeﬂaﬁbm
Cross References

po7540.,03

po7540.04

po7540.09

© Neoia 20242963

Legal M.C.L.A, 380.1311, 380.1312

I



10/9/24, 3:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

%
ONSTED

COHHMURNRY SCHOOLS
Book Policy Manual
Section Vol.39, No. 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of SMALL UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEMS
Code po7440.03 - CH/IR 20241008 - NO CHANGE, REVIEW OF POLICY
Status
Adopted December 16, 2019
Last Revised December 19, 2022

Technical Correction - Vol. 39, No. 1 - NO CHANGES

7440,03 - SMALL UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEMS

The Board prohibits the operation of small Unmanned Alrcraft Systems (sUAS) at any time by any individual who Is not
employed by the District, as well as by any District staff member or administrator who s not expressly authorized to do so

by the Superintendent, on property owned or leased or contracted for by the Board.

The Board also prohiblts the operation of a sUAS (drone) on property owned or leased or contracted for by the Board during
District-sponsored contests (including scrimmages and previews), practices, tournaments, and activities under the ausplces
of the Michigan High School Athletic Assoclation (MHSAA). District officlals may deny admission or entry to anyone
attempting to use a sUAS untilt the event has been completed, Any exceptions to this prohibition must be approved in

advance by the Superintendent.

To be authorized to operate a drone on property owned or {eased or contracted for by the Board, a staff member or
adminlstrator must have a Remote Pllat Certificate issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA). Further, the drone
must be registered with the FAA and properly marked in accordance with 14 C.F.R. Part 107.

A staff member ot administrator authorized to operate a drone on property owned or leased or contracted for by the Board,
must also comply with all rules set forth In 14 C.F.R. Part 107, (See AG 7440.03)

Failure to adhere by all rules set forth In 14 C.F.R, Part 107 and AG 7440.,03 may result In loss of authorization to operate a
drone to operate on property owned or leased or contracted for by the Board, referral to local law enforcement, and/or

further disciplinary action, up to and Including termination.

© Neola 202426232

Legal 86 FR 4314
14 C.F.R. Part 107



10/9/24, 3:27 PM BoardDocs® PL

“,

ONSTED

COMBUNITY SCHOOLS

Book Policy Manual

Section Vol.39, No. 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions

Title Vol. 39, No. 1 - September 2024 New ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE ("AI")
Code p07540.09 - CH/JR 20241008 - NEW POLICY

Status

New Policy - Vol. 39, No. 1

7540.09 - ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE ("AT")

The Board of Education recognizes the positive impact that artificlal intefligence ("Al") technology may have in the District's
educational program and operations. The Superintendent is authorized to support the use of artificial intelligence
technology when its use is consistent with the District’s misslon, goals, and operational integrity.

Any use of artificial intejligence technology In the District’s educational program or operations must be in accordance with
State and Federal law as well as Board polleles ( X} Including, but not limited to, the foflowing: Policy 2264 -
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex In Education Programs or Activities; Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of
Sex in Education Programs and Activities; Policy 5136 - Personal Communication Devices; Policy 5500 - Student Conduct;
Policy 7540.03 - Student Technology Acceptable Use and Safety; Policy 7540.04 - Staff Technology Acceptable Use and
Safety; Policy 8330 - Student Records; Policy 8350 - Confidentiality; and Policy 8351 - Security Breach of Confidential
Databases. [DRAFTING NOTE: Confirm and Select as Neaded] [END OF OPTION]

Violation of this policy may result in disciplinary consequences. Students may be dlsciplined for violations, up to and
including suspenslon or expulslon, Staff may be disciplined for violatlons, up to and including suspension or termination of

employment. The Administration wlill refer any illegal acts to law enforcement.

[Cross Reference
po5500
po7540.03
Po7540.04]

© Neola 2024
Cross References po5500 - STUDENT CONDUCT

po7540,03 - STUDENT TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE AND SAFETY
po7540,04 - STAFF TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE AND SAFETY



10/9/24, 3:28 PM

BoardDocs® PL

“.

ONSTED

COMMUHITY SCHOOLS

Book Pollcy Manual

Section Vol,39, No, 1 - September 2024 - MI Update Board Revisions

Titte Copy of CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SECURITY (NON-CRIMINAL JUSTICE
AGENCY)

Code po8321 - CH/IR 20241008

Status

Adopted December 17, 2012

Last Revised June 21, 2021

Revised Policy - Vol. 39, No. 1

8321 - CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SECURITY (NON~-CRIMINAL JUSTICE AGENCY)

The District Is required by State law to have the Michigan State Police (MSP) obtain both a State and a Federal Bureau of
Investigation {FBI) criminal history record information (CHRI) background check report for all empioyees of the District and
contractors, vendors and their employees who work on a regular and continucus basis In the District. This policy provides
the appropriate access, maintenance, security, confidentiality, dissemination, integrity, and audit requirements of CHRI in
all its forms, whether at rest or In transit. This policy/procedure shall be reviewed and updated at least annually and
following any security Incldents Involving CHRI, To assure the security, confidentiality, and integrity of the CHRI background

check information recelved from the MSP/FBI, the following standards are established:

A. Sanctions for Non-Compilance

Employees who fail to comply with this policy, State and Federal law, current CHSSECPOL, rules or regulations, and
any guidelines issued to Implement this poiicy wiil be subject to discIpline for such violations, Discipline canwifl range
fram counseling and retraining to discharge and prosecution, based on the nature and severity of the violation, at
the District's discretion. All violatfons wil be recorded In writing, with the corrective action taken. The
Supetintendent shall review, approve, slgn, and date all such corrective actions.

8. Local Agency Security Officer {LASO)

The Human Resources Director shall be deslgnated as the District’s Security Officer {"LASO").-and The LASO Is an
authorized user/personnel, has completed a fingerprint-based background check where required, and has been
found appropriate to access CHRI, and an employee directly involved in evaluating an individual’s qualifications for
employment or assignment, The LASO shall be responsible for overali implementation of this policy and for data and

system security. This shall Include;

[PYTIPRVPY J FrpRay FRSETA DY PRFOF RSO B | POy | | WU

1. Identifying who is using or accessing CHRI and/or systems with access to CHRI;

2. identifying and documenting any equipment connected to the State system;

3. ensuring that personnel security screening procedures are being followed as set forth In this policy;
4. ensuring that approved and appropriate security measures are In place and working as expected;

5. supporting pollcy compllance and Instituting the Incldent response reporting procedures;

§ 3 [ o TR NP PN LTy ) PR P 7




10/9124, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

m

6. ensuring annual awareness and training is being completed by all personnal with authorized access to the
CHRI;

7. ensuring that the Michigan State Police are prompty Informed of any security incidents invalving the abuse
or breach of the system and/or access to criminal justice Information;

8. reviewing and updating Informatfon security policy/procedures annually or after security Ineidents involving
CHRI;

9. to-theextent-applicabletdentifying-and-decumenting-how-Districtequlpmentis-connected-to-the-Michigan
State-Pollec-systems

10, employing one (1} or more of the following technigues to increase the security and privacy awareness of
system users: displaying posters, offering suppiies inscribed with security and privacy reminders; displaying
fogon screen messages; generating emall advisotles or notices from organizational officials; conducting

awareness events; and

11. to the extent applicable, identifying who Is using the Michigan State Palice approved hardware, software, and
firmware, and ensuring that no unauthorized Individuals have access to these items.

The District’s LASO shall be the point of contact for the Michigan State Police and should be the person most
knowledgeable about this policy. The District’s LASO shall be designated on the appropriate form as prescribed and
malntained by the Michigan State Police. A new form shall be submitted every Hime a new LASO Is designated and

kept on file by the District indefinitely.

Privacy Act Statement Disclosure

The District shall ensure that the applicant receives the Federal Privacy Act Statement Disclosure by providing the
applicant with the most current version of the MSP RI-030 Live Scan consent form, The applicant will receive this

informatlon by hard or electronic copy.

Agency User Agreements

The District shall enter into any required User Agreement for Release of CHRI ("User Agreement"), and future
amendments, by the Michigan State Police necessary to access the required CHRI on applicants, volunteers, and all
other statutorlly required Individuals, such as contractors and vendors and their employees assigned to the District.
Agreements are In place to provide data ownership, individual roles, responsibilities, etc, The District shall request a
new user agreement in the event they have a legal name change, they move to a new physical address, or they
wish to add or remove fingerprint reason codes. The most current copy of the Agreement shal] be maintained on flle
at the agency Indefinitely, The LASO shall be respensible for the District’s compliance with the terms of any such

User Agreement,

Personnel Securlty

Authorized users/personnel shall be individuals who have been appropriately vetted through a national fingerprint-
based background check, as required by school safety legislation, and have been granted access to CHRI data,
whereln access Is only for the purpose of evaluating an individual's quallfications for employment or asslghment.

1. Subsequent Arrest/Conviction - if an individual granted access to criminal justice information is
subsequently arrested and/or convicted, access shall be suspended immediately until the matter Is reviewed
by the LASOQ to determine If continued access Is appropriate. Such determination shall be recorded In writing,
stgned, dated and malntained with the Individual’s file. In the event that the LASO has the arrest/conviction,
the Superintendent (if not the designated LASQ) shall make the determination, If the Superintendent is also
the designated LASQ, the determination shall be made by the Human Resources Director; except that, as
noted in D{1){a}, Individuals with a felony conviction of any kind will have theiraccess indefinitely

suspended.

Public Interest Denial - If the LASO determines that access to criminal justice information by any
individual would not be In the public interest, access shall be denled whether that person Is seeking access or
has previously been granted access. Such declslon and reasons shall be In writing, slgned, dated, and

maintained in the individual’s file,

bt

Approval for Access - All requests for access to criminal justice Information shall be as specified and
approved by the LASO, Any such designee must be a direct employea of the District. The District must
maintain a readily accessible list that Includes the names of all LASO approved personnel with access to

(o]




10/9/24, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

criminal justice information, as well as the reason for providing each Individual access. This list shall be made
avallable to the Michigan State Police upon request,

Notification of Termination of Employmaeant/Access or Transfer/Re-assignment - When an
employee’s access or employment is terminated, or if the duties for accessing criminal justlce information
have been transferred or re-asslgned to another individual, the designated

Individual Idestgnated individuat] shall be notifled promptly in writing. The Individual respensible for
the termination or transfer/re-assignment shall directly notify the designated

individual [designated Individual].

»

Termination of Employment/Access - Within twenty-four {24) hours of the termination of employment,
all access to criminal justice information shall be terminated Immediately for that individual, such as requiring
the Individual to return any keys or access cards to buildings, offices, and/or files, or closing the Individual's
account and/or blocking access to any systems contalning such informatlon at the District,

-

Transfer/Re-~assignment - When an individual who has been granted access to criminal justice information
has been transferred or re-assigned to other dutles, the LASO shali determine whether continued access Is
necessary and appropriate. If not, the LASOs/he shall take such steps as necessary to block further access to
such information within the twenty-four (24) hour period immediately following the transfer or

reassignment, If such access Is not necessary and appropriate, steps to eliminate the Individual’s access will
be taken Immediately, such as requiring the Individual to return any keys or access cards to buildings,
offices, and/or files, or closing the individual's account and/or blocking access to any systems containing such

Information at the District.

o

F. Media Protection

Accass to digital and physical media In all forms, which contalns criminal history background Information provided by
the Michigan State Police through the statutory record check process, is restricted to authorized individuals only,
Only individuals invalved in the hiring determination of hoth District employees and volunteers shall be authorized to

access digital and physical media containing CHRI,

1, Media Storage and Access - All digital and physical media shall be stored in a physlcally secure location or
controlled area, such as locked office, locked cabinet, or other similarly secure area(s) which can only be
accessed by authorized individuals. If such security cannot be reasonably provided, then all digital CHRI
background data shall be encrypted. Access to such media will be secured at all times when not in use or
under the supervision of an authorized individual, Digital media shail be stored on a District or School
server and unless encrypted, shall be maintalned in a lockable filing cablnet, drawer, closet, office, safe,
vault, etc, Storage on a third party server, such as cloud service, Is not permitted. Storage of digital media
must conform to the requirements in AG 8321 and must be encrypted. Physical media wili be stored within
individual records when feasible, or by itseif when necessary, and will be maintained in a lockabije filing

cabinet, drawer, closet, office, safe, vauit, etc,

Meadia Transport - Digital and physical media shall only be transported upon sufficient justification
approved by the LASO. Digital and physical media shall be protected when being transported outside of a
controlled area, Only authorized individuals shall transport the media, Physlcal medla (e.g. printed
documents, printed Imagerty, etc.) shall be transported using a locked contalner, sealed envelope, ot other
similarly secure measure, To the extent possible, digital media (e.qg., hard drives and removable storage
devices such as disks, tapes, flash drives, and memory cards) shal! be either encrypted and/or be password
protected during the transport process. The media shall be directly delivered to the intended person or
destination and shall remain in the physical control and custedy of the authorized Individual at alf times
during transport. Access shall only be allowed to an authorized Individual,

o

3, Media Disposal/Sanitization - When the CHRI background check is no longer needed, the media upon
which It is stored shall elther be destroyed ar sanitized. The LASO and the Superintendent shall approve in
writing the media to be affected. This record shall be maintained by the LASO during the individual’s active
employment plus an additional six (6) years. [Note; the regulations do not specify a specific pariod for
malntaining this information. This time perlod is suggested based on the State of Michigan's
background information retention schedule and will likely cover most statutes
of imitalter-limitation and can be retained in digital format.}

a. Dlgitat Media - Sanitization of the medla and deletion of the data shall he accomplished by either
overwtiting at least three (3) times or by degaussing, prior to dispesal or reuse of the medta, but
optical media (such as CDs and DVDs) will be physically destroyed. If the media is inoperable or will
not be reused, it shall be destroyed by shredding, cutting, or other suitable method to assure that any

hHmnailnn hanvddnnn anvafmllaneiiBaned natiDadinbndannn@lanind 2t



10/9/24, 3:28 PM

BoardRocs® PL

data wilf not be retrievable,

b, Physical Medla - Disposal of documents, Images or other type of physical record of the criminal
history Information shall be cross-cut shredded or Incinerated, Physical security of the dacuments and
their information shall be malntained during the process by authorized individuais, Documents may
not be placed in a waste basket or burn bag for unauthorized individuals to later coflect and dispose

of,

All disposai/sanitization shall be either conducted or witnessed by authorized personnel to assure that there
is no misappropriation of, or unauthorized access to, the data to be deleted. Written documentation of the
steps taken to sanitize or destroy the media shall be maintalned for ten (10) years, and must Include the
date as well as the signatures of the person(s) perfarming andfor witnessing the process. (See also, AG

8321.)

. Personal Mobile Devices - A personally owned moblle device (mobile phone, tablet, laptop, etc.) or no

identifiable owner digital media device shall not be authorized to access, process, store or transmit criminal
justice information unless the District has established and documented the specific terms and conditions for
personally cwned mobife devices through a Mobile Device Management {MDM) system. An MDM Is not
required when recelving CHRI from an indirect access information system (1,e., the system provides no
capability to conduct transactional activities on State and natlonal repositories, applications, or services),

CHRI Backgiround Check Consent and Documentation

All Individuals requested to complete a fingerprint-based CHRI background check must execute Michigan
State Police Form R1-088A at the time of application, and be notifiad fingerprints wil be used to check the
criminal history records of the £BI, prior to completing a fingerprint-based CHRT background check. The most
current and unaltered Livescan form (RI-030) wil satisfy this requirement and must be retalned, Individuals
subject to a fingerprint-based CHRI background check shall be provided the apportunity to complete or
challenge the accuracy of the Individual's criminal history record,

Some type of documentation Identifying the posltion for which a fingerprint-based CHRI background check
has been obtained must be retained for every CHRI background check conducted, such as the "Agency User
Agreement” (RI-087), an offer letter, employment agreement, new hire checkiist, employment contract,

volunteer background check form, ete.

Controlled Area/Physical Protections

All CHRI obtalned ftom the Michigan State Police pursuant to the statutorily required background checks shall
be maintained In the Board of Education Office, which Is a physlcally secure and controlled area, The
following security precautions will apply to the controlled area:

a. Himited unauthorized personnel access to the area during times that criminal justice information is
belng processed or viewed,

b, The controlled area shall be locked at all times when not In use or attended by an authorized
individual.

¢, Information systems devices (e.g., computer screens) and physical documents, when in use, shall be
positioned to prevent unauthorized individuals from belng able to access or view them.

d. Encryption shall be used for digital storage of criminal justice information, (See AG 8321)

Passwords (Standard Authentlcatlon)1

All authorized Individuals with access to computer or systems where processing is conducted or containing
criminal justice information must have a unique password to gain access. This password shall not be used for
any other account to which the indlvidual has access and shall comply with the following attributes and

standards:
a, at least elght (8) charactets long on all systems

b. not be a proper name or a word found in the dictionary




10/6/24, 3:28 PM

BoardDocs® PL

c. not be the same as the user Identification
d. not be displayed when entered Into the system {must use feature to hide password as typed)

e, not be transmitted in the clear outside of the secure lacation used for criminal justice Information
storage and retrieval

f. must expire and be changed every ninety (90) days

g. renewed password cannot be the same as any prior ten (10} passwords used (See also, AG 8321)

8. Security Awareness Training

All individuals who are authorized by the District to have access to criminal justice information or to systems
which store criminal justice Information shall have basic security awareness training as part of initlal training
for new users prior to accessing CJI and annually thereafter, and when required by system changes or
within thirty (30} days of any security event for individuals involved in the event.within-sbe{6}-menths-of

initial-assigpmentfauthorizationand-everyrtwe{2-yeoars-thereafter: LASOs require ehhanced training on the

specific dutles and responsibilities of those positions and the tmpact those positions have on the overall
security of information systems.

Tralning 1s a role-based security and privacy tralning for personnel with the following roles:

A, Basic Role: All individuals with unescarted access to a physicaily secure location. (Not typlcal for
NCIAS)

B. General Role: All personnel with access to CJ1, This levet Is designhed for people who have physical
and logical access to CI1.

C. Privileged Role: This level is designed for all information technology personnel including system
administrators, security adminlstrators, network administrator, etc. More access is needed than a
general user, but not an assigned LASO, (l.e., CHRISS Administrator)

D, Security Role: This level is deslgned for personnel with the responsibillty to ensure the
confidentiality, Integrity, and avallabllity of CII and the Implementation of technology in a manner

compliant with the CIISSECPOL. (i.e,, LASQ)

The training shall, to the extent possible, be recelved through a program approved by the Michigan
State Police. A template of the training Is provided on the Michigan State Police’s website. At a
minimum, the tralning shall comply with the standards established by the U.S, Department of Justice
and Federal Bureau of Investigation for Criminal Justice Information Services, {See AG 8321,) A
record shall be kept current of all individuals who have completed the security awareness training.

9, Sacondary Dissemination of Information

If criminal history background Information recelved from the Michigan State Police Is released to another
authorized agency under the sharing provision deslgnated by the revised school code, a log of stich raleases
shall be maintained and kept current for all dissemination outside of the CHRISS system indicating:

a, the date of release;

b, record disseminated;

¢. method of sharing;

d. agency personnei that shared the CHRI;

e. the agency to which the Information was released;

£, the name of the Individual recipient at the agency; and

g. whether authorlzation was abtalned,



100124, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

A log entry need not be kept If the recelving agency/entity s part of the primary information exchange agreements
hetween the District and the Michigan State Pollce, A release form consenting o the sharing of CHRI shall be

malntained at all relevant times.

If CHRI is received from another District or outside agency, an Internet Criminal History Access Tool {ICHAT)
background check shall be performed to ensure the CHRI is based on personal identifying information, Including the

individual's name, sex, and date of birth, at a minimum.

Incident Handling and Responses

The District shall establish operational incident handling procedures for instances of an Information security breach.
Information security incidents are major incldents that significantly endanger the security or integrity of CHRL. The District
will identify responsibilities for Information security incldents and include how and who to report such incidents to, The
District will ensure appropriate security Incident capabilities exIst and should incorporate the lessons Jearned from ongoing
incident handling activities, The District will ensure procedures exist and are implemented for a follow-up action of a
security breach and for the collection of evidence in cases of Jegal action, All individuals with direct or indirect access to
CHRI shall be trained on how to handle an Information security Incldent, and such training will be included within the
provided awareness and training, Information system security incidents shall be tracked using Form CJIS-016 and
documented oh an ongeing basls, Incident-refated information may be obtained from audit monitoring, network monitoring,
physical access monltoring, and user/administrator reports. The LASO shail maintain completed security incident reporting
forms for three (3) years or until legal action (if warranted) Is complete, whichever timeframe is greater. The District shalt
implement steps for incident handling capabilities, for both digital and physical CHRI media. Incldent response testing will
be conducted annually using the following tests: tabletop or walk-through exerclses, stmulations, or other agency

appraopriate tests. At a minimum, the following will be implemented:

Physical -~ Hard Capy Digital - bigitally Saved CHRI
CHRIX

1. Preparation Firewalls, virus protection, and/for
The CHRI container will be locked at all malware/spyware pratection shall be

t't’;‘? din‘l‘;he t;zi:'enf:;fﬁcﬁ wi;e;e ithis implemented and maintained to prevent
stored, The o € locked when | . authorized access or Intrusion of the

the office staff Is not present. bnformation systems.
2. Detection Unauthorized activities or physical Electronic intrusions shall be monitored
lintrusions to the bullding shall be and detected by the firewalls, virus

monitored by bullding alarm or video protection, andfor malware/spyware
surveitlance, Doors must be locked and [protection software,
checked at night.

3, Analysis The LASO will work with police The LASO shall work with the IT
authoritles to determine how the department to determine what systems
incldent occurred and what data was or data were compromised and affected,
affected.

4, Contalnment The LASO shall Jock uncompromised The IT department shall stop the spread
CHRI information In a secure contalner, lof any Intrusion of the information
or transport CHRI to a secure area, isystems and prevent further damage.

5. Eradication The LASO shall work with law The IT department shall remove the
enforcement to remove any threats and fintrusion of the Information systems
compromised CHRI data. before restoring the system. All steps

necessaty to prevent recurrence shall be
taken before restoring the system,

The Police shall handle and/or oversee {The IT department shali restore the

6. Recovery the recovery of stolen CHRI media, The [agency Informatlon system and media to
' LASQO may contact MSP for assistance In fa safe environment,

re-fingerprinting if necessary,




10/9/24, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

When an incldent involving the security of CHRI or systems with access to CHRI is discovered, the following procedures
shall be followed:

A, The-tASOshall-benetifledtmmeadiatelyAll parsonnel are required to report suspected Incidents to the

LASO immediately, but not to exceed one (1} hour after discovery, Personnel who become aware of an Incident or
believe an Incldent has occurred should report to the following Individuals, in order:

1, LASO

2. Superintendent, [Desighated Title]

3. Business Manager {Designated Title]

4. Immediate Supervisor_____ [Designated Title]

B. The breach shall be assessed (Including datermination of whether notification to individuals is needed, assessment
of the extent of the harm, and identification of applicable privacy requirements) and steps taken to correct the

sltuation:

1. access shall be stopped for any unautherized user;

2, media shali be secured;

3. systems shall be shut down as necessary to avoid further exposure to unauthorized access or dissemination
of CHRI;

4. such other steps are deemed necessary by the LASO or authorized personnel Involved In assessing the
incident,

C., Alt hecessary Information regardling the securlty breach and District responses shall be recorded, analyzed, and
preserved, including who was involved In taking incident response measures,

D. The LASO shall be responsible for fliing the incident report with the MSP using the CJIS-016, Completed CJIS-016
forms shall be retained on an ongolng basls to meet policy requirements for tracking.

The LASQO shall monitor MSP Information/guldance on incldent reports and train authorized users with access to

CHRI on detection and response to security incidents.
E, Moblle Devlce - Incldent Handilng and Response

1. The LASO shall be notified immediately.
2. The breach shall be assessed and steps taken to correct the sltuations:
a. access shall be stopped immediately, and remotely If necessary, for any authorized user;

b. media shall be secured and steps taken to Identify how the Incident occurred and what systems or
data were compromised or affected:

¢, systems shall be shut down as necessary to avold further exposure to unauthortzed access or
dissemination of ClI;

d. such other steps as are deemed necessary by the LASO or authorized personnel involved in assessing
the Incldent,

3, All necessary Information regarding the security breach and District responses shall be recorded, analyzed,
and preserved, ineluding who was Invaived In taking incident response measures,

4. Steps shall be taken to restore the device and media to a safe environment,

5. The LASO shall be responsibie for filing the incident report with the MSP using form CJI5-016. A copy of the
completed form shall be retalined and preduced to MSP upon request,

When a device Is lost the District shall document and indicate how long the device has been lost. Special




1019724, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL
reporting procedures for mobile devices shall apply in any of the following sltuations:
a. for a lost device, report if the owner:
1. beileved the device was locked;
2. belleved the device was unlocked;

3. could not validate the device's locked state;-
b, for a tota! loss of a device, report if:

1. CHRI was stored on the device;

2. the device was locked or unlocked;

3. capable of remote tracking or wiping of device;-
C, report any compromise of a device when the intruslon occurs while still in the owner’s possession;
d. report any compromise outside of the United States.

F. Collection of Evidence

Where an information security Incident involves legal action against the District or an Individual {elther civil or
criminal), evidence shal! be collacted, retained, and presented in accordance with the rules of evidence of the

relevant jurisdiction{s). For criminal matters, Cambridge Townhip Police Department, [law
enforcement agency] shall be contacted for evidence collection. For clvil matters, District legal
counsel [deslgnated legal counse]] will be contacted for evidence collection.

lAppIIcabIe to districts that maintaln CHRI within a digital system of records, such as a digital database, filing system,
record keepling software, spreadsheets, etc, Not applicable If CHRI kept solely via e-mall and/or paper coples,

Revised 6/16/14
Revised 12/21/15
Revised 3/20/17
Revised 12/18/17
Revised 6/18/18

© Neola 20242621

Legal Ref: Criminal Justice Information Services - Security Policy (Verslon 5.6, 2017),
U.S, Dept. of Justice and Federal Bureau of Investigation

Nencriminal Justice Agency Compliance Audit Review, Michigan State Police, Criminal
Justice Information Center, Audit and Training Section

Conducting Criminal Background Checks, Michigan State Police, Criminal Justice
Informatlon Center




1019124, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
Book Pollcy Manual
Saction Vol. 39, No, 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revislons
Title Vol, 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG Revisions - September 2024 MI OVERVIEW
Code 01 - OVERVIEW
Status

MAGSRB | POLICY UPDATE SERVICE

MICHIGAN AssociATION | pROVIDED BY NEOLA, INC.

MI LOCAL UPDATE OVERVIE MMENTS
VOLUME 39, NUMBER 1 - EDGAR/UGG REVISIONS

SEPTEMBER 2024

This Speclal Update s Issued to Neola Cliants [n response to the April 2024 release of revislons to the Uniform Grant Guldance regulations,

The Office of Management and Budget (OMB) revised several parts of the OMB Guldance for Grants and Agreements, now called the OMB
Guldance for Federal Financlal Assistance, located In title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR). When the Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) officlally released ravislons to the Uniform Guidance all Federal agencles, including the Department of Education (ED), were to
ensure the 2024 revisions were effective for all Federal awards Issued on or afler October 1, 2024, However, per ED's guldance, recipients of
Federal fiscal year 2024 State-administered formula grants (such as Title I and IDEA-B) Issued on or after July 1, 2024, could implement
the revised 2024 Uniform Guldance effective July £, 2024, provided that they have revised any appllcable State polictes and procedures.

For Federal grants Issued prior to July 1, 2024 and the close-aut spending and reporting, the earller regulations and polictes should remain
in effect through September 30, 2024, untess notifled otherwise by the awarding agency or MDE,

OMB revised its guldance and the regulations In 2 CFR for the purpose of;
+ Incorporating statutory requirements and administration priorities;

s reducing agency and reciplent burden;
+ clarifying sections that recipients or agencles have Interpreted In different ways; and

« rewrlting applicable sections In plaln language, Improving flow, and addressing Inconslstent use of terms within the guldance.

OMB's revislons are Intended to Improve Federal financlal assistahce management, transparency, and oversight through more accessible and
easlly understandable guldance,
Neota has conducted a thorough review of policy and administrative guldelines templates and s providing appropriate revislons and

additions In this speclal update to assist districts In meating compliance standards put forth by OMB, Policy documents In this speclal update
have been reviewed by Brusteln & Manasevit, PLLC Attorneys at Law and by Varnum, L.L.P. {Grand Raplds, MI) for consistency with Federal

and State law, respectively.

Slgnificant work, howaver, will be necessary for each district to draft and/for revise the required procedures for a variety of functions. Neola
will, upon request, process and post districts’ procedures/manuals as electronlc [inks to provide for conventent flow from policy to

administrative guldellnes to district procedure,

This Update Includes the following documents:



10/0/24, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

PO ES
Policy 1130/3113/4113 - Conflict of Interest

olicy 11
Policy 6110 ~ Grant Funds (Uniform Grant Guidance)
Policy 6111 —~ Internai Controls
Policy 6112 ~ Cash Management of Grants
Policy 6114 ~ Cost Principles - Spending Federal Funds
Policy 6325 - Procurement — Federal Grants/Funds
Policy 6550 — Travel Payment & Reimbursement

Policy 7310 ~ Disposition of Surplus Property
Policy 7450 ~ Property Inventory

ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES

AG 6325 - Procurement -~ Federal Grants
AG 6550 - Travel Payment 8 Reimbursement

AG 7450 - Property Inventory

If you have questicns about any of these Speclal Update materials, please contact your Neola Associate. Al production-related materlals and
questions should be directed to the Production Office - Coshocton at 632 Maln Street, Coshacton, Ohlo 43812 (phone: 800-407-5815 or
emall: producticn@nesla.com), Billing and other questions should be directed to the Business Office - Stow at 3914 Clock Polnte Trall, Sulte
103, Stow, Ohlo 44224 {phone: 330-926-0514, fax: 330-926-0525, emall: accounts@neola.com).




10/9/24, 3:28 PM

Book
Section

Title

Code

Status

Policy Manual

BoardDocs® PL

%
ONSTED

COMMURHY SCHODLS

Vol. 38, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions

Vol. 39, No, 1 - EDGAR UGG Revislons - September 2024 - MI Policy Disposition

Sheet

02 - Policy Disposition Sheet

DISPOSITION OF NEW/REVISED/REPLACEMENT

POLICIES FOR BOARD ADOPTION

VOL. 39, NO. 1 - EDGAR/UGG REVISIONS - SEPTEMBER 2024

Cading for District-Speclfic Edits

*1 = drafted by District staff
*2 = [f the material was a work for hire, that is, material the District pald someone else to develop but from whom the

District purchased the rights to publish

*3 = If the matertal is copyrighted to someone else from whom the District has secured permission to publish the materlal
(No cade is needed for accepting Neola’s vetted material)

Policy Number

bate
Adopted

District-Specific Edits
(1, 2, or 3)

Date Tahled

Date Rejected

pol130

po31il0

po4110

pob110

po611l

po6112

po6114

po6325

po6550

po7310

po7450




1019724, 3:29 PM

Book
Sectioh
Title
Code
Status

Adopted

Last Revised

BoardDocs® PL

Q
ONSTED

COMMURITY SCHOOLS

Polley Manual

Vol. 39, No. t - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revislons
Copy of CONFLICT OF INTEREST

pol1130 - CH/IR 20241008

May 19, 2003

May 16, 2016

Revised Policy ~ Vol, 39, No, 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revislons

1130 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Staff members, officers, and agents shall perform their eofficial duties in 2 manner free from conflict of Interest. To this end:

A. The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, Integrity, Impartiality, and professlonal conduct by
the Sehool-District’s Board members, employees, officers, and agents Is essential to ensure the proper performance
of school business as well as to earn and keep public confidence in the Seheosl-District.

To accomplish this, the Board of Education has adopted the followlng guidelines which apply to all District

employees, officets, and-agents, and Board members

to assure that confiicts of

Interest do not occur, These guidelines are not intended to be ali-inclusive, nor to substitute for good judgment on
the part of all employees, officers, agents, and Beard membersand-agents,

1,

L

No employee, officer, ex-agent, or Board member shall engage in or have a financlal or other Interest, directly
or indirectly, in any activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question of confiict with the employee's,
officer's, agent's, or Board member'shisther dutles and responsibiiitfes in the school system. When a staff
member determines that the possibility of a personal Interest confiict exlsts, the staff membersthe should,
prior to the matter being consldered by the Board or administration, disciose the staff

member'shisther Interest {such disclosure shall become a matter of record In the minutes of the Board),

No staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall use theirhisther position to benefit
either themselveshimsetitherself or any other individual or agency apart from the total Interest of

the Sekeol-District,

. If the financlal Interest pertains to a proposed contract with the District, the following requirements must be

met,

The staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall disclose the dlrect financlal interest In the
contract to the Board with such disclosure made a part of the officlal Board minutes. If thehisther direct
financial interest amounts to $250 or more or five percent {5%) or more of the contract cost to the District,
the staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall make the disclosure in one (1) of bwo (2) ways:

a. In writing, to the Board Presldent at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting at which the vote on
the contract wilt be taken. The disclosure shall be made public in the same manner as the Board's

notices of its public meetings. (See Bylaw 0165)

b. By announcement at a meeting at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting at which a vote on the
contract Is to be taken. The staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member must use thls method of

disclosure if thehisther-financial Interest amounts to $5,000 or more.



10/9/24, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

4. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members shall not engage In business, private practice of thelr
profession, the rendering of services, or the sale of goods of any type where advantage Is taken of any
professional relationship the employee, officer, agent, or Board memberthey may have with any student,
client, or parents of such students or clients in the course of the employee's, officer's, agent’s, or Board
member'sthei employment or professional refatlonship with the Sehesl-District,

Included, by way of Hlustration rather than limitation, are the foliowing:

a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee

b, the use, sale, or Improper divulging of any privileged Information about a student or client gained in
the course of the employee's, officer’s, er-agent’s, or Board member's employment or professional
relationship with the District through hsfher-access to Seheol-District records

¢. the referral of any student or clfent for lessons or services to any private business or professional
practitioner If there Is any expactation of reciprocal referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration

for such referrals

d. the requlrement of students or clients to purchase any private goods of services provided by an
employee, officer, ex-agent, or Board member, or any business or professional practitioner with whom
any employee, officer, er-agent, or Board member has a financial or other relationship, as a condltion

of receiving any grades, credits, promotions, approvals, or recommendations

5. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members shall not make use of materials, equipment, or facilities
of the Sehool-Diskrict In private practice. Examples would be the use of facllitles before, during, or after
regular business hours for service to private practice clients, or the checking out of items from an
instructfonal materials center for private practice,

B. should exceptions to this pelicy be necessary In order to provide services to students ar clients of the
SeheskDistrict, all such exceptions will be made known to the emplayee's supervisor and will be disclosed to the
Superintendent before entering into any private relationship.

C. No employee, officer, agent, or Board member with a real or apparent conflict of Interest may participate In the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by the Federal award, A conflict of interest Includes when
the employee, officer, agent, or Board member, any member of thefr immediate family, thelr partner, or an
organization that employs or is about to employ any of the parties Indicated hereln, has a financial or other interest
in or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a contract.Empleyees;-officersrand-agentscannot
participateinthe selectionowardroradminishration-efa-contract-supported-by-aFederab gronbfowardHf-sfhe has-a
real-or-apparent-confiict-eHnterest—Such-aconflickofinterestwould-arlse-when-the-employeerofffeeroragentany
memberob-hisiherimmediate-family-histherpartner-er-an-organizationwhich-employs-orisabsubto-emplay-anyof
the-parties-deserlbed-in-this-section-has-o-Hnancialor-other interestin-or-a-tangible-personai-benefibfrom-afiry
consideredforacontrack:

Pursuant to Faderal rules, the District has set standards for situations where the financlal interest Is not substantfal
or the glft is an unsolicited item of nominal value. For purposes of this section, "nemlnal value" means that the gift
has a monetary value of $100 or less.Employees;officers,-and-ogents—shali-retsolicib-or-accep-gratulties; faversyorf
anything-of-monetary-value-from-contractors-orparties tosubcentrocts-tnvelved-with-Federal-grant-funds:

Employees;-officcrs-and-agentsmay-hawever-accepka-giftefunsoliclted-tiems-of-"rominalvaldefrom-a-contracter
orparby-to-subeontracte-that- do-netiavelve Federal-grantfunds—Fer-purpeses-of-this-secton“neminarvalue ' -means

thatthe-gifthesamonetarpvalte-of-$100-or-leas:

[In accordance with M.C.L. 380.634, the Michlgan Department of Education (MDE) adjusts the limits on
the value of gifts that may be accepted from vendors ot potential vendors for Intermediate School
District employees, The fiscal year 2023-20242023-22 cap for gifts was $7364.]

D, Iffe-the-extent-that the District has a parent, afflllate, or subsidiary organization that is not a State, local
government, or Indlan tribe, the SeheelDistrict may not conduct a procurement action Involving the parent, affiliate,
or subsldiary organization If the SeheetDistrict Is unable, or appears to be unable, to be Impartial in conducting a

procurement action involving a related organization.

m

Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members must promptly disclose any potentlal conflict of Interest which
may lead to a violation of this policy to the Seheel-District. Upon discovery of any potentfal conflict of interest,

the Seheal-District will disclose, In writing, the potential conflict of Interest to the appropriate

Federal awarding-agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity.

The District will also promptly disclose whenever, in connection with the Federal award (including any activities or
subawards thereunder), it has credible evidence of the commlssion of a violation of Federal criminal {aw Involving

K]

WiHnoi Hran haarddano anmlmllianctiiBAanrd nafiDavsiaPanan@laaintf




10/9f24, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, or gratuity violations found In Title 18 of the United States Code or a viclation of
the civil False Claims Act (31 U.5.C. 3729-3733). The disclosure must be made in writing to the Federal agency, the
agency's Office of Inspector General, and pass-through entity. The District is also required to report matters related
to reciplent Integrity and performance In accordance with Appendix X1 of 2 C.F.R, Part 200disetosetna-tmely
latens-of-Federal-erminaHaw-invelving-fravdr-bribery-or-gratuity-that-affecta-Federalaward-to-the

manher-athviel
appmpéate%edem{ﬁwardmg—ageﬂeweﬁrﬁapﬁheable—the—pasﬁhmugh-em

. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members found to be tn violation of this confiict of Interest policy wil be

subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable Board policy.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The Scheol-District has discretion over the appropriate disciplinary actions. For
example, the Scheel-District may suspend or terminate the individual’'s employment, transfer the
individual, end the District’s professional relationship with that individual, or temporarily re-assign the
individual, All disciplinary actions must be In accordance with applicable Federal, State, and local law, as

well as any collectively bargained agreements.}

Revised 8/20/07
Revised 12/21/15

®© Neola 20242016

Legal

2 C.ER. 200.112, 200.113, 200.318
M.C.L. 380.634, 380.1805(1)




10/9/24, 3:29 PM

Book
Section
Title
Code
Status

Adopted

Last Revised

BoardDocs® PL

%,

ONSTED

COMMURITY SCHOOLS

Policy Manual

Vol 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revislons
Capy of CONFLICT QF INTEREST

po3110 - CH/IR 20241008

August 20, 2007

May 16, 2016

Revised Policy ~ Vol, 39, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revisions2

3110 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Staff members, officers, and agents shall perform their officlal duties in a manner free from conflict of Interest, To this end:

A, The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity, Impartiality, and professional conduct by
the Seheol-District’s Board members, employees, officers, and agents Is assential to ensure the proper performance
of school business as well as to earn and keep public confidence in the Sehesl-District,

To accomplish this, the Board of Education has adopted the following guidelines which apply to alt District
employees, officers, and-agents, and Board membersthreluding-members-of-the-Board to assure that conflicts of
interest do not occur. These guidelines are not intended to be all-inclusive, nor to substitute for good judgment on
the part of all employees, cofficers, agents, and Board membersand-agents,

1.

w

w

No employee, officer, ex-agent, or Board member shall engage In or have a financlal or other Interest, directly
or Indirectly, in any activity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question of conflict with the employee’s,
officer's, agent's, or Board member'shisfher duties and responsibilities in the school system. When a staff
member determines that the possibllity of a personal Interest confiict exists, the staff membersthe should,

prior to the matter being consldered by the Board or administration, disclose the staff
member'shisther interest (such disclosure shall became a matter of record in the minutes of the Board).

No staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shali use theirkisfher position to beneflt
elther themselveshimselftherself or any other Individual or agency apart from the total interest of
the Sehesl-District,

If the financlal interest pertains to a proposed contract with the District, the following requirements must be
met.

The staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall disclose the direct financial Interest In the
contract to the Board with such disclosure made a part of the officlal Board minutes, If thekisther direct
financlaf Interest amounts to $250 or more or five percent (5%} or more of the contract cost to the District,
the staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall make the disclosure in one (1) of two (2) ways:

a. In writing, to the Board President at least seven (7} days prior to the meeting at which the vote on
the contract will be taken. The disclosure shall be made public in the same manner as the Board's

notices of its public meetings, {(See Bylaw 0165)

b. By anncuncement at a meeting at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting at which a vote on the
contract Is to be taken. The staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member must use this method of

disclosure if thehisthersfinancial interest amounts to $5,000 or more,

hthemni b hnneddnnn An rlesanntiDanrd naflBduaiaZanan @lnnind

113



109124, 3:29 PM BoardDocs® PL

4, Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members shall not engage in business, private practice of their
profession, the rendering of services, or the sale of goods of any type where advantage Is taken of any
professional relatlonship the employee, officer, agent, or Board membeithey may have with any student,
client, or parents of such students or clfents In the course of the employee's, officer's, agent’s, or Board
member'sthelr employment or professional relationship with the Gehesl-District.

Included, by way of lllustration rather than limitation, are the foilowlng:
a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee

b, the use, sale, or improper divulging of any privileged information about a student or client gained in
the course of the employee's, officer’s, erF-agent's, or Board member's employment or professional
relationship with the District through hisfher-access to Secheel-District records

. the referral of any student or client for lessons or services to any private business or professional
practitioner if there Is any expectation of reciprocal referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration

for such referrals

d. the requirement of students or clients to purchase any private goods or services provided by an
employee, officer, eFagent, or Beard member, or any business or professfonal practitioner with whom
any employee, officer, er-agent, or Board member has a financlal or other relationship, as a condition
of receiving any grades, credits, promotions, approvals, or recommendations

5. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members shal! not make use of materlals, equipment, or facllities
of the Sehool-District in private practice, Examples would be the use of facilities before, during, or after
regular business hours for service ta private practice clients, or the checking out of itkems from an
instructional materlals center for private practice.

B. Should exceptions to this policy be necessary In order to provide services to students or clients of the
Sehest-District, all such exceptions will be made known to the employee's, officer’s or agent’s supervisor and will be
disclosed to the Superintendent before entering Into any private relationship.

No employee, officer, agent, or Board member with a real or apparent conflict of Interest may participate in the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by the Federal award. A conflict of interest Incfudes when
the employee, officer, agent, or Board member, any member of their immediate family, their partner, or ap
organization that employs or Is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest

in or a tangible personal benefit from an entity considered for a contract.Erpleyees;efficersand-agents-can-not
parteipatefatheselectionawardoradministratienof a-contrack supported-bya-Federnhgrant/award-ifathe-haso
real-ar-apparent-conflick-ofHnterest—Such-aconflick-of-interest-wotld-arise-when-the-employee-officerarangentony
member-of-hisfherimmediate family—histher-portnes-or-an-organization-which-employs-eris-abevt-to-employ-any-of
the-pardes-deseribedinthissectonhaso-financal-or-otherinterestroratongible persenal-berefit-froma-firm
considered-for-acontrack

Pursuant to Federal rules, the District has set standards for situations where the financlal Interest is not substantial
or the gift Is an unsoficited item of nominal value. For purposes of this sectlon, "nominal vaiue" means that the ght
has a monetary value of $100 or less.Empleyees-officersrand-agents-shalbnebsellelb-ornecept-gratuites—faversror
anything-of-menetary-valvefreracontracterser porties-to-subeontracts-dnvelved-with-Federal grant-funds:
Employeesrefficers—and-agents-may-however-aeeept-a-gHt-of-unselicited-tems-eF nominahvaluefromo-contracter
or-party-tosubeontracts that-do-not-invelve Federal grantfunds—Terpurposesof this-seetlomreminabvaluve-means
that-the-gift-hasa-menctaryvalueof- $180-ordesss

[In accordance with M.C.L. 380.634, the Michigan Department of Education (MDE) adjusts the limits on
the value of gifts that may be accepted from vendors or potential vendors for Intermediate School
District employees, The flscal year 2023-20242021-22 cap for gifts was $7364.)

o

D, Iffe-the-extent-that the District has a parent, affiliate, or subsidlary organization that Is not a State, local
government, or Indian tribe, the Seheel-District may not conduct a procurement action Involving the parent, affillate,
or subsidiary organization if the Seheeot-District is unable, or appears to be unable, to be Iinpartial in conducting a

procurement actlon involving a related organization,

Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members must promptly disclose any potential conflict of interest which
may lead to a violation of this palicy to the Seheel-District, Upon discovery of any potential conflict of Interest,

the Seheeolk-District will disclose, in writing, the potential conflict of interest to the appropriate

Federal awarding-agency or, If applicable, the pass-through entity.

m



10/6/24, 3:29 PM BoardDocs® PL

The District will also promptly disclose whenever, in connection with the Federal award (Including any activities or
subawards thereunder), it has credible evidence of the commission of a violatlon of Federai criminal law invelving
fraud, conflict of Interest, bribery, or gratuity violations found In Yitle 18 of the United States Code or a violation of
the civil False Clalms Act (31 U.5.C. 3729-3733). The disclosure must be made In writing to the Federal agency, the
agency's Office of Inspector General, and pass-through entity. The District is also required to report matters related
to recipient integrity and performance In accordance with Appendix X11 of 2 C.F.R. Part 200diselosesin-a-tmely

moenher—albviolatiens-eF-Federal-erimira-awinvelving froud;-bribery-ar-gratuity thotaffect-a-Federalawardto-the
appropriote-Federal-owarding-ageney-or-ifapplicablerthe pass-thraugh-entity,

F. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members found to be In violation of this conflict of Interest policy will be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, as permitted by appilcable Board policy.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The School-District has discretion over the appropriate disciplinary actions. For
example, the Sehoael-District may suspend or terminate the individual’'s employmant, transfer the
indlvidual, end the District’s professional relationship with that individual, or temporarily re-assign the
individual, Al disciplinary actions must be in accordance with applicable Federal, State, and local law, as

well as any collectively bargained agreements,]
Revised 12/21/15

© Neola 20242046

Legal 2 C,FR. 200,112, 200.113, 200.318
M.C.L. 380.634, 380.1805(1)

httos:#ao.boarddocs . comimilonst/Board .nsfiPrivate?onan&lnalnd an



10/9/24, 3:29 PM

Book
Section
Title
Code
Status

Adopted

Last Revised

BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMURITY SCHOOLS

Palicy Manual

Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions
Copy of CONFLICT OF INTEREST

po4110 - CH/IR 20241008

August 20, 2007

May 16, 2016

Revised Policy - Vol. 38, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revislons

4110 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Staff members, officers, and agents shall perform their official dutles in a manner free from confiict of Interest. To this end:

A. The maintenance of unusually high standards of honesty, integrity, impartiality, and professional conduct by
the Seheel-District’s Board members, employees, officers, and agents is essential to ensure the proper performance
of school business as well as to earn and keep public confidence in the Sehesl-District.

To accamplish this, the Board of Education has adopted the following guldelines which apply to all District -

employees, officers, and-agents, and Board membersineludirg-members-of-the-Board to assure that conflicts of
interest do not occur. These guidelines are not intended to be all-inclusive, not to substitute for good judgment on

the part of all employees, officers, agents, and Board membersend-agents.

1,

N

w

No employee, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall engage In or have a financial or other interest, directly
or indirectly, in any actlvity that conflicts or raises a reasonable question of conflict with the employee's,
officer's, agent's, or Board member'shisther dutles and responsibilities in the schoo! system. When a staff
member determines that the possibility of a personal interest confiict exists, the staff membersthe should,
prior to the matter being considered by the Board or administration, disclose the staff

member'shisther interest (such disclosure shall become a matter of record in the minutes of the Board).

No staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall use thelrkisfher position to benefit
elther themselveshimselffherself or any other Individual or agency apart from the total interest of
the Sehoeal-District,

If the financlal Interest pertains to a proposed contract with the District, the following requirements must be
met,

The staff member, officer, e-agent, or Board member shall disclose the direct financlal interest in the
contract to the Board with such disclosure made a part of the official Board minutes. If thehisfher dlrect
financlal Interest amounts to $250 or more or five percent {5%) or more of the contract cost to the District,
the staff member, officer, er-agent, or Board member shall make the disclosure in one (1) of two (2) ways:

a. In writing, to the Board President at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting at which the vote on
the cantract will be taken. The disclosure shall he made public in the same manner as the Board's

notlces of its public meetings. (See Bylaw 0165)

b, By announcement at a meeting at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting at which a vote on the
contract Is to be taken. The staff member, officer, eagent, or Board member must use this method of
disclosure if thehisther-financlal interest amounts to $5,000 or more,

117

hitmmillnn hnnedidnnn rnraleailnnnallOnned anfiDdinbaBanman B lanind



10/9/24, 3:29 PM BoardDacs® PL.

B.

n

4. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members shall not engage in business, private practice of thelr
profession, the rendering of services, or the sale of goods of any type where advantage Is taken of any
professional relationship the employee, officer, agent, or Board memberthey may have with any student,
client, or parents of such students or clients in the course of the employee’s, officer's, agent's, or Board
member'stheir employment or professional relationship with the SehoslDistrict,

Included, by way of Hlustration rather than limitatlon, are the following:
a. the provision of any private lessons or services for a fee

b, the use, sale, or Improper divuiging of any privileged information about a student or client gained In
the course of the employee's, officer's, er-agent’s, or Board member's employment or professional
relationship with the District through histher-access to Sehool-Distrlct records

c. the referral of any student or client for lessons or services to any private business or professional
practitioner if there s any expectation of reciprocaf referrals, sharing of fees, or other remuneration

for such referrals

d. the requirement of students or clients to purchase any private goods or services provided by an
employee, officer, er-agent, or Board member, or any business or professional practitioner with whom
any employee, officer, er-agent, or Board member has a financlal or other relationship, as a condition
of receiving any grades, credits, promotlons, approvals, or recommendations

5. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members shall not make use of materials, equipment, or facfiities
of the Seheel-District In private practice. Examples would be the use of facilities before, during, or after
regular business hours for service to private practice clients, or the checking out of items from an
instructional materlals center for private practice,

Should exceptions to this policy be niecessary in order to provide services to students or clients of the
Sehesl-District, alf such exceptions will be made known to the employee's, officer's or agent’s supervisor and will be
disclosed to the Superintendent before entering into any private relationship.

. No employee, officer, agent, or Board member with a real or apparent confiict of Interest may participate In the

selection, award, or administration of & contract supported by the Federal award. A conflict of interest includes when
the employee, officer, agent, or Board member, any member of their immediate family, their parlnet; or an
organization that employs or is about to employ any of the partles indicated herein, has a financial or other Interest
In or a tanglble personal benefit from an entity considered for a contract. Employees;-officersr-and-agents-cantiet
participate-in-the-selecon—award,oradministrationofa-eentraet-suppeorted-by-a-Federal-grantfawardifsthe-has-o
real-or-apparentconflick of-interestSueha-conflickofinterestwould-arise-whentheemplovee;officeroarugentany
memberofhisther immedinte-fomityristherpartrer-orarorganieation-which-empleys-er-isabsut-to-empley-any-of
the-parHes-deseribed-n-this-seetiorhasafinanclal-oretherinterest-in-er-a-tangible persenal - benefit-from-atirm
constderedforocontrack

Pursuant to Federal rules, the District has set standards for situations where the financial interest Is not substantiai
or the gift Is an unsolicited item of nominal value. For purposes of this section, "nominal value" means that the gift
has a maonetary value of $100 or less.Empleyees;-officers-and-agents-shall-not-sollelt-or-acceptgratuitiestaversror
anything-ef-menctary-velue-fromrcentrectors-or-parties-te-subeontractsinvelved-with-Federal-grant-fundss
Employees;rofficers-and-agents-may—however—accepta-gifeof- unsolicited-itemsof tnominal-value ™ from-a-eontractor
er-party-to-subeontrocts-that do-netinvelve-Federatgrantfunds—For-purpeses-of-this-sectorthorminal-value ' means
that-the gife-bosa-menectary-value-of $180-or-less:

[In accordance with M,C.L. 380.634, the Michigan Department of Education (MDE) adjusts the limits on
the value of gifts that may be accepted from vendors or potential vendors for Intermediate School
District employeeas. The fiscal year 2023-20242021-232 cap for gifts was $7364.]

IfFfothe-extent-that the District has a parent, affillate, or subsldiary organization that is not a State, local
government, o Indlan tribe, the Seheel-District may not conduct a procurement action Involving the parent, affiliate,
or subsldiary organization If the SeheelDistrict Is unable, or appears to be unable, to be impartial in conducting a

procurement action involving a related organization.

Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members must promptly disclose any potential conflict of interest which
may lead to a violation of this policy to the Seheet-District. Upon discovery of any potential conflict of Interest,

the Seheel-District will disclose, In writing, the potential conflict of interest to the appropriate

Federal awarding-agency or, if applicable, the pass-through entity,




1018124, 3:29 PM BoardDocs® PL

The District will also promptly disclose whenever, in connection with the Federal award (Including any actlivities or
subawards thereunder), It has credible evidence of the commission of a violation of Federal criminal law Involving
fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, or gratulty violations found In Title 18 of the Unlted States Code or a violation of
the civll False Claims Act (31 U.S.C, 3729-3733), The disclosure must be made Iin writing to the Federal agency, the
agency’s Office of Inspector General, and pass-through entity, The District Is also required to report matters related
to recipient integrity and performance in accordance with Appendix X11 of 2 C.F.R. Part 200diseloseth-a-tmely

manner—al-vielatons-efFederaleriminaHav-invelving-froud,-briberyor-gratuity-thokaffect-a-Federal-award-to-the
approprote-Federal-awarding-ageney-or-ifapplleablerthe-pass-Hireugh-entity,

F. Employees, officers, and-agents, and Board members found to be in violation of this conflict of interest policy wlll be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, as permitted by applicable Board policy.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The School-District has discration over the appropriate disciplinary actions. For
example, the Schoel-District may suspend or terminate the Individual's employment, transfer the
Individual, end the Disttict’s professional relationship with that individual, or temporarily re-assign the
individual, All disciplinary actions must be in accordance with applicable Federal, State, and local faw, as

well as any collectively bargained agreements,]
Revised 12/21/15

© Neola 202426146

Legal 2 C.FR. 200,112, 200,113, 200.318
M.C.L. 380.634, 380.1805(1)

hips:ifgo boarddocs.com/mifonst/Board. nsi/Private Popen&loging 33




1079724, 3:29 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

Book Pollcy Manuaj

Section Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of GRANT FUNDS

Code po6110 - CH/IR 20241008

Status

Adopted May 19, 2003

Last Revised May 16, 2022

Revised Policy - Voil. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revisions

6110 - GRANT FUNDS

It Is the objective of the Board of Education to provide equal educational opportunities for all students within the District.
Government agencles, as well as foundations, businesses, and Individuals, periodically offer both human and materlal
resources to the Dlstrict that would benefit students and the educational program. Therefore, it Is the intent of the Board to
consider grant proposals and applications for thelr potential to enhance educational opportunities, the educational

environment, and the physical and mental growth for each student.

The Superintendent shall review new Federal education legislation and prepare proposals for programs the
Superintendents#e deems would be of ald to the students of this District, The Superintendent shall approve each such
proposal prior to Its submission, and the Board shall approve all grants resulting from such proposals.

The Board regards avallable Federa! funds of ald to local school districts and communities as a public trust, The Boardi
forblds the use of Federal monles for partisan political activities and for any use that would not be in accordance with

Federal regulations and guidelines.

No Federa! funds received by the District shall be used (1) to develop or distribute materials, or operate programs or
courses of Instruction directed at youth, that are deslgned to promote or encourage sexual activity, whether homosexual or
heterosexual; (2) to distribute or to aid In the distribution by any organization of legally obscene materials to minors on
schaol grounds; (3) to provide sex education or HIV-prevention education in schools unless that instruction Is age-
appropriate and includes the health benefits of abstinence; or (4) to operate a program of contraceptive distribution in

schools,
Grant Proposal Development
A. All grant proposals must support at jeast one (1) Bistrict goal ar priority.

B. For projects where grant funds will not cover the entire cost of project Implementation, additional fund sources must
be identifled, documented, and approved during the Internal review process.

Grant Proposal Intarnal Review
Each grant proposal shall be reviewed and approved by the Superintendent prior to submission to the funding source.

Mandatory Disclosures
The District must promptly disclose whenever they have credible evidence of a viofation of Federal criminal law potentially
affecting the Federal award including, but not limited to, any fraud, embezziement, bribery, gratuity violations, Identity

hitos:Hao.boarddocs.consfmbfonst/Board. hsifPrivate?onenéloalnf 174



10/9/24, 3:29 PM BoardDocs® PL.

theft, or sexual assault and exploitation, or a violation of the civil False Clalms Act (2 C.F.R. 175.105) regarding the
obligation to report credible information related to conduct prohibited by the Trafficking Victlms Protection Act, 22 U.S.C.

7104c.

The disclosure must be made in writing to the Federal agency, the agency's Office of Inspector General, and the pass-
through entity.

Whistleblower Protections

An employee of the District may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwlise discriminated agalnst as a reprisai for disclosing
Information to the appropriate agency or individual that the employee reasonably believes Is evidence of gross
mismanagement of a Federal contract or grant, a gross waste of Federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a Federal
contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation
related to a Federal contrack or grant, See Policy 1411/3211/4211 - Whistfeblower Protection and Policy 8900 - Antl-Fraud.

Grant Administration

A, The administration of grants wiil adhere to all applicable Federal, State, local, and grantor rules and regulations,
including the terms and conditions of the Federal awards, as well as District policies and administrative guidelines,

B. The Superintendent is responsible for the efficient and effective administration of grant awards through the
application of saund management practices.

C. The Superintendent is responsible for administering grant funds in a manner consistent with underlylng agreements,
applicable statutes, regulations, and objectives, and the terms and conditions of the grant award.

D. The District, In recognition of its unique combination of staff, facilities, and experience, shall employ internal
controls, including the organizational and management strategles necessary to assure proper and efficlent

adminlstration of grant awards.

E. All Federal funds recelved by the District will be used in accordance with the applicable Federal law and regulations
and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. The Superintendent shall require that each draw of Federal
monles be aflgned with the District's payment process (whether reimbursement, cash advance, or a comblnation). If
funds are permitted to be drawn In advance, all draws will be as close as administratively feasible to the related
program expenditures and that, when restricted, such monles are used to supplement programs and funding and
not to supplant or replace existing programming or current funding.

Maintenance of Effort (MOE) and Malntenance of Equity (MOEquity) requirements of the Federal program will be met
in accordance with the requirements of the specific funded program. The District shall maintain appropriate
documentation and records to substantiate compliance or to justify allowable exceptions, exemptions, or waivers,

F, The Superintendent is authotized to sign related documents for grant administration, including documents required
for submittal of grant proposals.

Financial Management

The financial management of grant funds shail be in compliance with all applicable Federal, State, local, and grantor rules,
regulations, and assurances as well as District policies and administrative guidelines,

The District shall provide for the following:

A. Identification of all Federal awards recelved and expended and the Federal programs under which they were
received. Federal program and Federal award Identification must include, as appllcable, the Assistance Listings title
and number, Federal award identification number, year the Federal award was Issued, and name of the Federal

agency or pass-through entity.%mﬁ%%«%ﬁwm&e&mﬂhwms
mdwhi%em&m&ﬂe&ﬁ%e%mgm%aﬂeﬁé&%eﬁeﬁa&%émmmaﬁm
BW%WMHWH%W&WMR%GMMM&%&%M%I

ageney-and-Rrame-ef-the-pass-thretigh-entity-as-applicables

B. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each Federal award or program in accordance
with the reporting requirements of the grant.

C. Effective control over and accountability for all funds, property, and assets. The District must safeguard all assets
and ensure they are used solely for authorized purposes.&eeerds—thaﬁ—adeq&a&e!ﬁdeat%e—seureeaﬂdmappueaﬁeﬁ
mm&m&mmmmmmmwmmmawmmmm



10/9/24, 3:29 PM

BoardDocs@ PL

amwmwmaewmmﬁwmmmﬁnwwm
supported-by-souree-documentation:

D, WWWHHQM%WMe%WWW
sofeguard-all-assets-and-assure-that-they-are-used-selely-for-autherzed-purpeses:

Further, the District must:

1. establish and malntain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides reasonable assurance

that the District is managing the Federal award in compliance with the U.S. Constitution, Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award;

. comply with the U.S. Constitution, Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal

award;

. evaluate and monitor the District’s compliance with statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the

Federal award; and

, take prompt action when instances of noncompliance ate identified . 4neluding-roncompliancetdentiffed-n

audicAndingss

' MWM@@WW&MM&%WH

%mmmmmaww%magh%&deﬂgﬁﬁmﬁeﬁﬁmmm%pﬂwbk
%m&%ﬁmﬂnﬁ%%maﬂiﬂwmeﬁﬁéﬁmigmﬁwﬁﬂ&eﬁ&%

E. Take reasonable cybersecurity and other measures to safeguard information Including protected personally
identifiable Information (P11} and other types of Information, This also includes information the Federal awarding
agency or pass-through entity designates as sensitive or other information the District conslders sensitive and is
conslstent with applicable Federal, State, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and obligattons of
confidentiailty.mmmmmmaéwammeh—%&m

F, Actual expenditures or outlays must be compared with budgeted amounts for each Federal award.

G. Recordkeeping and written procedures to the extent required by Federal, State, local, and grantor ruies and
regulations pertaining to the grant award and accountability Including, but not limited to, the following areas:

i. cash management in accordance with 2 C.FR, 200,305

2. allowabllity of costs in accordance with subpart E and the terms and conditions of the Federal award
3, confiict of interest

4, procurement

5. equipment management

6. conducting technical evaluations of proposals and selecting reciplents
7. compensation and fringe benefits

8. travel

H, Disclosure of any potential conflict of Interest and all mandatory violatlon disclosures potentially affecting the Federal
award/grant to the Federal awarding agency or pass-through agency in accordance with applicable Federal policy.

1. Insurance coverage for real property and equipment, if applicable, equlvalent to such property owned by the District.

Audit Requirements

A shngle or program-specifi
$1,000,000 or more In Federal awards
$1,000,000, the District may be exemp
Instances, the District"

¢ audit {2 C.F.R, 200,514, 2 C.F.R. 200.507) is required for any year If the District expends
during the District's fiscal year. When Federal awards expended are fess than

t from Federal audit requirements (2 C.F.R. 200.501) for that year. However, in alt
s records must be avatlable for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-

through entity, and the Government Accountability Office {GAO).

The District shall:



10/9/24, 3:29 PM BoardDacs® PL

A, arrange for the audit required in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.509 and make sure that the audit s properly
performed and submitted in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.512;

B, prepare financial statements Including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards In accordance with 2 C,RR.
200.510;

C, promptly follow up and take corrective action on audit findings, including preparing a summary schedule of priot
audit findings and a corrective action plan (2 C.F.R. 200,511); and

D, provide the auditor access to persennel, accounts, books, records, supporting documentation, and any other
information needed for the auditor to petform the audit,

Certifications and Racords Ratention

Financial reports must include a certification, signed by an official who Is authorized to legally bind the District. The
certification should state:

"I certify to the best of my knowledge and bellef that the Information provided hereln is true, compiete, and accurate. I am
aware that the provision of false, fictitlous, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material fact, may subject me
to criminal, civil, or administrative consequences including, but not limited to, violations of U.S, Code Title 18, Sections 2,

1001, 1343 and Title 31, Sectlons 3729-3730 and 3801-3812"

Each certification must be malntained pursuant to the requirements of 2 C.F.R, 200,334, The District shall retain all Federal
award records for three (3) vears from the date of submission of the final financlal repart,

Program Ihcome

Program Income means gross Income earned by a grant recipient that Is directly generated by a supported activity or
earned as a result of the Federal award during the grant’s period of performance.

It includes, but is not limited to, Income from fees for services performed, the use or rental of real or personal property
acquired under Federal awards, the sale of commodities or items fabricated under a Federal award, license fees and
royaities on patents and copyrights, and princlpal and interest on loans made with Federal award funds, Interest earned on
advances of Federa! funds Is not program income, Except as otherwise provided In Federal statutes, regulations, or the
terms and conditions of the Federal award, program income does not include rebates, credits, discounts, and interest
earned on any of them, Additlonally, taxes, speclal assessments, levies, fines, and similarethersueh reventes ralsed by a

recipient are not program income-tunless-the-reventes-are-specifically-identifledn-the Federal-nward-or-Federal-awarding

ageney-regulations-as-prograrm-ineome. ProceedsFinally-preeeeds from the sale of real property, equipment, or supplies are
not program income. Finally, license fees and royalties for copyrighted material, patents, patent applications, trademarks,

and Inventions made under the Federal award subject to 37 C.F.R. Part 401 are not program income,

Unless it has recelved prior approval to use a different method or the terms and conditions of the grant authorize a different
method, the District uses the deduction method of accounting for program income. Under the deduction method, program
income Is deducted from total allowable costs to determine the net aliowable costs. Program income will only be used for
current costs unless the District is otherwise directed by the Federal avwarding-agency or pass-through entity.

2 C.FR. 200.56, 200.71, 200.77, 200.80, 200,112, 200,302, 200.307
2 C.kR. 200.309, 200.310, 200,313, 200.318-.320, 200.343(b}8&(e)

2 C.FR. 200.501-51}
20 U,5.C. 7906

34 C.F.R. 75.707, 76,563, 76.565, 76.707
Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments

Revised 8/20/07
Revised 12/17/12
Revised 12/21/15
Revised 5/16/16

© Neola 20242022

Legal 2 C.FR. 200.56, 200.71, 200.77, 200,80, 200.112, 200.302, 200.307
2 C.ER. 200.309, 200.310, 200.313, 200.318-.320, 200.343(b)&(e)
34 C.ER, 75,707, 76.563, 76.565, 76.707

20 U.8.C, 7906
Compllance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments

hitps:Hao.boarddocs.comfmifonstBoard .nsiPrivate?open&ioaind 414



10/9/24, 3:28 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMUHITY SCHOOLS

Book Policy Manual

Sectlon Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of INTERNAL CONTROLS

Code po6lll - CH/IR 20241008

Status

Adopted December 21, 2015

Last Revised May 16, 2016

Revised Policy - Vol, 39, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revisions

6111 - INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Superintendent shall establish, document, and maintain effective Internal control over financlal grants and awards that

provide reasonable assurance that the program and funds are managed in compiiance with the U.S,
Constitution, applicable-statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the awards. The District will have a process
that provides reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the following objectives:

A. effectiveness and efficlency of operations;
B. rellabllity of reporting for Internal and external use; and

C. compliance with applicable laws and regulations,

These internal controls should comply with the guldance in "Standards for Intetnal Control in the Federal Government”
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the "Internal Control-Integrated Framework” issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commisslon (COS0O).

The internal contrals must provide reasonable assurance that transactions are propetly recorded and accounted for In crder
to permit the preparation of reliable financial statements and Federal reports; maintain accountability over assets; and
demonstrate compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. The internal
controls must also provide reasonable assurance that these transactions are executed In compllance with Federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award that could have a direct and material effect on a Federal
award, as well as any other Federal statutes and regulations that are identified in the Compliance Supplement, Finally, the
District’s Internal controls must provide reasonable assurance that all Federal funds, property, and other assets are

safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
The District shall:

A. comply with the U.S. Constitution, Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditlons of the
Federal awardawards;

8. evaluate and monltor Its compliance with statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditlons of the award;

C. take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identifled-ineluding-rencemplionce-identified-in-audit

findings; and

htos: /oo .boarddocs.com/mifonstBoard.nsfiPrivate?onan&loaind 112



10/9/24, 3.28 PM BoardDocs® PL

D. take reasonable cybersecurity and other measures to safeguard protected Information Including protected
"personally identifiable information" (P11) and other types of information. This also Includes Information the Federal
agency or pass-through entity deslgnates as sensitive or other information the District considers sensitive and is
consistant with applicable Federal, State, local, and tribal laws regarding privacy and responsibliity over

confidentiality*persenaliy-identifiable-information P} and-otheipformation-the-awarding-ageney-orpass—

through-entity-destgnatesas-sensitive or the-Distidckconsiders-sensitive-consistentwith-applieable-Federalstatey
{ocal-and-trtbalaws-and-Bistrict-policles-regarding-privaey-and-obligations-of-confidentiality

PIl is defined at 2 C.ER. 200.12868:79 as "Informatlon that can be used to distinguish or trace an
Individual’s identity, elther alone or when combined with other personal or identifying Information that is

iinked or linkable to a specific individual,”

However, the definition of PII is not attachedanchered to any single category of Information or technology. Rather, it
requires a case-by-case assessment of the specific risk that an Individual can be Jdentified.

Suggested resources:

A. "Standards for Internal Control In the Federal Government” issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States;

B, "Internal Control Integrated Framework" (commonly referred to as the Grean Book) Issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission;

C. "Compliance Supplement” issued by the U,S, Office of Management and Budget; and

D. Internal control guidance issued by the U.S. Department of Education.

2 C.FR. 200.1

2 C.RR. 200.63—62
2 C.FR. 200,303

® Neola 20242836

Legal 2 C.FR. 200.61-.62
2 C.F.R. 200.79
2 C.F.R, 200.303




10/9/24, 3:29 PM BoardDocs® PL

/‘o
ONSTED

GOMMUNITY SCHODLS
Book Policy Manual
Section Vol. 39, No, 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of CASH MANAGEMENT OF GRANTS
Code po6112 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted May 16, 2016

Revised Policy - Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revisions

6112 - CASH MANAGEMENT OF GRANTS

In arder to provide reasonable assurance that all assets, including Federal, State, and local funds, are safeguarded agalnst
waste, loss, unauthorized use, or misappropriation, the Superintendent shall implement Internal controls in the area of cash

management,

The District's payment methods shall minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds from the Federal
agency or the Michigan Depattment of Education (MDE) (pass-through entity} and disbursement by
the District, regardiess of whether the payment Is made by electronic fund transfer, or issuance or redemption of checks,

warrants, or payment by other means.
The District shall use forms and procedures required by the grantor agency or pass-through entity to request payment. The

District shall request grant fundfurds payments in accordance with the provisions of the grant. Additionally, the District’s
financlal management systems shall meet the standards for fund control and accountability as established by the awarding

agency.

The Superintendent is authorized to submit payment tequests as often as necessary when electronic fund transfers are
used or at least monthly when electronic transfers are not used. Seereq&est-s—ﬁeﬁad-vaﬂee—ﬁaymeﬁts-aﬁé—mimbafsemeﬁts—aé

{east-monthly-when-electvonicfund-transfers-are nobused—and-as-often-as-deemed-approprate-when-eleckronie-transfers
are-usedin-accordonce-with-the previsions—of the Electronic Fund Transfer Act (15 U.5.C, 1693-1693r).

When the District uses a cash advance payment method, the following standards shall apply:

A. The timing and amount of the advance payment requested mustwil be as close as Is administratively feasible te the
actual disbursement by the District for direct program or project costs and the proportionate share of any allowable

Indirect costs.

B. The District shall make timely paymentspayment to contractors In accordance with contract provisions,

C. Whenever possible, advance payment requests by the District must be consolidated to cover anticlpated cash needs
for all Federal awards received by the recipient from the awarding Federal agency or MDE,

D. Iffe-the-extent avallable, the District shall disburse funds available from program income (including repayments to a
revolving fund), rebates, refunds, contract settiements, audit recoverles, and Interest earned on Federalsueh funds
hefore requesting additional cash payments. [DRAFTING NOTE: It is generally recommended that the District
request that pragram income be added to their total award, but separating program income out and

then noting how to address these applicable cradits.]

E. The District shall account for the receipt, obligation, and expenditure of funds.
F. Advance payments will be deposited and maintalned In insured accounts whenever possible.

G, Advance payments will be maintained in interest bearing accounts unless the following apply:



10/9/24, 3:29 PM

H.

i.

J.

BoardDocs® PL

1. The District recelves less than $250,0004208;668 In Federal fundingawards per yearn

2, The best reaserably-avallable interest-bearing account would not reasonably be expected to earn Interest in
excess of $500 per year on Federal cash balances.

3. The depositary would require an average or minimum balance so high that it would not be feasibie within the
expected Federal and non-Federal cash resources.

4, A foreign government or banking system prohibits or preciudes Interest bearing accounts,

5.
An interest-bearing account Is not readily accessible (for example, due to public or political unrest in a

foreign country).

pursuant to Federal law and regulations, the District may retain Interest earned in an amount up to $500 per year
for administrative costs. Any additional interest earned on Federal funds must be returnedadvereepayrments

depostted-in-interest-beating-neceunts-must-beremitted annually to the Department of Health and Human Services
Payment Management System ("PMS") through an electronic medium using elther the Automated Clearing House

{"ACH"} network or a Fedwire Funds Service payment,—Remittanees-shalHneludepertinent-information-of-the-payee
ahd-natore-ef paymentinthenemo-area-(ofierreferred-to-as-"addenda-records-by-FinanciaHnstitutions}-as that

will-essisk-in-the-Hmely-pesting-of-interest-earned-on-Federal-funds—Pertinent-detalisineludethe-Payee-Account
Number{"PAND- - the-payment-originated-from-PMS-or-Agerey-information it the-payment-originated-from
Autemated-Standard-Applicationfor PoymerntCASARY - Natlonal-Gelence-Foundation-{(UNSFY:-or-anetherFederat
agency-payment-systerms

All interest in excess of $500 per year must be returned to PMS regardless of whether the District was pald through
PMS. Instructions for returning interest can be found at https://pms.psc.gov/arant-recipients/returning-funds-
interest,htm!,

All other Federal funds must be returned to the payment system of the Federal agency. Returns should follow the
instructions provided by the Federal agency. All returns to PMS should follow the Instructions provided at
https://pms.psc.gov/grant-recipients/returning-funds-interest.html.

Applicable Laws, Regulations, and Guldance:
2 C.FR. 200.305

© Neola 20242616

Legal

2 C.FR, 200.305



10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

%
ONSTED

COMMUKITY SCHOOLS

Book Pollcy Manual

Section Vol, 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions

Title Copy of COST PRINCIPLES ~ SPENDING FEDERAL FUNDS

Code po6114 - CH/JR 20241008 - MISSING LETTER 1TEMS UNDER "SELECTED ITEMS OF
COST" SECTION

Status

Adopted May 16, 2016

Last Revised May 16, 2022

Revised Policy ~ Vol. 39, No, 1 -~ EDGAR/UGG Revisions

6114 - COST PRINCIPLES - SPENDING FEDERAL FUNDS

The Superintendent is responsible for the efficient and effective adminlstration of grant funds through the appilcation of
sound management practices. Such funds shall be administered in a manner consistent with all applicable Federal, State
and local laws, the assoclated agreements/assurances, program objectives and the specific terms and conditions of the

grant award.

Cost Principles

A cost is reasonable if it does not exceed an amount that a prudent person would incur under the circumstances prevailing
when the decision was made to incur the cost, Except where otherwlse authorized by statute, costs shall meet the following

general criteria In order fo be allowable under Federal awards:

A. Be necessary and reasonable for proper and efficient performance and administration of the Federal award and be
allocable thereto under these principles.

To determine whether a cost is reasonable, consideration shall be glven to:

1. whether a cost is atype-generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the operation ef-the-Bistrickor
the proper and efficient performance of the Federa! award;

2, the restralnts or requirements Imposed by such factors as sound business practices, arm’s length bargaining,
Federal, State, local, tribal, and other faws and regulations;

3. market prices for comparable costsgesds-erserviees for the geographlic area;

4. whether the Individuals concerned acted with prudence in the clrcumstances considering thelr
responslbllities to the District, its employees, Its students or membership (if applicable), the public at large,

and the Federal Government; and

5, the degree to which the cost represents a deviation from the Board of Education’s estabiished written policies
and procedures for incurring costswhetherthe-eostrepresents-any-significant-deviation-fromthe-established
practicesor-Beard-of-Edveationpoliey-which-ray-urjustiffebly-inerease-the-expense.

Whlle Federal regulations do not provide specific descriptions of what satisfles the "necessary" element beyond Its
incluslen In the reasonableness analysls above, whether a cost Is necessary is determined based on the needs of the
program. Specifically, the expenditure must be necessary to achleve an important program objectlve, A key aspect

hitps:f/go.boarddocs.com/mlfonst/Board.nsfiPrivate?open&loging 1/5



10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

O

12

x

in determining whether a cost is necessary is whether the District can demonstrate that the cost addresses an
existing need, and can prove it,

When determining whether a cost Is necessary, consideration may be given to whether:
1, the cost Is needed for the proper and efficlent performance of the grant program;
2. the cost Is identified in the approved budget or application;

3. there Is an educational beneflt assoclated with the cost;

4, the cost aligns with Identified needs based on results and findings from a needs assessment;

5, the cost addresses program goals and objectives and Is based on program data.

A cost is allocable to the Federal award If the cost isgeeds-er-servicestnvelved-are-chargeable-or assignable

to thatthe Federal award in accordance with the relative benefit received. This standard is met If the cost: is Incurred
speclfically for the Federal award; benefits both the Federal award and other work of the District and can be
distrlbuted In proportions that may be approximated using reasonable methods; orend Is necessary to the overall
operation of the District and Is assignable in part to the Federal award in accordance with these cost

principles-mentisred-here,

. Conform to any limitations or exclusions set forth in the cost principles in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 or In the terms and

condltions of the Federal award, including prohibitions regarding costs incurred for telecommunications and video
survelllance services or equipment or as a substantial or essentlal component of any system or as critical technology
as part of any system, Such prohibition also applies to funds generated as program income, indirect cost recoveries,

or to satisfy cost share requirements,

Be consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to both Federally-financed and other activities of the
District.

Be accorded conslstent treatment. A cost cannot be assigned to a Federal award as a direct cost if any other cost
incurred for the same purpose In fike clrcumstances has been allocated to a Federal award as an indirect cost under

another award,

. Be determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Be representative of actual cost, net of all applicable credits or offsets,

The term "applicable credits" refers to those transactions that offset or reduce direct or indirect costsreceiptsor

reductions-ofexpenditures-that-operate-te-ofiset-erreduce-expense-items allocable to the Federal award. Typical
examples of such transactions are: purchase discounts; rebates or allowances; recoveries or Indemntities on

losses; insurance refunds or rebates; and adjustments of overpayments or erroneous charges. To the extent that
such credits accruing to or received by the DislrictState relating to the Federal award, they shall be credited to the
Federal award, either as a cost reduction or a cash refund, as appropriate,

Be not Included as a match or cost-share requirements of any other Federally-financed program In either the current
or a prior period, unless the specific Federal program authorizes Federal costs to be treated as such,

Be adequately documented:

1, In the case of personal services, the Superintendent shall implement a system for District personnel to
account for time and efforts expended on grant funded programs ta assure that only permissible personnel

expenses are allocated;

2. In the case of ather costs, all recelpts and other Involce materials shali be retained, along with any
documentation Identifylng the need and purpose for such expenditure If not otherwise cleat.

Admilnistrative closeout costs may be Incurred untll the due date of the final report(s). If incurred, these costs must
be liquidated prior to the due date of the final report(s) and charged to the final budget perfod of the award unless

otherwise specified by the Federal agency.

Al other costs must beBe incurved during the approved budget period. At its discretion, the Federal agency is
authorized to walve prior written approvals to carry forward unobligated balances to subsequent budget periods,



10/6124, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

The budget period means the time interval from the start date of a funded pottion of an award to the end date of
that funded portion durlng which reclpients are authorized to Incur financlal obligationsearry-eub-autherized-werkoand
expend the funds awarded, including any funds carried forward or other revisions pursuant to 2 C.RR, 200,308the
law. Prior written approval from the Federal awarding-agency or State pass-through entity may be required to carry
forward unobligated balances to subsequent budget perfods unless waived.

Selected Items of Cost

The District shall follow the rules for selected items of cost at 2 C.E.R. Part 200, Subpart E when charging these speclfic
expenditures to a Federal grant, When applicable, District staff shall check costs against the selected ltems of cost
requirements to ensure the cost s allowable. In additton, State, District and program-specific rules, including the terms and
conditions of the award, may deem a cost as unallowable and District personnel shall follow those rules as well,

The following rules of allowability must apply to equipment and other capltal expenditures:

Capital expenditures for general purpose equipment, buildings, and land are allowableas direct charges, but
only with the prior written approval of the Federal agency or pass-through entity,

Capltal expenditures for special purpose equipment are aflowable as direct costs, provided that items with a unit
cost of $10,000 or more have the prior written approval of the Federal agency ot pass-through entity.

Capital expenditures for improvements to land, buildings, or equipment which materially increase thelr value or
useful life are allowableu as a direct cost but only with the prior writken approval of the Federal agency or pass-

through entity.

All Federally-funded contracts In excess of $2,000 related to construction, alterations, repairs, painting, decorating,
etc. must comply with Davis-Bacon prevalling wage requirements,

Allowabillty of depreciation on buildings, capital improvements, and equipment shall be In accordance with 2 C.F.R.
200,436 and 2 C,F.R. 200,465,

When approved as a direct cost by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity under Sections A-C, capital
expenditures will be charged in the period in which the expenditure is incurred or as otherwise determined

appropriate and negotlated with the Federal awarding agency.

The District may claim the unamortized portion of any equipment written off as a result of a change In capitalization
levels by continuing to claim the otherwise allowable depreciation on the equlpment, or by amortizing the amount to
be written off over a perlod of years negotiated with the cognizant agency for Indirect cost.

If the District Is Instructed by the Federal agency to otherwlse dispose of or transfer the equipment, the costs of
such disposal or transfer are allowable.

Equipment and other capital expenditures are unallowable as Indirect costs,

Statutory requirements may limit the allowability of costs. Any costs that exceed the maximum amount allowed by statute
may not be charged to the Federal award. Only the amount allowable by statute may be charged to the Federal award. -

Payments made for costs determined to be unallowable hy the Federal agency, cognizant agency for indirect costs, or pass-
through entity must be refunded (with interest) to the Faderal Government.

Prior Written Approval

To avold subsequent disallowance or dispute based on unreasonableness or nenallocabllity, the Districk may seek the prior
written approval of the Federal agency (o, for indlrect costs, the cognizant agency for indirect costs) before incurring the
cost. The absence of prior written approval on any element of cost wil not, in itself, affect the reasonableness or allocability

of that cost unless prior approval Is specifically required for allowabiiity.

Cost Compliance

The Superintendent shall require that grant program funds are expended and are accounted for consistent with the
requirements of the specific program and as ldentified in the grant application. Compliance monitoring Includes accounting
for direct or indirect costs and reporting them as permitted or required by each grant. Costs incurred for the same purpose
in like circumstances shall be treated consistently as elther direct or indirect costs, but may net be double charged or

inconsistently charged as both.

Deterntining Whether a Cost is Direct or Indirect;

The association of costs with a Federa! award (rather than the nature of the procurement transactlon) determines whether
costs are direct or Indirect, Costs incurred for the same purpose In ke circumstances must be treated conslstently as direct
or indirect,

i/a

hitnaslnn hnarddare samimilanctiRaard neflDivataPananRianind



10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

A. Direct costs are those costs that can be Identified specifically with a particular final cost objective, such as a Federal
award, or other Internally or externally funded activity, or that can be directly assigned to such activitles relatively

easily with a high degree of accuracy.

These costs may include; salaries and fringe benefits of employees working directly on a grant-funded project;
purchased services contracted for performance under the grant; travel of employees working directly on a grant-
funded project; materials, supplies, and equipment purchased for use on a speclfic grant; program evaluation costs
or other Institutional service operations; and infrastructure costs directly attributable to the program {such as long
distance telephone calls specific to the program, etc.) Direct costs may also Include capitat expenditures if approved
by the Federal agency or pass-through entity, as well as capltal expenditures for speclal purpose equipment with a

unit cost of less than $10,000.

If a cost benefits two (2) or more projects or activities in proportions that can be determined without undue effort or
cost, the cost must be allocated to the projects based on the proportional benefit.

Indirect costs are those that have been Incuried for a common or joint purpose benefitting more than one cost
objective, and not readily assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefitted, without effort disproportionate to
the results achieved, Costs incurred for the same purpose in iike circumstances shall be treated consistently as

elther direct or indirect costs,

@

These costs may include; general data processing, human resources, utifity costs, maintenance, accounting, etc.

Federal education programs with supplement not supplant provisions must use a restricted indirect cost rate. In a
restricted rate, Indirect costs are limited to general management costs, General management costs do not Include
divisional administration that is {imited to one component of the District, the governing body of the District,

compensation of the Superintendent, compensation of the chlef executive officer of any component of the District,

and operation of the Immediate offices of these officers,

The salaries of administrative and clerical staff should normally be treated as Indirect costs, Direct charging of these
costs may be appropriate only If all of the following conditions are met:

1. Administrative or clerical services are Integral ta a project or activity.
2. Indlviduals Involved can be specifically identified with the project or activity.

3. Such costs are explicitly included in the budget or have the priot written approval of the Federal
awarding-agency.

4. The costs are not also recovered as indirect costs,

Where a Federal pregram has a specific cap on the percentage of administrative costs that may be charged to a grant, that
cap shall Include all direct administrative charges as well as any recovered Indirect charges.

Effort should be given to identify costs as direct costs whenever practical, but allocation of indirect costs may be used
where not prohibited and where Indirect cost allocatlon is approved ahead of time by the Michigan Department of Education
{MDE} or the pass-through entity (Federal funds subject to 2 C.F.R. Part 200 pertalning to determining indirect cost

allocation).

Timely Obligation of Funds

Financial obligations are orders placed for property and services, contracts and subawards made, and similar transactions
that require payment under a Federal award that will result in expenditures by a reciplent or subrecipient under a Federal

award.-Thisterm-isused-when-referencing-o-reciplent's-orsubrecipients-use-of funds-undera-Federaloward:

The fallowing st iffustrates when funds are determined to be obligated under the U.S, Department of Education ("USDOE")
regulations:

If the cbligation is for:

A, Acqulisition of property - on the date which the District makes a binding written commitment to acquire the property.

B. Personal services by an employee of the District - when the services are performed.




1019124, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

C. Personal services by a contractor who is not an employee of the District - on the date which the District makes a
binding written commitment to obtain the services.

D. Performance of work other than personal services - on the date when the District makes a binding written
commitment to obtain the work,

E. Publtc utility services - when the District recelves the services,
F. Travel - when the travel Is taken,

G. Rental of property - when the District uses the property.

H. A pre-agreement cost that was properly approved by the Secretary (USDOE) under the cost principles in 2 C.F.R.
Part 200, Subpart E - Cost Principles - on the first day of the project period,

Period of Performance

Ali financial obligations must occur during the period of performance, Period of performance means the time interval
between the start and end date of a Federal award, which may incjude one (1) or more budget periods. Identification of the
period of performance shall be specific to the Federal award and consistent with 2 C.F.R. 200,211 and does not commit the
Federal agency to fund the award beyond the currently approved budget period.Peried-of-performance-menns-the-total
estirated-time nterval-bebween-the-storofan-initial-Federal-award-when-the Dlstricts permitted-to-carryoaut-the-work
authorized-by-the-grant-ond-the-planned-end-dote-The period-of performance-may-inelude-ere {1 ermere funded-portions
er-budgetperiods: The perlod of performance Is dictated by statute and wiil be indicated In the grant award notification
{"GAN"}. As a general rule, State-administered Federal funds are available for obligation within the year that Congress
appropriates the funds for. However, given the unique nature of educational Institutlons, for many Federal education grants,
the period of performance Is twenty-seven (27) months, This maximum period Includes a fifteen (15) month perlod of inltial
avallability, ptus a twelve (12) month period for carryover. For direct grants, the period of performance is generally
identified in the GAN. Note, however, that certain Federal awards have specific requirements that restrict the use of funds

beyond the initial perlod of performance.

In the case of a State~administered grant, financial obligations under a grant may not be made until the application is
approved or Is In substantislly approvable form, whichever s Jater, In the case of a direct grant, a grantee may use grant
funds only for obligations it makes during the grant perlod, unless an agreement exists with the awarding-agency or the

pass-through entity (e.g., MDE) to reimburse for pre-approval expenses.,

If a Federal awarding-agency or pass-through entity approves an extension, or if the District extends under C.F.R.
200,308(e){2), the Perlod of Performance wiil be amended to end at the cormpletion of the extension, If a termination
occurs, the Perlod of Performance will be amended to end upon the effective date of termination, If a renewal is Issued, a

distinct Perlod of Performance wili begin,

For both State-administered and direct grants, regardiess of the perlod of avallability, the District shall liquidate all financlal

obligations incurred under the award not later than ninety (90) calendar days after the conclusion of the period of
performance of the award (or an earlier date as agreed upon by MDE and the Districtend-ef the-funding-period-tnless-en

e*EEﬁsﬁﬁ—FS—at}l‘hﬁH-Eed Any funds not obllgated within the period of performance ar liguldated within the appropriate
timeframe are said to lapse and shall be returned to the awarding-agency. Consequently, the District shali closely monitor

grant spending throughout the grant cycle,

Revised 12/20/21
Revised 6/21/21

© Neola 20242021

Legal 2 C.FR. 200.344(b), 200.403-.407, 200.413(a)-(c), 200.430(a), 200.431(a},200.458

2 C.ER, 200.474(b)
34 C.F.R, 76.707-.708(a), 75.703




10/8/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

/‘4
ONSTED

COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
Book Policy Manual
Section Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of PROCUREMENT - FEDERAL GRANTS/FUNDS
Caode po6325 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted May 16, 2016
Last Revised June 17, 2024

Revised Policy - Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revisions

6325 - PROCUREMENT ~ FEDERAL GRANTS/FUNDS

Pracurement of all supplies, materials, equipment, and services paid for from Federal funds or District matching funds shall
be made In accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local statutes and/or regulations, the terms and conditions of

the Federal grant, Board of Education policies, and adminlstrative procedures.

The Superintendent shali have and use a procurement and contract administration system In accordance with the USDOE
requirements {2 C.f.R. 200.317-.326), including affirmative steps for smafl businesses,and minority businesses and
women's business enterprises, veteran-owned businesses, and labor surplus ayea firms for the administration and
management of Federal grants and Federally-funded programs, The District shall maintaln overslght that requires
cantractors te perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders,
Except as otherwise noted, procurement transactions shall conform to the provislons of the District’s dacumented general

purchasing Policy 6320 and AG 6320A.

When required by Federal program legistation, all Federally-funded contracts in excess of $2,000 related to construction,
alteration, repalrs, painting, decorating, etc, must comply with Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements.

All District employees, officers, and agents who have purchasing autherity shall ablde by the standards of conduct covering
conflicts of interest and governing the actions of its employees, officers, and agents engaged In the selection, award, and
administration of contracts as established In Paolicy 1130, Policy 3110 and Policy 4110 - Conflict of Interest,

The District will avold acquilsition of unnecessary or duplicative items. ConslderationAdditlenaily-eensideration shall be given
to consolidating or breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase, When appropriate, an analysis shall
be made between leasing and purchasing property or equipment to determine the most economical approach.;-and-where
appropratean-analysis-shel-be-made-oflease-versuspurchasealternatives-and-any-stherapproprate-analysis-to
determine-the-mesteconemical-approachs These conslderations are given as part of the process to determine the
allowabliity of each purchase made with Federal funds,

Jo foster greater economy and efficlency, the District may enter into State and local Intergovernmental agreements where
appropriate for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services.

Competition

All procurement transactions under thefor-the-acquisitien-of-property-erserdees-reguired-undera Federal award paid for
from Federal funds or District matching funds shall be conducted in a manner that providesenesurages full and open
competition and that is in accordance with 2 C.RR. Part 200, good administrative practice, and sound business

judgment. To ensurein-order-to-promeote objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, the



10/8/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

District shall exclude any contractor that has developed or drafted specifications, requirements, statements of work, or
invitations for bids errequestsforprepeosalsfrom competition for such procurements,

Examples of situations that may restrict competition include, but are not limited toSeme-of-the-sitoations—censidered-to-be
restrictive-of-competition-irelude-butare-net-limited terthe following:

A. unreasonable requirements en firms tp-erder-for them to qualify to do business;
B. unnecessary experience and excessive honding requirements;

C. noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affillated companies;
D, noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer contracts;

E£. organlzational conflicts of interest;

F. specification of only a "brand name" product Instead of allowing for an "or equal" product to be offered and
describing the performance or other relevant requirements of the procurement; and

G. any arbitrary action in the procurement process,

Further-the Districtdoesnotusestatutoriiy-er-adminlabativel-lmpeosed StateHocalortribal- geegraphieat-preferences-in
the-evaluation-of-bldsx-er-propesalsy-unless-ty-an-applcable Federal statute-expresshe-mandates-er-encotrages-a-geographie
prefereneer-or-2-the-Districts-contracting-for-arehitectural-and-enginceringservicesinwhich-case-geegraphictoeation
may-be-a-selecton-eriterionprovided-its-applicotontenvesan-oppropriate-pumber-of qualifiedfirmsgiverthe-pature-and
size-of-the-projech-to-competefor-the-contrack:

To the extent that the District uses a pre-gualified list of persons, firms or products to acquire goods and services that are
subject to this policy, the pre-qualified list includes enough qualified sources as to ensure maximum open and free
competition, The District allows vendors to apply for consideration to be placed on the iist continucusly,

The District shall require that all prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products which are used in procurement transactions
are current and include enough qualified sources to provide maximum open competition. When establishing or amending
prequalified lists, the District {or subrecipient) must conslider objective factors that evaluate price and cost to maximize
competition irt nd-include-enough-quaiified-setrees-to-provide-mpdmum-epenand

free-competition. The District shall not preciude potential bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.

To the extent consistent with established practices and legal requirements applicable to the recipient or subreclpient, this
subpart does not prohibit reciplents or subracipients from developing written procedures for procurement transactions that
Incorporate a scoring mechanism that rewards bidders that commit to specific numbers and types of U.S, jobs, minimum
compensation, benefits, on-the-job-training for employees making work products or providing services on a contract, and
other worker protections, This subpart aiso does not prohibit reciplents and subrecipients from making Inquiries of bidders
about these subjects and 2 C.F.R. Revisions 2024: Unofficial Comparison Version assessing the responses, Any scoring
mechanism must be cansistent with the U.S. Constitution, applicable Federal statutes and regulattons, and the terms and

conditions of the Federal award,

Solicitation Language {(Purchasing Procedures)

The District shall have written procurement procedures (in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200,319(d)) that require that all
solicitations made pursuant to this policy Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for

the property, equlpment, or service belng procuredmateriab-product—orservice-to-be-proeured—Such-descripteon-shall-notr
in-eempektive-procurementa-contaln-features-which-unduly-restrick-competition, The description may include a statement
of the quslitative nature of the property, equipment, matetial-andferpreduct or service to be procured, When necessary, the
description must-and;-when-neeessary-shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to which the

property, equ!pment,'or service shall conformitshat-conformif-iistosatisiy-its-intended-dse. Detalled product
specifications should be avoided if at all possible.

When It is impractical or uneconomical to clearly and accurately describermake-a-clear-and-aeeurate-deseription—of the
technical requirements, a "brand name or equivalent" description of features to provide procurement requirements may be
used. The speclific features of the named brand must be cleatly stated and the District must identify any additional
requirements which the offerors must fulfilt and all other factors that will be used in evaluating bids or proposalsmay-be

vsed-as-o-resns-to-define-the-performanceorothersalientrequirements-ef-procurerment-The-specificfeattres-ef-the
named-brand-which-shall-be-met-by-offerssholl-be-elearlystatedi-and-identif-allrequirements-which-the-offerors-shall-falfil
and-allother-fackers-te-be-usedinevaluating bidsorproposals.

The Board will not approve any expenditure for an unauthorlzed purchase or contract,

Procurement Methods



10/9/24, 3:30 PM

BoardDocs® PL

The District shall have and use documented procedures, conslstent with the standards described above for the following
methods of procurement:

A, Informal Procurement Methods

dministrative burdens, and reduce costs, Informal procurement methods may be used when the value of the

procurement transactionWhen-the-value-of- the-procurementfor-property-er-serviees under a Federal award does not

exceed the simplified acquisition threshold, or a lower threshold established by the State, formal procurement
methods are not reauired. The Informal procurement methodsBistrickmay-use-informal-proeurement-methadste
expedite-the-completion-obits-transactions-and-minimize the-associated-administrative-burden-and-east—The

tformat-methodsused-forprocurement-of property-or-servicesaterbelow-the shnplified-acquistionthreshold

include:

1.

N

Micro-purchases

Procurement by micropurchase Is the acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of
which does not exceed $10,000, To the madmurrextent practicable, the District should distribute micro-
purchases equitably among qualified suppliers, Micro-purchases may be made without soliciting competitive
quotations if the Superintendent conslders the price to be reasonable based on research, experlence,
purchase history, or other relevant information, and maintains documents to support its conclusiondecaments
are-filed-aceordingly. The District shall maintain evidence of this reasonableness in the records of ail

purchases made by this method.

Small Purchases

Small purchases include the acquisition of property or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which is
higher than the micro-purchase threshold but does not exceed the simplified acquisition threshold of
$25,288. Small purchase procedures require that price or rate quotations shall be obtained from three

{3) qualified sources. [DRAFTING NOTE: 1, The competitive threshold for the 2023-24 fiscal year is
$29572, effective October 23, 202326821-22-yearis-$26;046cffective-Oetoher 720621, 2, Unless
the pass-through antity or State law defines the number of guotes required, the District may
define in policy how many quotations are adequate. The number must be greater than one (1).]

Districts are responsible for determining an appropriate simplified acquisition threshold based on Internal
controls, an evaluation of risk, and its documented procurement procedures which must not exceed the
threshold established in the Federal Acquisition Regulations {FAR). When applicable, a lower simplified
acquisition threshold used by the Districtron-Federal-entity must be authorized or not prohibited under State,

local, or trlbal laws or regulations.

B, Formal Procurement Methods

When the value of the procurement for property or services under a Federal award exceeds the simplified acquisition
threshold, or a lower threshold established by the State, formal procurement methods are required. Formal
procurement methods require following decumented procedures, Formal procurement methods also require public
advertising unless a non-competitive procurement method can be used In accordance with the standards on
competition in C.F.R., 200.319 or non-competitive procurement, The formal methods of procurement are:

1.

Sealed Bids

Sealed, competitive bids shall be obtalned when the purchase of, and contract for, single ltems of supplles,
materials, or equipment which amounts to more than the amount aliowed by Michigan statute and when the
Board determines to build, repalf, enlarge, improve, or demolish a school building/facility the cost of which
will exceed the amount allowed by Michigan statute, [DRAFTING NOTE: The fiscal year 2023~
2024202122 hase pertaining to construction, renovation, repair, or remodeling and the base
pertaining to procurement of supplies, materials, and equipment is $29,572, effective October

23, 2023526;846effectHve-October72021.]
In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions shall be present:
a. a complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is avaifable;

b. two (2) or more responsible bidders have been ldentified asare willing and able to compete effectively
for the business; and



10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

¢. the procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the sefection of the successful bidder
can be made princlpally based on the-basis-ef-price,

When sealed blids are used, the following requirements apply:

a. Blds shall be sollcited In accordance with the provisions of State law and Policy 6320. Bids shall be
solicited from three (3) qualified suppliers. The Invitation to bid shall be publicly advertised.

b. The invitation for bids must define the items or services with specific information, including any
required specifications, for the bidder to properly respondwilHnreludeproduct/contractspecifications
apdpertinent-attachments-and-shal-define the temsandfer servleesrequired-in-orderfor-the-bldder

to-property-respond.

¢. All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the invitation for bids; bids will be opened
publicly.

d. A firm, fixed-price contract is awardedaward-will-be-made in writing to the lowest responsive hid
and responsible bidder. When specified in the Invitation for bldsWhere-specified-r-bidding-decuments,
factors such as discounts, transportation costs, and life cycle costs shall be consldered in determining
which bid is lowest. Payment discounts mustmay only be used to determine the jow bid when the
District determines they are a valid factor based on prior experience-indicatesthatsuch-discotnts-are

usuaily-taken,

&. The Board reserves the right ta reject any or all bids, but must document and provide a justification
for all bids it rejects for sound documented reason,

2. Proposals

Procurement by proposals is a method in which either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement ype-contract Is

awarded, This method IsPreposaisaregenerally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of
sealed bids or In the case of a recognized exception to the sealed bid method. [DRAFTING NOTE: Like

sealed blds, Faderal faw does not require 2 competitive proposal unless the procurement is for
over $250,000, The State/District may set a lower threshold for sealed blds and competitive
proposals. Michigan law stipulates a threshold for which sealed bids are required. The competitive
threshold for the 2023-24 fiscal year Is $29,572 effective October 23, 20232021-22-year-is

$26;046;-effective-October 7202+, (See Policy 6320.)]

If this method Is used, the following requirements apply;

a. Requests for proposals require public notice, and mustshal-be-publicized-and Identify all evaluation
factors and their relative importance, To the maximum extent practicable, any proposals submitted In

response fo the public notice must be conslderedAnyresponseto-thepublielzed requests-for-propesals
shali-be-considered-te-the-maximum-extent-practeat,

b. Proposals shall be solicited from an adequate number of sources,

C. The District must have written proceduresshalt-use-ls-writtersnethed for conducting technfcal
evaluations and for making selectionsef-the-propesals-received-andfor-selectingrecipients.,

d. Contracts mustshalt be awarded to the responsible offerorfiesn whose proposal 15 most advantageous
to the District considering price and other factorspregramywith-pHee-and-ether-factors-considered.

The District may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based procurement of
architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services wheraby the competitors' qualifications are evaluated
and the most qualified competitor 1s selected, subject to negotlation of fair and reasonable compensation.
The method, where the price is not used as a selectlon factor, can only be used to procureinthe-procurement
of A/E professional setvices. The method# cannot be used to purchase other bypes-ef-services provided by;

thaugh A/E firms are a potential source to perform the proposed effort.

3. Noncompetitive Procurement

Procurement by noncompetitive proposals allewsfer-selleltation-of-a-propesatfrom-enly-one-£i)-souree
and-may be used only when one (1) or mote of the following circumstances apply:




10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDacs® PL

a. the aggregate amount of the procurement transaction does not exceed the micro-purchase

threshold; miere-purehases
b, the procurement transaction can only be fulfilled bythe-tem-is-available-eniy-frem a single source;

¢. the public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resuiting from providing
public notice ofpublickaing a competitive solicitation;

d. the District requests in writing to use a noncompetitive pracurement methad, and the Federal agency
of pass-through entity provides written approval; ortheFederalawording-ageney-or-pass-throuah
eptity-expressiy-autherzes-noncompetitive-propesals-frrrespense-toe-written-request-frarrthe
Bistriet

e. after soliciting severalselicitation-of-anumberof sources, competition is determined te be Inadequate.

Domestic Preference for Proctirement

The District shouldAs-apprepriate-and-to-the-extent-consistent-with-law—the Distrietshall, to the extent practicable and

consistent with lawunder-a-Federalaward, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or
materlals produced in the United States. Such requirements shall be Included in all subawards, Ircludingal-contracts, and

purchase orders fer-werler-preducts-under the Federal award.

Procuremant of Recovered Materials

The District must comply with Section 6002 of the Solld Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, 42 U.5.C, 69862, These requirements include:

A. procuring only items desighated in the guldelines of the Environmental Protection Agency {EPA) at 40 C.F.R, part
247 that contaln the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the ltem exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity

acquired durlng the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000;
8. procuring solld waste management services In a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and

C. establishing an affirmative procurement program for the procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA
guidelines.

The District should, to the greatest extent practicable and consistent with law, purchase, acquire, or use products
and services that can be reused, refurbished, or recycled; contain recycled content, are blobased, or are energy and

water efficlent; and are sustainable,

This may Include purchasing co

Contract/Price Analysis

The District shali parform a cost or price analysls for every procurement transaction, including contract modifications, in
excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold {currently $250,000). The method and degree of analysis conducted depend
on the facts surrounding the particular procurement transaction. For example, the District should consider potential
workforce Impacts in thelr analysis if the procurement transaction will displace public sector employees, Howaver, as a
startthg point, the District must make independent estimates before receiving bids or proposalsih-cenneetl
precurement-actioninexeessof-$256:000, Includingcontractmodifications. A cost analysis generally means evaluating the
separate cost elements that make up the total price, while a price analysis means evaluating the total price, without isoking
at the individual cost elements. The District must not use the “cost plus a percentage of cost” and “percentage of

constructlon costs™ methods of contracting,

Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal award are allowable only to the extent that the
costs Incurred or cost estimates included In negotiated prices would be allowable for the District according to cost principle

requirements, The-method-and-degree-of-analysisare-dependent-onthe-focts-surreunding-the-partieularprecdrement
shuaten-however-the-Bistdet-shall-come-to-a-independent-estimate-priortoreceiving bldsor-prepesals:

derationts-givento-the-complesd
contracter-the-contractoris-investment-the amount-of subeontractingr the-quality-eftsrecord-of-past-performancerand
industry-profit-ratesin-the surreunding-geographical-areafersimilarwerlc

Time and Materials Contracts

The District uses a time-and-materials type contract only 1) after a determination that no other contract Is sultable; and 2)
if the contract Includes a celling price that the contractor exceeds at lts own risk, A time-and-materials type contract means
a contract whose cost to the District is the sum of the actual costs of materlals, and direct labor hours charged at fixed




10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

hourly rates that reflect wages, general and administrative expenses, and profit.

BecauseSinee this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-materfals contract provides no positive
profit incentive to the contractor for cost contrel or labor efficlency. Therefore, the District sets a celling price for each
contract that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, the District shall assert a high degree of oversight in-erderto

obtain reagsonable assurance that the contractor Is using efficlent methods and effective cost controls,

Suspension and Debarment

The District wilt award contracts only to responsible contractors that possesspessessing the ability to perform successfully

under the terms and conditions of the proposed contractprecurement. All purchasing declsions shall be made in the best
interests of the District and shall seek to obtain the maximum value for each dollar expended. When making a purchasing

decision, the District shall consider such factors as 1) contractor integrity; 2) eemphanee-with-public policy; 3) compliance;
4) proper classification of employees; 5) record of past performance; and 6)4} financlal and technical resources.

The-Superntendent-shafHhave the autherty-te-suspend-or-debar-a-personfcorporation-for-catse;frorm-eonsideration-or
award-ef-furthercontracts—TheDistrletis-subleckto-and-shall-ablde-by-the-nonprocurement-debarment-and-suspension
regulations-implementing-Executive-Orders 12540-and 326802 CoR—Part-+86-

Suspensienis-an-action-taken-by-the-District-thot-immediately-prohiblisa-person-from-participating-in-covered-trafisactons
and-transactions-covered-underthe Federal-Asquisiion-Regulaten{48-C.RR—Chapter-)-for-a-temporary-periedpending
compleHon-of-ar-ageney-investigotion-and-any-judiclal-er-administrative-p ceedingsthabmay-enste—A-person-se-exeluded
Bebarmentisan-acton-taken-by-the-Superntendentto-exelude-a-persenfrem-participating-incovered-transactions-and
transactiens-eovered-underthe Federal-Aequlsition-Regulation{48-GRR—Chapter-~A-person-so-excludedis-debarred—(2
The District shall not subcontract with or award subgrants to any person or company who Is debarred or suspended, For
contracts over $25,000, the District shall confirm that the vendor Is not debarred or suspended by either checking the
Federal government's System for Award Management, which malntains a list of such debarred or suspended vendors at
www.sam.gov; collecting a certification from the vendor; or adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with

that vendor. (2 C.F.R. Part 180 Subpart C)

Bid Protest

The District maintains the following protest procedures to handle and resolve disputes relating to procurements and, in all
instances, discloses information regarding the protest to the awarding-agency.

A bidder who wishes to file a bid protest shall flle such notice and follow procedures prescribed by the Request For
Proposals {RFPs) or the Individual bid specificattons package, for resolution, Bid protests shall be filed in writing with the
Superintendent within seventy- two (72) hours of the opening of the bids in protest.

Within five (5) days of recelpt of a protest, the Superintendent shall review the protest as submitted and render a deciston
regarding the merits of the protest and any impact on the acceptance and rejectlon of bids submitted. Notice of the filing of
a bid protest shall be communicated to the Board and shall be so noted in any subsequent recommendation for the

acceptance of bids and awarding of contracts,

Fallure to file a notice of intent to protest, or faliure to file a formal written protest within the time prescribed, shail
constitute a waiver of proceedings.

Maintenance of Procurement Records

The District shall malntaln records suffictent to detall the history of all procurements. These records will include, but are not
necessarily limited to the fallowing: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection

or rejection, and the basis for the contract price (including a cost or price analysls).

Records Retention

The District must retaln all Federal award records for three (3) years from the date of submission of the final financlal
report. For awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, the District must retain recards for three (3} years from the date
of submission of the quarterly or annual financlal report, respectively. Records to be retalned Include, but are not limited to,
financlal records, supporting doctimentation, and statlstical records, Other records retention requirements shall be in

accordance with 2 C.ER. 200.334,
The District must collect, transmit, and store Federal award information in an open file, non-licensed, and machlne-readable

formats. The District may substitute electronic versions of original paper records through duplication or other forms of
electronle converslon, provided that the procedures are subject to periodic quality control reviews, Quality control reviews



10/8124, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

must ensure that electronlc converslon procedures provide safeguards agalnst the alteration of records and assurance that
records remaln in a format that is readable by a computer system.

2 C.FR, 200.317-.326; Appendix I} to Part 200

2 C.RR, 200,334 - 200,336
2 C.ER. 200.520

Revised 12/17/18
Revised 5/20/19
Revised 6/21/21
Revised 5/16/22
Revised 6/19/23
T.C. 6/17/24

© Necia 2024

Legal 2 C.FR. 200,317 - ,326. Appendix 1I to Part 200
2 C.F.R, 200,520

Cross References 106350 - PREVAILING WAGE

PR A R T



10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMUNITY SCHOOS
Book Policy Manual
Section Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of TRAVEL PAYMENT & REIMBURSEMENT
Code po6550 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted June 17, 2013
Last Revised May 16, 2016

Revised Policy - Vol. 39, No, 1 ~- EDGAR/UGG Revisions

[DPRAFTING NOTE: Travel charges must be consistent with the District’s established written policies, The
District must allow costs for “above and beyond regular dependent care” if consistent with established written

policy for all travel.]}

6550 - TRAVEL PAYMENT & REIMBURSEMENT

Travel expenses incurred for official business travel on behalf of the Board of Education shall be [imited to those expenses
reasonably and necessarily incurred by the employee in the performance of a public purpose authorized, in advance, in
accordance with administrative guldelines. Travel costs may include the transportation, lodging, subsistence, and related
ftems Incurred by employees who are in trave! status on officlal business of the District.

Payment and reimbursement rates for per diem meals, lodging, and mileage shall be approved by the Board annually. The
Board shall establish mileage rates in accerdance with the Federal IRS prescribed mileage rate,

Employees are expected to exercise the same care incurring travel expenses that a prudent person would exercise if
traveling on personal business and expending personal funds, Unauthorized costs and additional expenses incurred for

personal preference or convenlence will not be relmbursed.

Unauthorized expenses include but are not limited to alcohol, movies, fines for traffic violations, and the
entertainment/meals/lodging of spouses or guests,

Commerclal alrfare costs In excess of the baslc least expensive unrestricted accommodations class offered by commercial
altlines are unallowable except when such accommodations would (1) require circuitous routing; (2) require travel during
unreasonable hours; (3) excesslvely prolong travel; (4) result in additional costs that would offset the transportation
savings; or (5) offer accommodations not reasonably adequate for the traveler's medical needs. Instances of commercial
alrfare cost In excess of the basic least expensive unrestricted accommodations class must be justified and documented on

a case-hy-case basls,

—Fhe-eosts-efidentifying-and-providingecaly-avalable-dependent-carereseureesfor-conference-partcipants-are
altowable-astcededs

¥ ] Conference costs must be approprlate, necessary, and managed to minimize costs to the Federal award.

[DRAFTING NOTE: This draft policy Includes the Federal rules for commerctal alrfare and temporary dependent
care costs. Based on State or locai laws and policies, Districts may decide that all temporary dependent care
costs or commercial airfare costs in excess of the basic least expensive unrestricted accommodations class are

unhallowable under any circumstance.]



10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDoos® Pl

Travel payment and refmbursement provided from Federa! funds must be authorized in advance and must be reasonable
and consistent with the District’s travel policy and administrative guldelines. For travel paid for with Federal funds, the
travel authorlzation must include documentation that demonstrates that (1) the participation In the event by the individual
traveling Is necessary to the Federal award; and {2) the costs are reasonable and consistent with the District’s travel policy.

All travel shall comply with the travel procedures and rates establfshed in the administrative guldelines. All costs Incurred
with Federal funds must meet the cost allowabllity standards within Board Policy 6114,

To the extent that the District’s policy does not establish the allowability of a particular type of travel cost, the rates and

amounts established under 5 U.$.C. 5701-11, ("Travel and Subsistence Expenses; Mileage Allowances™), or by the
Administrator of General Services, or by the President (or Wsther-designee), must apply to travel under Federal awards,

Revised 12/21/15

© Neola 20242016

Legal 2 C,FR, 200.474

hiips://go.boarddocs.com/mifonst/Board.nsi/Private?apenilogingf 212



10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

/‘4
" Book Policy Manual
Section Vol, 39, No, 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revislons
Title Copy of DISPOSITION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY
Code po7310 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted May 19, 2003
Last Revised May 16, 2016

Revised Policy ~ Vol. 39, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revisions

7310 - DPISPOSITION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY

The Board of Education requires the Superintendent to review the property of the District periodically and to dispose of that
material and equipment which is no fonger usable in accordance with the terms of this poficy.

A, Instructional Material

The Dlstrict shall review Instructional materials (f.e. textbooks, library books, manuals, support materials, etc.)
pericdically to determine the relevance of such materials to the present world and current instructional programs,
The following criterla will be used to review instructionat materlals for redistribution and possible disposal:

1. concepts or content that do not support the current goals of the curriculum

2. information that may not be current

3. worn beyond salvage

B. Equipment

For purposes of this policy, equipment shall mean tangible personal property (including informatlon technology
systems), a unit of furniture or furnishings, an instrument, a machine, an apparatus, or a set of articles which
retains Its shape and appearance with use, is nonexpendable, having a useful life of more than one (1) year, and a
per-unit cost that equals or exceeds $___10,000___ [DRAFTING NOTE: DRistricts should align the amount
provided here to the amount chosen in Board Policy 7450 - Property Inventory] (X ) to replace ()-as5¢
strgle-unit[END OF OPTION] and does not lose lts Identity when incorporated into a more complex unit.
The District shall Inspect the equipment used in the educational program periodically, to determine the condition and
usability of such equipment in the current educational program. Should the equipment be deemed no longer
setviceable or usable, the following criteria will be used to determine possible disposal:

1. repalr parts for the equipment no longer readily available

2. repalr records Indicate the equipment has no usable life remaining

3. obsolete and no longer contributing to the educational program

4, some potenttal for sale at a school auction




10/8/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

C.

5. creates a safety or environmental hazard

Disposition

The Superintendent Is authorized to dispose of obsolete instructional and other praperty by selling, it to the highest
bldder, by donation to appropriate parties, or by proper waste removal in compliance with 2 C.F.R. 200.313(e) and

200.314,

When there Is a residual Inventory of unused supplies exceeding $10,000 in aggregate vaiue at the end of the period
of performance, and the supplies are not needed for any other Federal award, the District may retain or sell the
unused supplies, Unused supplies means supplies that are in new condition, not having been used or opened before.
The aggregate value of unused supplies consists of all supply types, not just like-item supplies. The Federal agency
of pass-through entity may be entitled to compensation In an amount prescribed In 2 C.F.R. 200.314,

Disposal of surplus property purchased with Federal funds shall be disposed of in accordance with Federal guidelines.

When original or replacement equipment aequired under a Federal award Is no longer needed for the original project
or program or for other activitles currently or previously supported by a Federal awarding-agency, the District shall
request disposition instructions from the Federal ewarding-agency If required by the terms and conditions of the

Federal award.

Disposition of the egulpment wil be made in accordance with disposition instructions of the
Federal avrarding-agency.

Hems-of-equipment-with-oeurrent-per-unit-falr-morietvalbe-of-$5;686-or-less-may-be-retainedr-sold-er-otherwise
dispesed-afwith-po-furtherebligation-to-the Federal-owarding-sgeney:

Except as provided in §200.313208:342 Federally-owned and exempt property, paragraph (b), or If the Federal
awarding agency falls to provide requested disposition instructions within 120 days, items of equipment with a
current perdrit-falr-market value In excess of $10,0005888 (per unit) may be retained by the non-Federal entity or
sold. The Federal awarding agency is entitled to an amount calculated by multiplying the current market value or
proceeds from sale-by-theFederalawardingageney'spercentogeof participation-in-the-cost-of the-eriginal-purehase,
If the equipment Is sold, the Federal ewarding-agency may permit the non-Federal entlty to deduct and retaln from
the Federal share $1,000588 or ten percent (10%) of the proceeds, whichever is less, to cover expenses associated

with the selling and handling of the equipmenifer-is-selling-and-handling-expenses.

The District may transfer title to the property to the Federal Government or to an eliglble third party provided that,
in such cases, the District shall be entitled to compensation for its atlributable percentage of the current fair market

value of the property.

When included in the terms and conditions of the Federal award, the Federal agency may permit the District to
retain equlpment, or autharize DEW to permit the District to retaln equipment, with no further obligatlon to the
Federal Government unless prohibited by Federal statute or regulation,

[CROSS REFERENCE: po7450]

® Neola 202420646

Legal

2 C,FR, 200,312, 200,313




10/9/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

Book Policy Manual
Section Vol. 39, Ne, 1 - EDGAR UGG - September 2024 MI Update Board Revisions
Title Copy of PROPERTY INVENTORY
Code po7450 - CH/IR 20241008
Status
Adopted May 19, 2003
Last Revised December 20, 2021

Revised Policy = Vol, 39, No. 1 - EDGAR/UGG Revisions

7450 - PROPERTY INVENTORY

As steward of this District's property, the Board of Education recognizes that efficient management and full replacement
upon loss requires accurate inventory and properly maintained property records.

The Board shall malntain a continttous inventory of all District-owned equipment at such Intervals as wilf coincide with
property Insurance renewal and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {"G.A.A.P."} reporting requirements.

For purposes of this policy, "equipment” shall mean tangible personal property (including information technology systems),
a unlt of furniture or furnishings, an instrument, a machine, an apparatus, or a set of articies which retains its shape and
appearance with use, Is nonexpendable, having a useful |ife of more than one (1) year, and a per-unit cost that equals or
exceeds $10,000 to replace and does not lose its {dentity when Incorporated Into a more complex unit. When defining
supplles for inventory purposes, no items will be counted whose total value is less than $10,0005;686, DRAFTNG

NOTE: The Federal threshold {2 C.,F.R. 200.439) for a supply designation is $10,0005;600 regardless of length
of useful life, however, the District may set an early acquisition cast leval for designation as supply. Capital
expenditures with a unit cost of $10,0005;008 or more require prior written approval of the Faderal awarding

agency or pass-through entity,

1t shall be the duty of the Facility Director to ensure that inventories are recorded systematically and accurately and
property records of equipment are updated and adjusted annually by reference to purchase orders and withdrawal reports.

Major ltems of equipment shafl be subject to annuat spot check Inventory to determine loss, mislocation, or depreciation;
any major loss shalf be reported to the Board,

The District Is responslble for maintaining and updating property records when there is a change In the status of the
property.

Equipment acquired under a Federal award wiil vest upon acquisition to the District, subject to the following conditions:

A. The equipment shali be used for the authorized purposes of the award project during the perlod of performance or
until the equlpment Is no longer needed for the purposes of the project,

B. While the equipment is being used for the originally-authorized purpose, the District (or subreciplent) must not
dispose of or encumber Its titie or other interests without the approvat of the Federal agency or pass-through
entityFhe-equipment-shall-net-be-encumbered-witheut-the-approvalof-the-Federal-awardingagenrey-er-the-pass—

through-entity,



10/6/24, 3:30 PM BoardDocs® PL

C.

m

&

The equipment may only be used and disposed of In accordance with the provisions of the Federal awarding-agency
or the pass-through entity and Policy 7300 - Disposition of Real/Personal Property and Pollcy 7310 - Disposition of
Surplus Property { X), and AG 7310 - Disposal of District Property.

« The District must use equipment for the project or program for which it was acquired and for as long as needed,

whether or not the project or program contlnues to he supported by the Federal award, The District must not
encumber the equipment without prior approval of the Federal agency or pass-through entity.

When no longer needed for the original project or program, the equipment may be used In other activities In the
following order of priority:

1. Activities under other Federal awards from the Federat agency that funded the original program or project;
then

2, Activities under Federal awards from other Federal agencles. These actlvities include consolldated equipment
for information technology systems.

During the time that equipment is used on the project or program for which it was acquired, the District must aiso
make the equipment available for use on other programs or projects supported by the Federai Government, provided
that such use will not interfere with the purpose for which it was originally acquired. First preference for other use of
the equipment must be given to other programs ar projects supported by the Federal agency that financed the
equipment. Second preference must be given to programs or projects under Federal awards from other Federal
agencles. Use for non-Federally funded projects is also permissible, provided such use will not interfere with the
purpose for which it was orlginally acquired. The District should consider charglng user fees as appropriate. If the
District does use equipment to earn program income, it must not charge a fee that is less than a private company
would charge for simllar services unless specifically authorized by Federal statute,

When acquiting replacement equipment, the District may either trade-In or sell the equipment and use the proceeds
to offset the cost of the reptacement equipment,

Property records shall be maintained that Include a description of the equipment, a serial nuraber or other
Identification number, the source of funding for the equipment (including the Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN}, title holder, acquisition date, cost of the propertyentity—aequistton-datecost-of the-equipment, percentage
of Federal agency contribution toward the original purchaseparticipation-in-the-preject-costsfor-the-award-under

which-the-equipmentwas-aequired, the location, use, and condlition of the propertyeguipment, and ultimate
disposition data, including date of disposai and sale price of the propertyeguipment,

« A physical inventory of the property must be conductediaken and results reconclled with property records at least

once every two {2) vears.

A control system shall be in placedeveleped to provide safeguards for preventingadegquatesafeguardste
prevent loss, damage, or theft of the property. Any such loss, damage, or theft of the property must beshail
be Investigated, The District must notify the Federal agency or pass-through entity of any loss, damage, or theft of

equipment that will have an Impact on the program.

+ RegularAdequate malntenance procedures shall be implemented fo keep the property in proper

workinggeed condition,

. Proper sales procedures shall be established to ensure the highest possible return, in the event the District is

authorized or required to sell the equipment/property.

When eriginal-erreplacementequipment acquired under a Federal award is no fonger needed for the original
project/program or for activities currently or previeusly supported by a Federal awarding-agency, and-exceptas
etherwiseprovided-by-Federal-statutes;regulationserFederal-awarding-ngeney-dispesition-instructions,-the District
shall request disposition Instructions from the Federal awarding-agency or pass-through entlty if required by the
terms and conditions of the Federai award, Disposition of the equipment shall be made In accordance with the

provisions of C.FR. 200.313.

[CROSS REFERENCE: po7310]

Revised 5/16/16
Revised 6/21/21

© Neola 20242821

Legal

2 C.FR. 200.313

(ST FNERY F PP PO IY SN T ) SUEI Y [ TSPt R § T U SRR PR PR T |



10/9/24, 3:30 PM

BaardDocs® PL



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED
Book Policy Manual
Section Special Update - Title IX - June 2024 MI Board Revisions
Title Special Update - Title IX - June 2024 Policy Disposition Sheet
Code 02 - Policy Disposition Sheet
Status

DISPOSITION OF NEW/REVISED/REPLACEMENT

POLICIES FOR BOARD ADOPTION
SPECIAL UPDATE -~ TITLE IX ~ JUNE 2024

Coding for District-Specific Edlts

*1 = drafted by District staff
*2 = if the material was a work for hire, that Is, material the District paid someone else to develop but from whom the

District purchased the rights to publish
*3 = if the material is copyrighted to someone else from whom the District has secured permission te publish the material

{No code Is needed for accepting Neola's vetted material)

Date District-Specific Edits Date Rejected

Pollcy Number Adopted | (1, 2, or 3) Date Tabled

po2264 NEW

po2266 REVISED




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMURITY SCHOOLS

Book Policy Manual

Sectlon Special Update - Title IX - June 2024 MI Board Revisions

Title Speclal Update - Title IX - June 2024 New NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF
SEX IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES

Code po2264 - CH/IR 20240905

Status

New Policy ~ Special Update - Title IX

2264 - NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES

This policy pertains to sex discriminatton, Including sex-based harassment, which occurs on or after August 1, 2024,
Allegations of sex-based harassment, that occur an or before July 31, 2024, shall be addressed pursuant to Policy 2266 &)
ard-AG-2266-FEND-OF-OPTIONT. Throughout this policy, unless expressly stated otherwise, reference to “Title 1X” includes
and Incorporates the 2024 Titie IX regulations (also known as the 2024 Final Rule”). The Titie IX regulations are found at
34 CFR Part 106, References solely to Title IX (20 U.5.C. §§ 1681 ~ 1688) are denoted as “Title IX (Statute).” In this
policy, unless the context otherwlse requires, words Importing the singular include the plural and vice versa,

[DRAFTING NOTE: The 2024 Final Rule serves to “ciarify the scope and applicatlon of Title IX and the
obligations of recipients of Federal financial assistance from the United States Department of Education
["ED"]...to provide an educational environment free from discrimination on the basls of sex, Including through
responding to incldents of sex discrimination.” The 2024 Final Rule stresses — in its Supplementary
Information section {i.e., “"Preamble”) - that ED is responsible for “fully {enforcing] Title IX’'s

nondiscrimination mandate.”

The 2024 Title IX regulations are effective August 1, 2024, As such, they apply only to sex discrimination that
allegediy occurred on or after August 1, 2024, With respect to sex discrimination that allegedly occurred prior
to August 1, 2024, regardiess of when the alleged sex discrimination was raported, ED has stated that it will
“evaluate a reciplent’s compliance agalnst the Title IX statute and the Title IX regulations in place at the time
that the alleged sex discriminatlon occurred.” The 2020 Title IX regulations (effective 8/14/2020) facus on
effectuating Title 1X's prohibition against sex discrimination by requiring reclplents to address sexual
harassment as a form of sex disctrimination in education programs or activities, The 2020 Title IX regulations
obligate recipients to respond promptly and supportivety to persons alleged to be victimized by sexual
harassment, resolve allegations of sexual harassment promptly and accurately under a predictable, faly
grlevance process that provides due process protections to alleged victims and alleged perpsatrators of sexual
harassment, and effectively Implament remedies for victims, The 2020 Title IX regulations do not provide
procedures for addressing clalms of sex disceimination in a reciplent’s education program or activity that are
unrelated to sexual harassment, As such, ED states In the Preamble to the 2024 Title IX regulations that “some
reports regarding sex discrimination occurring In a recipient’s education program or activity may be handled
under [the 2024 Title IX regulations] while others will be addressed under the requirements of the [2020 Title
IX regulations].” (emphasis added)} Prasumably, the “will” relates to reports of sexual harassment (or “sex-
based harassment” as defined in the 2024 Titla IX regulations) that allegedly occurred prior to 8/1/2024, and
the “may" refers to reports of alleged sex discrimination that occurred prior to 8/1/2024 that involve non-

sexual harassment related violations of Title IX (Statute).

Since a recipient is not required to use the grievance procedures outlined In the 2024 Title IX regulations (and
this pollcy) to investigate, addrass, and remedy alleged violations of Title IX - not involving sex-based
harassment - that occurrad before 8/1/2024 in the school district's education programs or actlvities (again,
aliegations of sexual harassment that involve conduct that occurred before 8/1/2024 must be addressed

hlips:/igo.boarddocs.com/mlfonst/Board nsfiPrivate?openslogin# i/26




10/8/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

pursuant to the grievance procedures delineated in Policy 2266 and AG 2266), the Title IX Coordinator is
afforded broad discretion to detaermine how best to addrass In a prompt, effective and equitable manner such

Title IX violations.

The language quoted In this DRAFTING NOTE is found at 89 Fed. Reg, 33,841 (Apr. 29, 2024).

For more information concerning the use of this policy and the grievance procedures set forth herein, as
opposed to Policy 2266 and the grievance procedures contained in it, refer to the first few paragraphs of the

Grievance Procedures saction located below.

Neola recommends the Board consult with its Legal Counsel relating to any questions It may have concerning
application and Implamantation of this policy and its corresponding administrative guideline, as compared to

Policy 2266 and AG 2266.)
NONDISCRIMINATION

Overview:

The Board of Education of the Onsted Communlty Schools-Bistriek (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” or
“the District”) does not discriminate on the basis of sex and prohibits sex discrimination in any education program or
activity that It operates, as required by Title IX, including In admission and employment,

{DRAFTING NOTE: For purposes of the 2024 Title IX regulations, the term “admission’ refers to admission to
postsecondary institutions (l.e., institutions of graduate higher education, institutions of undergraduate higher
education, institutions of professional education, and Institutions of vocational education). If a K-12 school
does not operate a vocational program (e.g., a school or institution that has as Its primary purpose prepatation
of students to pursue a technical, skilled, or semiskilled vccupation or trade, or to pursue study in a technical
field, whether or not the school or institution offers certificates, diplomas, or degrees and whether or not it
offers fuiltime study), the K~12 school does not have to inciude “admission and” in the preceding sentence
{and where that phrase Is used throughout this policy); Neola, however, recommends that boards include it
kecause alf K-12 schoals “enroll” students and often the term “enroll” is viewed as synonymous with the term
“admit.” Further, K-12 schools cannot discriminate when enrolling students into the education pregrams or
activities that they operate, so it seems reasonable to include the terim “admission,” Additionally, many
districts operate adult-based vocational programs and/or have students dual-enrolled in post-secondary
instlitutions -~ e.g., through Michigan's Dual Enroliment - and/or youth apprenticeship programs, so it makes
sense to Include “admission” aven though those postsecondary institutions will have their own Title IX
nondiscrimination policies and grievance procedures, ¥f a student enrolled Infadmitted to one of these
pragrams notifies the District that the student was allegediy subjected to sex discrimination during/through
the student’s participation in the program, the Title IX Coordinator should consult with the Board's Legal
Counsel ragarding the District’s responsibility to impiement the District’s grievance proceditres to address the
allegations of sex discrimination and provide supportive measures. The Title IX Coordinator should also
contact and coordinate with the postsecondary institution’s Title IX Coordinator concerning the matter.}

Disceimination on the basis of sex includas discrimination on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex characteristics, pregnancy or
related condltions, sexual orlentation, and gender identity,

[DRAFTING NOTE: Shortly after the 2024 Final Rule was released, a number of States filed lawsuits to stop
implementation of the new regulations, As of May 23, 2024, no court has issued an injunction or preliminary
rastraining order to prevent the 2024 Final Rule from going into effect on August 1, 2024, Neola Is monitoring
the litigation across the country and will notify its clients if any court action limits or prevents Michlgan school
districts from Implementing the 2024 Title IX regulations and, In turn, replacement Policy 2264 and

replacement AG 2264,

Untike a couple of years ago when several States challenged in court a legal guidance document that ED
refeased interpreting the U.8. Supreme Court’s Bostock decision (Bostock v. Clayton County, 590 1.8, (2020),
as applying to Title IX and therefore protecting individuals from discrimination based on their sexual
orlentation or gender identity, the 2024 Title IX regulations “carry the force and effect of 1aw' as a result of ED
going through the notice and comment rulemaking process prior to promulgating them.

While the pending lawsuits each seek to void, cancel, or otherwlse block ED from implementing the 2024 Final
Rule, they each present slightly different bases for challenging the 2024 Titie IX regufations. All of them,
howaevaer, express an underlying or primary concern related to an alleged expansion of the term “sex" to
include sexual orlentation and gender identity. While these plaintiffs, to date, contend the 2620 Bostock
deciston - which Invoived Title VII — does not apply to Titia IX, Neola has interpreted “sex” to include “sexual




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

orientation and gender ldentity” for a number of years pre-dating Bostock based on applicable Sixth Circuit
case law (see bodd v. U.S. Dept. of Education, 845 F.3d 217 {6th Cir, 2016) (holding that discrimination
against transgender students likely constitutes sex discrimination under Title IX of the Education Amendments
Act of 1872 and the Equal Protection Clause of the U.S. Constitution); since that time, aven more Circuit courts
have upheld such an Interpretation (e.g., Whitaker v, Kenosha Unifled Schaol District, 858 F,3d 1034 (7th Cir.
2017) (holding that discrimination against transgender students constitutes sex discrimination under Title IX
of the Education Amendments Act of 1972 and the Equal Protection Clause of the U,S. Constitution). In fact,
ariginal Policy 2266, which Neola developed in 2020 following ED relaasing the 2020 Title IX regulations,
exprassly provides that “sex" includes “sexual orlentation and gender identity”).

Other congarns raised in the lawsuits primarily deal with aspects of the rufes that have a more significant role
in the postsacondary setting as opposed to the K-12 education environment; namely, the use of a singla
investigator/decislonmaker model, and a purported reduction in the due process rights afforded to the
accused (e, whether the respondent is entitled to a live hearing and the ablilty to cross-examine parties and
withesses prior to a decisionmaker rendering a determination of responsibility - which Is something that Is an
option for K-12 schools under the 2020 Title IX regulations but was rarely seiected.]

The Board Is committed to maintaining an education and work environment that is free from sex discrimination {Including
sex-based harassment), responding promptly and effectively when It has knowledge of conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination, and addressing sex discrimination in its education program or activity. Persons who commit
sex-based harassment are subject to the full range of disciplinary sanctions set forth In this policy. The Board wiil provide
persons who have experlenced sex-based harassment engoing remedies as reasonably necessary to restore or preserve

access to the bistrict’s education program or activity,

KEY DEFINITIONS

Words used In this policy shall have those meanings specified hereln; words not defined herein shall be construed according
to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Complaihant means:

A. a student or employee who is alleged to have been subjected to canduct that could constitute sex discrimination
under Title IX; or

B. a person other than a student or employee who Is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute
sex discrimination under Title IX and who was participating or attempting to participate in the District's education
program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discrimination,

Complaint means; an oral or written request to the District that objectively can be understood as a request for the District
to investigate and make a determination about alleged discrimination under Title IX,

[OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]
Fl-Genfldential-employee-meanss
A. a-Beard-employee-whese-communlcotionsare-privileged-under-Federal-or-State-lawior

The-employees-confidential-statusfer purpeses-of-this-pelicy-is-enlywith-respectte-infermationreceived-while-the
employee-isfunetioning-within-the-scope-of thelrduties-te-which-privilege-orconfidentialibyapplies:

B. a-Board-employec-whom the Board-has-designated-as—cenfidential-under-this-poliey-for-the-purpose-of-previding
services-to-personsrehtedto-sex-disetimination:

H-Hhe-employee-also-has-a-duty-notassoclated-with-providing-theseservicesrthe-employee’'s-confidential-stotusts
only-with-respect-te-informationreceived-abontsex-diseriminationin-connecton-with-providingthese-servieess

C. theBoard-designates-individuals-{-)asslaned-tefholding-thefolowing-pesitions—{-with-the-followlngJeb-Tites
END-OF-OPTIONSItobe-confidential-employeesforpurposesof-this-polieys

1, 63-sehoolcounselor:
2. (Y sociabworkers

hilps:figo boarddocs comimifonstBoard. nslPrivatePopan&loginff 3/28




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs@® PL

[DRAFTING NOTE:

A. Neola does not recommend the Board include this definition or designate “confidential employees”
based on:

1. the confusion that may result from designating a confldential employee(s) - in particular, Board-
designated confidential employees will have different responsibilities as compared to ALL other
Board employees whan it comas to the actlons they must take if a person notifies them of alleged

sex discrimination;

2, they require additional training concerning the responsibilities mentioned in the preceding
paragraph, which are differant from the responsibllities required of ALL other Board empioyees;

and

3. students or persons who are acting on their behalf may “lose” the “confidentiality” they are
seeking if they communicate their concerns about alleged sex discrimination to a person who is
not actually a confidential employee ~ It Is safer for students, and those acting on thelr behalf, to
operate on the assumption that if they tel! a Board employee about alleged sex discrimination
that the Board employee wili report it to the Title IX Coordinator,

B. Unlike the postsecondary environment, there is little anticipated beneflt In an elementary/sacondary
school setting to designating confidential employees. A person acting on behalf of a student could
contact the Title IX Coordinator to obtain clarification about the Title IX grievance procedures, inforimat
resolution process, and other options available to their child (e.g., supportive measures) without
releasing any Informatton or specifically reporting alleged sex discrimination, so there is not much
gained by having the person instead speak with a confidential employee who would teli them essentially

the same things.

C. Before the Board designates a confidential employee(s), It should consult with its Legal Counsel,

D, If the Board decides to designate one (1) or more confidential employees, Necla suggests that it does so
by Position, Title, or Office, and not the person’s name, for the reasons discussed below with respact to
why it is preferable to only list the Job Title of the Title IX Coordinator in the policy, as opposed to both
the Name and Title - l.e., so the Board does not have to act to amend the policy each time a different

person is employed in the designhated position,}

[END OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwlse, the term “day” or “days” as used in this pollcy means business day(s) (l.e., a
day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays).

Disciplinary sanctions means: consequences imposead on a respondent following a determination under Title IX that the
respondent violated the Board’s prohibition on sex discrimination,

Education program or activity refers to: al! the District’s operations including, but net limited to, In-person and
oniinefremote educational instruction, employment, extracurricular activities, athletics, performances, and community
engagement and outreach programs. The term applies to all actlvity that occurs on school grounds or on other property
owned or occupied by the Board. It also includes events and circumstances that take place off school property/grounds but

over which the District asserts disciplinary authority.

Eligible Student means: a student who has reached elghteen (18) years of age or s attending an Institution of
postsecandary education, [DRAFTING NOTE: This definition is derlved from, and consistent with, the
corresponding definition from the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. 1232g (see 20 U.8.C.

1232g(a)(4) and (d)) and its Implementing regulations (see 34 C.F.R. § 99.3).]



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

Exculpatory evidence means: evidence that Is favorable to a respondent because it helps excuse, justify, or absolve a
respondent of alleged wrongdoing and tends to establish a respondent did not engage In sex discriminatioh,

Inculpatory evidence means: evidence that links a respondent to alleged wrongdoing and tends to establish a respondent
engaged In sex discrimination {i.e., has culpability).

Parental status means: the status of a persan who, with respect to another person who is under the age of efghteen (18)
or who is eighteen {18) or older but is incapable of seif-care because of a physical or mental disability, Is:

A. a biological parent;

B. an adoptive parent;

C. a foster parent;

D, a stepparent;

E. a {egal custodian or guardian;

F. in loco parentis with respect to such a person; or

G. actively seeking legal custody, guardianship, visitation, or adoption of such a person.

Party means: a complainant or respondent,

Peer retaliation means: retallation by a student agalnst another student,

Pregnancy or related conditions means:
A. pregnancy, chlldbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactation;

B. medical conditions related to pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, or lactatlon; or
C. recovery from pregnancy, childbirth, termination of pregnancy, lactatlon, or related medical conditions,

Relevant means: related to the allegations of sex discrimination under investigation ag part of the Board’s grievance
procedures, Questions are relevant when they seek evidence that may aid in showing whether the alleged sex
discriminatton oceurred, and evidence Is relevant when It may aid a decisionmaker in determining whether the alleged sex

discrimination occurred. :

Remedias means: measures provided, as appropriate, to a complainant or any other person the District identifies as
having had their equal access to the District’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex discrimination, These
measures are provided to restore or preserve that person’s access to the District’s education program or activity after the

District determines that sex discrimination occurred.
Respondent meahs: a person who Is alleged to have violated the Board’s prohibltion on sex discrimination.

Retaliation means: intimidation, threats, ceerclon, or discrimination against any person by the District, a student, a Board
employee, or any other person authorized by the Board to provide ald, benefit, or service under the Bistrict’s education
program or activity, for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX, or because the person has
reported Information, made a complalnt, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate in any manner in an
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under the 2024 Title 1X regulations.

Sex-based harassment prohibited under this policy and the 2024 Title IX regulations Is a form of sex discrimination and
means sexual harassment and other harassment on the basls of sex - inciuding on the basis of sex stereotypes, sex
characteristics, pregnancy or related conditions, sexual orlentation, and gender identity - that Is:

A. Quid pro quo harassment. An employee, agent, or other person authorized by the Board to provide an ald, benefit,

or service under the District’s education program or activity explicitly or Impiiedly conditioning the provision of such
an ald, benefit, or service on a person’s participation In unwelcome sexual conduct,

OR



10/8/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

B, Hostile anvironment harassment. Unwelcome sex-based conduct that, based on the totality of the circumstances, is
subjectively and objectively offensive and Is so severe or pervasive that It limits or denles a person’s ability to
participate in or benefit from the Distrlet’s education program or activity (l.e,, creates a hostile environment),
Whether a hostile environment has been created Is a fact-specific inquiry that Includes consideration of the

following:

1, the degree to which the conduct affected the complainant’s abllity to access the District’s education program
or activity;

2. the type, frequency, and duration of the conduct;

3, the parties’ ages, roles within the District’s education program or activity, previous interactions, and other
factors about each party that may be refevant to evaluating the effects of the conduct;

4, the location of the conduct and the context In which the conduct occurred; and

5, other sex-based harassment in the District's education program or activity.

OR

C. Specific offenses.

1. Sexual assault meaning an offense classifled as a forcible of nonforcible sex offense under the uniform crime
reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

2. Dating violence meaning violence committed by a person:
a. who Is or has been in a social relationship of a romantic or intimate nature with the victim; and

b. where the existence of such a relationship shail be determined based on a conslderation of the
foliowing factors:

1, the length of the relationship;

2. the type of relationship; and

3, the frequency of interaction between the persons Involved In the relationship.
3. Domestlc violence meaning felony or misdemeanor crimes committed by a person who!

a. Is a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the victim under the family or domestic violence
taws of the jurisdiction In which the District Is located, or a person simllarly situated to a spouse of the

victim;

b. is cohabitating, or has cohabitated, with the victim as a spouse or intimate partner;

¢. shares a child in common with the victim; or

d. commits acts agalnst a youth or adult victim who is protected from those acts under the family or
domestic violence laws of the applicable jurisdiction.

4. Stalking meaning engaging v a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasohable
person to:

a. fear for the person’s safety or the safety of others; or

b, suffer substantial emotional distress,

Student means: a person eligible to enroll In, attend, or participate In an elementary (including preschool) or secondary
schoai In the District and who is enrolled in, attending, or participating in, or Is seeking/attempting to entoll In, attend, or

participate, in the District’s education program or activity.

bittnniflan haasddaan anvcdeatlamntifaned wnrdlDduntadaman@inaln#

RIZR



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

Student with a disability means: a student who Is an Individual with a disability as defined under Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended ("Section 504"}, or a child with a disability as defined under the Individuals with

Disabillties Education Improvement Act (“"IDEA™),

Supportive measures means: Individualized measures offered as appropriate, as reasonably avalilable, without
unreasonably burdening a complalnant or respondent, not for punitive or disciplinary reasons, and without fee or charge to

the complalnant or respondent to:

A. restore or preserve that party's access to the District’s education program or activity, including measures that are
deslgned to protect the safety of the partles or the District’s educational environment; or

B, provide support during the Board’s grievance procedures or an informal resolution process.

Parental, Family, or Marital Status

The Board wili not adopt or apply any policy, practice, or procedure concerning a student’s current, potential, or past
parental, family, or marital status that treats such student differently on the basis of sex.

Pregnancy or Related Conditions

Students:

The Board prohlbits disctimination In its education program or activity against any student based on the student’s current,

potential or past pregnancy or refated conditions. H#mﬁm%vﬂﬁefﬂa{%a—&wdenk—baseé—en—psegﬁaﬁereﬁehteé

OF-OPTIONI A student who Is pregnant or experiencing related conditions shall recelve comparable treatment to those
with temporary medical conditions. {-}-r-etherwords-to-the-extentnot-otherwise-nddressed-abovethe-Board-wihtreat

preghoncy-ortelated-conditions-inthe same-manner-and under the-same-policles-as-any-other medicat-conditon-with
respect-to-any-medical-er-hespital-benefit-senvicer planrorpolicy-the Beard-administersreperates;offersror-participatesin
with-respectto-studentsadmitied-to-the Pistricts-educationprogram-or-activity END-OF-OPTIONT [DRAFTING NOTE:

This fast sentence is consistent with the content of the 2024 Title IX regulations, however, on its face, it
appears to be more applicable to postsecondary Institutions as compared to K-12 schools; hence, Neola
suggests the Board determine for itself whether to Include it in this policy.]

The District will not reguire a student who Is pregnant or has related conditions to provide certification from a heaithcare
provider or any other person that the student is physically able to participate in the District’s class, program, or
extracurricular activity unless:

A. the certified level of physical ablity or health Is necessary for participation in the class, program, or extracurricutar
activity;

B. the District requires such certification of all students participating In the class, program, or extracurricular activity;
and

C. the Information obtained Is hot used as a basls for discrimination prohibited by Title IX or this Pollcy.
Bistrict's Respansibiities with Respect to a Student’s Pregnancy or Related Condlitions

When a Board employee Is Informed of a student’s pregnancy or related conditlons by the student or a person whe has a
legal right to act on behalf of the student, the employee shall promptly provide that person with the Title IX Coordinator’s
contact Information and inform that person that the Titde IX Coordinator can coordinate specific actions to prevent sex
discrimination and ensure the student's equal access to the District’s education program or activity, unless the employee

reasonably belleves the Title IX Coordinator has already been notiffed.

Once a student, or a person who has a legat right to act on behalf of the student, notifies the Title IX Coordinator of the
student’s pregnancy or related conditions, the Title IX Coordinator shall promptly take the following specific actions to
effectively prevent sex discrimination and ensure equal access to the District's education program or activity:

A. Inform the student and, if applicable, the person who notified the Title IX Coordinator of the District’s obligations to:

1. prohibit sex discrimination under thls policy, Including sex-based harassment;




10/8/24, 3:.31 PM BoardDocs® PL

2, provide the student with the option of reasonable modifications to the Board's policies, practices, or
procedures because of preghancy or related conditions;

3. allow access, on a voluntary basis, to any separate and comparable portion of the District's education
program or activity;

4. allow a voluntary leave of absence;
5. provide lactation space; and

6, maintaln grievance procedures that provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints of sex
discrimination, including sex-based harassment,

B. Provide the student with voluntary reasonable modifications to the Board’s policles, practices, or procedures because
of pregnancy or related conditlons,

C. Allow the student to take a voluntary leave of absence from the District’s education program or activity to cover, at
minimum, the period of Hme deemed medically necessary by the student’s licensed healthcare provider. To the
axtent that a Board malntains a leave policy for students that allows a greater period of time than the medically
necessary period, the Board shall permit the student to take leave under that policy instead if the student so
chooses. When the student returns to the District’s education pregram or activity, the student will be reinstated to
the academic status and, as practicable, to the extracurricular status that the student held when the feave began.

D, Provide lactation space, which must be a space other than a bathroom, that is clean, shlelded from view, free from
intrusion from others, and may be used by a student for expressing breast milk or breastfeeding as needed,

See Policy 5751 ~ Parental-Married Status of Students (-and-Administrative Guideline-5751—regnoney-FEND-OF

OPTIONT.

Employees:

The Board will not adopt or implement any policy, practice, or procedure, or take any employment action, on the basis of
sex:

A. concerning the current, potential, or past parental, family, or marital status of an employee or applicant for
employment, which treats persons differently; or

B. that Is based upon whether an employee or applicant for employment is the head of household or principal wage
earner n such employee’s or applicant's family unit.

The Board also will not make a pre-employment Inquiry as to the marital status of an appiicant for employment, Including
whether such applicant Is a “Miss or Mrs.”

Stmilarly, the Board wiil treat pregnancy or related conditlons as any other temporary medical conditions for ail job-related
purposes, including commencement, duration, and extensions of leave; payment of disabllity Income; accrual of senlority
and any other beneflt or service; and reinstatement; and under any fringe benefit offered to employees by virtue of

employment,

If an employee has insufficient leave or accrued emplayment time to qualify for leave under the Board’s leave policy, the
Board will treat pregnancy or related conditions as a justification for a voluntary leave of absence without pay for a

reasonable period of time, at the conclusion of which the employee shall be reinstated to the status held when the leave
began or to a comparable position, without decrease In rate of compensation ot loss of promotional opportunities, or any

other right or privilege of employment.

The Board will provide reasonable break time for an ernployee to express breast milk or breastfeed as needed and will
provide the employee with access to a lactation space, which must be a space other than a bathroom that is clean, shielded
from view, free fram Intrusion from others, and may be used by an employee for expressing breast milk or breastfeeding as
needad, See Board Policy 6700 ~ Falr Labor Standards Act,

TITLE IX COORDINATOR(S)

[DRAFTING NOTES:

ailne




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL
A, Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Title IX Coordinator; however, if the Board

appoints more than one (1) Title IX Coordinator, it must designate one (1) of the Title IX Coordinators
to retain ultimate oversight over the assigned responsibilities and ensure the Board’s consistent
compliance with its responsibilities under Title IX. Alternativaly, the Board could appoint a Title IX
Coordinator and one (1) or more persons to assist the Title IX Coordinator with performance of the
responsibilities Identifled In this policy and the 2024 Title XX regulations, Often the persons designated
to assist a Title IX Coordinator are called: Deputy or Assistant Title IX Coordinator, or Title IX
Administrator, or Titla IX Compliance Offlcer, If the Board elects this alternative approach, it would only
designate a Title IX Coordinator for purposes of this policy, but it would designate the other positions
through its AG. The persons In the alternative support roles will need to be tralned in the same manner

as the Title IX Coordinator (see AG 2264).

The Board must list either the Name(s) or Titla(s) of the Title IX Coordinator(s); while the Board may
iist both the Name{s) and Title(s), Neola suggests that the Board only list the Titla(s) In this policy (so
the Board does not need to revise/amend the policy whenever there is a change in the actual person(s)
holding the designated position(s}), but list both the Name(s) and Title(s) in the requlsite
notices/postings (e.g., website} and publications (e.g., handbooks). The District will also need to decide
whether to list the Name(s) and Title(s), or just the Titie(s), iIn Administrative Guldeline 2264 if the
District elects to identify the Title IX Coordinator in the AG (see DRAFTING NOTE in the AG; agaln, if the
bistrict lists the Name(s) and Title(s), it will need to remembaer te update the AG whenever there is a
change In the actual person(s) holding the designated position{s). No matter what, the Board will need
to amend its policy and update Its AG, requisite notices/postings, and publications, whenever it changes
the Title of the position(s) designated to serve as the Titie IX Coordinator(s).

@

C. Reminder: Whenever a new person begins to serve as the Title IX Coordinator (or in a support role to
the Title IX Coordinator), the Pistrict needs to make sure the new person is approprlately trained, In a
timely manner, to fulflil the responsibilities of the Title IX Coordinator position as specified the 2024

Title IX regulations and AG 2264,]

The Board deslgnates and authorizes the following individual(s) to coordinate Its efforts to comply with the Board’s
responsiblilities under Title IX;

Karen Springer, Human Resources
{Name and/or School District Title)

10109 Slee Rd., Onsted, Ml 49265
{Office Address)

springer.k@onstedschools.us

(Email Address)

817-467-2173
(Telephone Number)

[DRAFTING NOTE: The District may want to create a static (Le,, fixed) Title IX Coordinator-specific email
address and phone number that will not change when the person(s) and/or position(s) designated to be the
Titla IX Coordinator(s) change(s) ~ e.g,, tixcoordinator@{Insert Distelct’s domaln) - which the Technelogy
Diractor/Department can program to be forwarded to the actual individual{s) serving as tha TFitle YX
Coordinator(s) at any given time, Likewlse, the District may want to establish a static Telephone Number for
the position of Title IX Coordinator that can be forwarded to, and accessed by, the actual person(s) serving in
the Title IX Coordinator position(s) at any given time, These two (2) steps will help reduce the Information
that needs to be updated in policy, AG, and/or the requisite notices/postings and publicatlons when changes
occur to the speclfic person(s)/positien(s) deslgnated to serve as the Title IX Coordinator{s}).]

[DRAFTING NOTE! Complete the following information if the Board appoints more than one (1) Title IX
Coordinator.]

x 1 [DESIGNATION OF A SECOND TITLE IX COORDINATOR]

Tim Comden, High School Principal
{Name and/or School District Title)

10109 Slee Rd., Onsted, MI 49265
{Office Address)




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

comden.t@onstedschools.us

(Emall Address)

517-467-2171
{Telephone Number)

[END OF OPTION]

[DRAFTING NOTE: Select the following option if the Board designates more than one (1) Title IX Coordinator.}

[ X The Board deslgnates Karen Springer [DRAFTING NOTE: Insert Name and/or Title of the Title IX
Coordinator who is ultimately responsible for the District’s compliance with its responsibilities under Title IX]
as the coordinator who Is ultimately responsible for oversight over the Board’s compliance with Its responsibllities under

Title IX, [END OF OPTION]

x ] The Title X Coordinator may delegate specific dutles to one (1) or more designees. [END OF OPTION]

[DRAFTING NOTE: The Board may want to select the followlng option when the Superintendent is not the
District’s Titfe IX Coordinator. While Neola recognizes that this may not always be possible, it may be
preferable to have the Title IX Coordinator be someone other than the Superintendent because then -~ If tha
Title IX Coordinator serves as the Investigator and decisionmaker ~ the Superintendent can serve as the
appeal decisionmakaer or the facilitator for the informal resolution process.]

[ ] The Title IX Coordinator shall report directy to the Superintendent except when the Superintendent is a party to a
complaint {I.e,, either the complainant or the respondent). Under such clrcumstances, the Title 1X Coordinator shall report

directly to [SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING] )-the-Beard-President { x) the Board’s Legal Counsel 3}
FOTHER]-LEND-OF-OREIONST until the matter in which the Superintendent is a party is concluded.

LT

[END OF OPTION]

Questions about this policy and Policy 2266 }-apd-A6-2264-ard-AG-2266-FENB-DF-OPTIONT should be directed to the
Title IX Coordinator.

The Title IX Coordinator shall monitor the District’s education programs and activities for barriers to reporting information
about conduct that reasonably may constitute sex discrimination under Title IX, and take steps reasonably calculated to

address such barriers.,

F-Fhe-Hie-BtCoordinator-isresponsible-for-notifying-ail-particpants-inthe Distrlet's-education-program—oi-activity-of-how
te-eontact-its-confidential-employeesTENB-OF- BPTHIONT

iDRAFTING NOTE:

A. For the reasons discussed in the DRAFTING NOTE that accompanies the Definition of “confldential
employee,” Neoia does not recommend the Board designate confidential employee(s), especially for

their K-12 programs,

B. If, however, the Board designates one or more confidential employees, it needs to salect this GPTION.

C. The District has fiaxibility and discretion to decide what information to provide {e.g., whether to identify
a confidential employee by Name, Title, Office, or Telephone Number {this presumably would be a static
number that would auto-forward to the actual person serving as a confidential employee)). The District
just needs to provide suffictent inforination for participants to be abie to contact the confidential

employee(s).]

Notice of Nondiscrimination

The Superintendent shall provide a notice of nondiscrimination te students, parents, guardians, or other authorized legal
representatives of elementary and secondary students; employees; applicants for admisslon and ermployment; and all
unlons and professlonal organizations holding collective bargaining or professional agreements with the Board. Specifically,
the Superintendent shall post the notice of nondiscrimination on the District’s website and in each handbook, catalog,
announcement, builettin, and application form that it makes available to the persons listed above, ar which are otherwise
ysed in connection with the recruitment of students or employees, {)-SeeAG2264-and-Form-2264F—NoHee-and

Statementof-Nondiserimination FTEND-OFE-O6PTFONT

PN



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

Overview:

The Board adopts the following grievance procedures to provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints made
by students, employees, or other Individuals who are partlcipating or attempting to participate in the Distrlct’s education
prograrn or activity, or by the Title IX Coordinator, alleging any action that would be prohibited by Title IX.

These grievance procedures shall be used for all complaints of sex discrimination, including sex-based harassment,
involving conduct alleged to have occurred on or after August 1, 2024, These grievance procedures also may be used, at
the discretion of the Title IX Coordinator, to investigate, address, and remedy (as necessary) conduct alleged to have
occurred before August 1, 2024, that does not involve sex-based harassment, but some other form of sex discrimination
prohibited by Title IX {Statute) - e.g., claims of unequal athletic opportunities, admisslons discrimination, discrimination in
courses or academic programs (i.e., excluding students from certain classes or programs based on thelr sex), pregnancy
discrimination, unequal treatment based on parental, famlly, or marital status, discrimination In employment {including In
hiring, promotion, and compensation), and retaliation, If the Title IX Coordinator elects not to use these grievances
procedures to investigate and resolve such claims, the Title IX Coordinator will still need to implement some procedures to
assess - In a prompt, effective, and equitable manner - whether Title 1X (Statute) was violated, and, if it was, how best to
end the sex discrimination In the District's education program or activity, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects,

[DRAFTING NOTE: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (“Title VII"”) and Title IX are both Federal laws that
prohibit discrimination in employment, but they differ in their focus, Title VII prohibits employment
discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, or nationaf origin, and applies to employers with fifteen (15)
or more employees. Title IX, on the other hand, specifically prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in
education programs and activities that receive Federai financial assistance, including employment within those
institutions. While both laws aim to prevent sex-based discrimination in the workplace, Title VII applies more
broadly to various types of employers, whereas Title IX Is limited to educational institutions recelving Federal
funds. Ultimately, both iaws aim to ensure equal employment opportunities and protect individuals from
discrimination, When a Title XX Coordinator recelves a complaint or notification of allaged misconduct,
involving sex discrimination {In particular, sex-based harassment) that Involves an employee complainant and
an empioves respondent, the Title XX Coordinator may want to consuit with the Board’'s Legat Counsel
concerning which law - it may ba both - the District will need to comply with when investigating the

allegations.]

Reports and Formal Complaints of “Sexual Harassment” {as defined in Policy 2266) Involving conduct afleged to have
occurred prior ko August 1, 2024, are subject to the grievance procedures outlined in Policy 2266,

Under ali clrcumstances, the Title IX Coordinator shall offer and coordinate supportive measures, as appropriate, in

accordance with this policy Gand-AGR226HTENB-OF-OPTION], or Pollcy 2266 and-AG-2266-FEND-OF-OPTIONT, If

the Report or Formal Complalnt involves “Sexual Harassment” alleged to have occurred prior to August 1, 2024,

If the conduct glving rise to a report or complalnt of sex discrimination is alleged to have occurred both before and after
August 1, 2024 (l.e,, Is part of a pattern of sex discrimination), the Title IX Coordinator shall determine (x ), after
consulting with the Board’s Legal Counsel, [END OF OPTION] whether to use the grievance procedures contained In this
policy or the grievance procedures contalned in Policy 2266, The Title IX Coordinator will notify, in writing, the partles of the
determination and the raticnale for It. Under no circumstances, however, wili a party be denled the due process to which

the paity Is entitled based on the U.S. Department of Education-lssued regulations In effect at the Hme the conduct alleged
to viofate Title IX (Statute) took place. { x) Nothing herein shall prevent the Title 1X Coordinator from using a hybrid
grievance procedure that contains aspects of the grievance procedures contained In both this policy and Policy 2266, so that
the partles recelve all of the due process to which they are entitled. [END OF OPTION]

Complaints:

The following people may make a complaint of sex discrimination - Le., request that the District investigate and make a
determination about whether sex discrimination as prohibited under Titte IX occurred:

A, a “complainant,” which includes:

1. a student or employee of the District who Is alleged to have been subjected to conduct that could constitute
seX discrimination under Title 1X; or

2. a person other than a student or empioyee of the District who is alleged to have been subjected to conduct
that could constitute sex discrimination under Title IX at a time when that Indlvidual was participating or



10/0/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

attempting to participate in the District’s educatlon program or activity;

B. a parent, guardian, or other authorized legal representative with the legal right to act on behalf of a complainant;

C. the Dlstrict’s Title IX Coordinator.

A person is entitled to make a complaint of sex-based harassment only If they themselves are alieged to have baen
subiected to the sex-based harassment, If they have a legal right to act on behalf of such person who was subjected to the
sex-based harassment, or if the Title IX Coordinator initiates a complaint consistent with the requirements of the 2024 Title

IX regulations Fwhichare-detalled-in-AG-2264-LEND-OF-OPTIONT,

[DRAFTING NOTE: This paragraph emphasizes that in order for a person to file a complaint of sex-based
harassmant, the person has to have been subjected to the alieged misconduct directly, or be a person who has
a legal right to act on behalf of the person who was subjected to the alleged misconduct. This Is consistent
with the prior paragraph where the complainant is identified as a student or employee who was “subjected to
conduct that could constitute sex discrimination under Title IX.” The following paragraph, on the other hand,
expands who can fila a complaint — when the alleged sex discriminationh does not involve sex-based
harassment - to persons who are aware of the alleged sex discrimination, even if that person was not directly

affected by or subject to the alleged sex discrimination,]

With respect to complaints of sex discrimination other than sex-based harassment, in addition to the people listed above,
the following persons have a right to make a complaint:

A, any student or employee of the District; or

B. any person other than a student or employea who was particlpating or attempting to participate in the District’s
education program or activity at the time of the alleged sex discriminatlon,

The District may consolidate complaints of sex discrimination against more than one (1) respondent, or by more than ane
{1} complainant against one (1) or more respondents, or by one {1) party against another party, when the allegations of
sex discrimination arise out of the same facts or clrcumstances, When more than one {1} complainant or more than one (1)
respondent Is involved, references below to a party, complainant, or respondent Include the plural, as applicable.

Basic Requlrements:
The District will treat compfalnants and respondents equitably.

All persons involved with implementing the grievance procedures and any other aspects of Policy 2264, including the Title
IX Coordinator, the investigator, the decislonmaker, and the appeal decislonmaker, ( ) and the facliitator of the informal
rasolution process, [END OF QPTION] shall be free from any conflicts of interest or hias for or against complainants or

respondents generally or an Indlvidual complainant or respondent.

[ % The Title IX Coordinator may serve simultaneously as an Investigator and/or a declslonmaker. [END OF OPTION]
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola recommends the Board select this OPTION; note it is "may” (i.e., opticnal) so the
Title IX Coordinator can decide whan to serve in both roles and when to designate one or moire persons to

perform those responsibllities In a given case.]

If the Title IX Coordinator does not intend to serve as the investigator and decisionmaker in a specific case, the Title IX
Coordinator shall designate one (1) or more administraters who are appropriately trained to serve in the role, Likewlise, the
Title IX Coordinator shall appoint an appeal declsionmaker when an appeal Is filed,

In circumstances when the Title IX Coordinator and tralned administrators do not have time/capacity to serve, or are
prevented due to a conflict of Interest, bias, or partiality, or other reasons that impair the Title IX Coordinator and other
tralned administrators from serving as an investigator and/or declsionmaker in a specific case, the Title IX Coordinator
shall (% ), In consultation with {x ) and approval of [END OF GPTION] the Superintendent or {3-Beard ( x) Board
President {as appropriate), [END OF OPTION] secure one (1) or more independent third parties to serve as the
investigator and/or decisionmaker. Similarly, the Title IX Coordinator has autherity { %), in consultation with { x) and
approval of [END OF OPTION] the Superintendent or 3Board (X ) Board President (as appropriate), [END OF
OPTION] to secure an independent third party to serve as the appeal decistonmaker.

The District presumes that the respondent is not responsible for the alleged sex discrimination until a determination is
made at the conclusion of its grlevance procedures,




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDacs® PL

Under ordinary circumstances, the Board expects to complete the major stages of the grievance procedures within the
timeframe specified below;

A, Evaluation - The Title IX Coordinator will determine whether to dismiss a complalnt or investigate it within
__10___ [INSERT # OF DAYS] days of receiving the complaint, [DRAFTING NOTE: Neola recommends that
the evaluation stage be completed within ten (10) days of the Title IX Coordinator receiving notice of

the complaint.]

B. Investigation - The Title X Coordinator, or designated investigator, shall ordinarily compiete the investigation (L.e.,
collect relevant evidence that is not othenwlse impermissible) within ___30__ [INSERT # OF DAYS] days of the Title
IX Coordinator determining the charges require investigation, If, however, the Title IX Coordinator, or designated
Investigator, determines that the Investigation is going to take longer, the Title IX Coordinator will so notify the
parties { %) and the Superintendent {END OF OPTION] and will thereafter keep the parties (x ) and the
Supetintendent [END OF OPTION] informed of the status of the matter on a regular, [INSERT TIME
PERIOD - E.G., BIWEEKLY OR REGULAR] basis, [DRAFTING NOTE: Recognizing ED wants investigations
to be completed in a prompt and equitable manner, and therefore provided elementary and secondary
schools with greater flexibility when It comes to completing an investigation than is afforded to them
under the 2020 Title IX regulations, Neola recommends a school districk typically compiete
Investigations within thirty {30) days.] Once the Title IX Coordinator, or designated Investigator, provides the
parties with “access” to elther the relevant and not otherwlse Impermissible evidence and/or an accurate description
of the evidence, the parties will have ___ five (5)_ [INSERT # OF DAYS] days to respond to the evidence or the
description of the evidence unless the Title IX Coordinator approves a party's written request for more time. If the
Title IX Coordinator approves such a request, both parties will be afforded an egqual amount of time to submit thelr
response. [DRAFTING NOTE: Neola recommends the Board limits the amount of time the parties have to
review the evidence/description of the evidence to flve (5) days so the matter can proceed In a timely

mannear to Determination.]

Determination ~ After the partles elther submit responses to the evidence/description of the evidence, or the
deadline for submitting such responses expires, the Title IX Coordinator; or designated decislonmaker, will consider
the relevant and otherwise not Impermissible evidence and Issue a deterimination as to whether sex discrimination
occurred, The determination shall be Issued within __10__ [INSERT # OF DAYS] days of the deadline for the
parties to submit responses to the evidence/description of the evidence {x } unless the {x ) Superintendent {3-Ftle
-Geordinater {END OF OPTION] approves an extension of time, which must be communicated In writing to the
parties [END OF OPTION]. [DRAFTING NOTE: Neofa recommends the Determination ordinarlly be Issued
within ten (16) days of the date when the parties have to submit their responses to the
avidance/description of the evidence, If the decislonmaker is someone othet than the Title IX
Coordinator, upon written request from the decisionmalker, tha Title IX Coordinator should be permitted
to approve a reasonable extension of time for the Batermination to be issued, If the Title XX Coordinator
Is the declsionmaker: upon written request from the Titia IX Coordinator, the Superintendent should be
permitted to approve a reasonable extension of time for the Determination to be issued. In either
situation, the administrator granting the extenslon should communicate to the parties the new deadline

along with a rationale for the extension.]

e

Appeal - A party flilng an appeal of the Title IX Coordinator's declsion to dismliss a complaint {x ), or the
Determination, [END OF OPTION] must do so within __five (5)_ [INSERT # OF DAYS] days of receiving the
Dismissal (x ) or Determination [END OF OPTION]. DRAFTING NOTE: Neola recommends the Board allow
limited appeals based on the Determination. See DRAFTING NOTE below in the appeal section, which
further discusses when a board “has" to allow appeals, as opposed to under which clrcumstances a
board couid decide not to allow appeals on the Determination.”]

o

The Title IX Coordinator, or the Superintendent if the Title IX Coordinator Is the Individual requesting an extension, may
approve reasonable extensions of the preceding timeframes on a case-by-case basls for good cause with notice to the

parties,

The District will take reasonable steps ko protect the privacy of the partles and witnesses during its grievance procedures.
These steps will not restrict the ability of the parties to obtain and present evidence, including by speaking to withesses;
consulting with thelr family miembers, confidentlal resources, or advisors; or otherwlse preparing for or particlpating in the
grlevance procedures, The partles shall not engage In retallation, Including against witnesses.

The Title IX Coordinator, or designated decisionmaker, shall objectively evaluate all evidence that Is relevant and not
otherwise Impermissible — including both Inculpatory and excuipatory evidence, Credibillty determinations shall not be

based on a person’s status as a complainant, respohdent, or withess,




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

The fellowing types of evidence, and questions seeking that evidence, are Impermissible (i.e., will not be accessed or
considered, except by the District to determine whather one of the exceptions listed below applies; wii not be disclosed;

and will not otherwise be used), regardiess of whether they are relevant:

A. evidence that is protected under a privilege recognized by Federal or State law {-)-erevidenceprovided-toa

confidential-employee-fENB-OF-OPTEON], unless the person to whom the privilege or confidentiality Is owed has

voluntarily walved the privilege or confidentiality; [DRAFTING NOTE: The Board should only select the
preceding OPTION if it has designated confidential employee(s).}

B, a party’s or witness's records that are made or maintained by a physiclan, psychologist, or other recognized
professional or paraprofessional in connection with the provision of treatment to the party or witness unless the
District obtains that party’s or witness's voluntary, written consent for use in Its grievance procedures; and

C. evidence that relates to the complainant’s sexual Interests or prlor sexual conduct, unless evidence about the
complainant's prior sexual conduct is offered to prove that someonhe other than the respondent committed the
alleged conduct or is evidence about specific incidents of the complainant’s prior sexual conduct with the respondent
that Is offered to prove consent to the alleged sex-based harassment. The fact of prior consensual sexual conduct
between the complainant and respondent shall not by itself demonstrate or imply the complainant's consent to the
alleged sex-based harassment or preclude a determination that sex-based harassment occurred.

Notice of Allegations:

Upon Initiation of the Board’s grievance procedures, the Title IX Coordinator shall notify the parties of the falowing:

A. the Board’s Title IX grievance procedures {x } and informal resolution process [END OF OPTIONS]; [DRAFTING
NOTE: Neola encourages the Board to include an informal resolution process.]

B, sufficient information available at the time to allow the parties to respond to the allegations, including the identitles
of the parties involved in the incident(s), the conduct alleged to constitute sex discrimination, and the date(s) and

locatlon(s) of the alleged incldent(s);

C. retaliation is prohtbited; and

D. the parties are entitied to an equal opportunity to access the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence or
an accurate description of this evidence. If the Title IX Coordinator, or designated investigator, provides the parties
with a description of the evidence, any party may request access to the relevant and not otherwlise impermissible
evidence. The Title IX Coordinator will provide the requesting party with the relevant and not otherwise
Impermissible evidence In a timely manner.

Should the Title IX Coordinator declde, at any point, to investigate allegations that are materially beyand the scope of the
initlal written notice, the Title IX Coordinator witl provide a supplemental written notice describing the additional allegations

to be investigated,
Dismlissal of a Complaint:
The Title IX Coordinator may dismiss a complalint of sex discrimination If:
A. the District Is unable to tdentify the respondent after taking reasonable steps to do so;
B, the respondent {s not participating In the District’s education program or activity and Is not employed by the Board;

C. the complainant voluntarily withdraws any or all the allegations in the complaint, the Title IX Coordinator declines to
Inltiate a complaint, and the District determines that, without the complainant’s withdrawn allegations, the conduct
that remalns alleged in the complaint, If any, would not constitute sex discrimination under Title 1X even If proven;

or

D. the District determines the conduct alleged in the complalit, even If proven, would not constitute sex discrimination
under Title IX. Before dismissing the complaint, the Title 1X Coordinator will make reasonable efforts to clarify the

allegations with the complalnant,

[DRAFTING NOTE: While the 2024 Title IX regulations do not require notification of the dismissal to be
provided In writing, Neola recommands that the Title IX Coordinator document the dismissal In writing - i.e.,

Neola recommends the board selects Option 1.}




1079124, 3:31 PM BoeardDocs® P,

[SELECT OPTION 1 OR CPTION 2}

[ x [OPTION 1]

Upon dismissal, the Title IX Coordinator will promptly notify, in writing, the complainant of the basis for the dismissal. If the
dismissal occurs after the respondent has been notifled of the allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator will also
stmultaneously notify, in writing, the respondent of the dismissal and the basls for the dlsmissal.

[END OF OPTION 1]

teri

FHHOePTION-21

Ypen-dismissal-the Fite I-Coordinaterwillprompty-netify-the-complatnant-of-the-basls-for-the-dismissal - the-disrmissat
oecurs-after-the-respondent-hos-beennotifled-of the-pllegationsrthen-the-Fitle-IX-Costdinaterwill-alse-netify-the respondent

ef-the-dlsmissat-and-the-basisfer-the-dismissal-premptiy-following-netification-te-the-complainantersimultaneousiyf
rotificator-is-in-wrting:
{ENB-OF-OPTION-2}

The Title IX Coordinator will notify the complainant that a dismissal may be appealed and will provide the complainant with
&n epportunity to appeal the dismissal of a complaint. If the dismissal occurs after the respondent has been notifled of the
allegations, then the Title IX Coordinator will also notify the respondent that the dismissal may be appealed, Dismissals

may be appealed on the following bases:
A. procedural Irregularity that would change the outcome:

B, new evidence that would change the outcome and that was not reasonably available when the dismissal was made;
and

C, the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of Interest or bias for or against complainants
or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the outcome.

If the dismissal Is appealed, the Title IX Coordinator wiil:

A. notify the parties of any appeal, including notice of the allegations, if notice was not previously provided to the
respondent;

B, Implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;

C, ensure that the appeal decisionmaker did not take part In an Investigation of the allegations or dismissal of the
complaint;

D. ensure that the appeal decisionmaker has been trained consistent with the 2024 Title 1X regulations {}-See-AG
2264 TENB-OF-OPTIONT,;

E. provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement In support of, or challenging, the
outcome; and

F. notify the parties of the result of the appeal and the rationale for the resujt.
When a complaint is dismissed, the Title IX Coordinator wilf, at a minimum:

A. offer supportlve measures to the complainant as appropriate;

B. if the respondent has been notified of the allegations, offer supportive measures to the respondent as appropriate;
and

C, take other prompt and effectlve steps, as appropriate, to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or recur
within the District’s education program or activity,

hitps:figo.boarddocs.com/mlfonst/Board.nsfPrivate 2open&loging 15/26




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® Pl

{DRAFTING NOTE: Neola encourages the Board to select the following option so the Title IX Coordinater can
choose In appropriate circumstances to offer the parties the opportunity to participate in an Informal
resolution process, or to honor the parties’ request to use an informal resolution process, to end the sex

discrimination, prevent Its recurrence, and remaedy its effects,]

x ] [OPTIONAL LANGUAGE: INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS]

Informal Resolution Process:

In lleu of resolving a complaint through the Board’s Title IX grlevance procedures, the patties may instead efect to
participate In an informal resolution process. The District wilf not offer an informal resolution to resolve a complaint that
includes allegations that an employee engaged in sex-based harassment of an elementary school or secondary school

student, or when such a process would conflict with Federal, State, or local faw,
[END OF OPTIONAL LANGUAGE: INFORMAL RESOLUTION PROCESS]

Adding Allegations and/or Consolidating Complaints:

If, in the course of an investlgation, the District decides to investigate additional allegations of sex discrimination by the
respendent toward the complainant that are not Included in the original Notice of Allegations provided or that are Included
in a camplaint that Is consolidated, the Title IX Coordinator will notify the parties of the additional allegations.

Investigation:

The District will provide for an adequate, reliable, and impartial investigation of complaints.

The burden Is on the Districk — not on the partles — to conduct an Investigation that gathers sufficlent evidence to
determine whether sex discrimination occurred.

The Title IX Coordinator, or the designated Investigator and/or decisionmaker, will provide an equal opportunity for the
parties to present fact withesses and other Incuipatory and exculpatory evidence that are relevant and not otherwlise

impermissible.

The Title IX Coordinator; or the designated investigator and/or decistonmaker, will review all evidence gathered through the
Investigation and determine what evidence is relevant and what evidence is impermissible regardless of relevance,

The District will provide each party with an equal opportunity to access the evidence that s relevant to the allegations of
sex discrimination and not othetwise impermissible, In the following manner:

A, the District wlll provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access either the relevant and not otherwise
impermissible evidence, or an accurate description of this evidence;

If the Title IX Coordinator, or designated investigator, provides a description of the evidence, the Title IX
Coordinator, or deslgnated investigator, will provide the parties with an equal opportunity to access the relevant and

not otherwise impermissible evidence upon the request of any party.

B. the District will provide a reasonable opportunity to the partles to respond to the evidence or the accurate
description of the evidence; and

C. the District will take reasonable steps to prevent and address the parties’ unauthorized disclosure of information and
evidence obtained sofely through the grievance procedures, Disclosures of such Infermation and evidence for
purposes of administrative proceedings or litlgation related to the complaint of sex discrimination are authorized,

Questioning the Parties and Witnesses:

[DRAFTING NOTE:; If the investigator and decisionmaker ara two (2) separate persons, the Board may select
OPTION 1 or OPTION 2, or refrain from addressing this topic In the policy.]

HHoPTION-1T

As-partoftheInvestigationr-theinvestigater {-may-CHs-encovraged-to-LEND-OF-OPTIO N Hhelude-in-the-vestgaters
retestfe-the-dnvestgator's-epinien-abeut-cachparkys-or-whnesss-eredibiity-to-the-extent-credibility-ls-both-in-dispute—and
relevantto-evalusting-one-{i}-or-mere-ollegatiens-efsex-diserimitations



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

END-OF-OPTION-L}

FHoPTION 2}
Fheipvestigatorshould-refralnfrorincludinginthe investigoteriynotestile-thednvestigatersopinlerabouteach-party's-or
witness's-erediblitysince-the-assessment-of-credibiity-isselely-the-respensibility-of the-decisionmalter
[ENB-OFOPTION-2

{END-OF-OPTIONS]

1f the investigator and decisionmaker are two (2) separate individuals, the decislonmaker wili have an opportunity to
question the parties and witnesses to adequately assess a party's or witness's credibility to the extent credibility is both in
dispute and relevant to evaluating one (1) or more allegations of sex discrimination,

If the investigator and the decisionmaker are the same persen, the decislonmaker will have an opportunity to questlon the
parties and witnesses in individual meetings as part of the Investigation,

[DRAFTING NOTE: The Board may select either, both, or neither of the following options. The Board should
consult with its Laga! Counsel to assess whether to offer any of thesa options,]

% 1 Before concluding the Investigation, the investigator ¢)-wilk-(x ) may [END OF OPTION] allow each patty to
proposefsubmit in writing relevant questions that the party wants asked of any party or withess and

[DRAFTING NOTE: SELECT OPTION 1, OPTION 2, OR OPTION 3. Neola does not have an opinion as to whether
the Board selects OPTION 1 or OPTION 2 but has reservations about OPTION 3, The Board should consulf with

its Legal Counsel bafore selecting OPTION 3.}

{x ) [OPTION 1]

the Investigator will review any questions submitted by the parties and ask those questions of the specific party or witness
that the investigator determines - in the investigator's sofe discretion ~ may lead to probative evidence that will assist the
decislonmaker In determining whether sex discrimination occurred. The investigator's decision to ask or not ask a speclfic
quaestion proposed by a party is not subject to review. Any questtons asked must be relevant and not otherwise

impermissible,

[END OF OPTION 1]

fer3y
-TOPTION-2}

theinvestisatewillesk-the relevant-and-net-etherwise impermissible-guestensof the-specifie-party-er-withess-durng-one
Hrer-mere-individuat-meetingsrincluding-follew—tp-meetngsywith-the-parby-or-withesss

ENB-OF-OPTION-2]

TR}

¢-+toPTION-31

the-invesHgoterwil-asicthe-relevant-questions-thatare nototherwise-impermissibleprovide-eaeh-party-with-the-answersy
and-allow-for-additionat-limited-follow-up-relovant-questisnsfrem-cach-party— (-The-lnvestigaterwillexplain-to-the party
propesing-the-guestiontsrony-deciston-to-execlude-a-guesten-ashobrelevank:

{END-OF-OPTION-33
[END OF OPTIONS]

FlAfter-the-parties-have-ar-opportunity-to-review-therelevant-and-not-otherwise-impermissible-evideneereran-acedrate
deseription-of-this-evidence-the deelsionmaker (wilH-may-

FORAFTING-NOTE-Select O PTION-1-OPTION-Z-OPTION-3 O R-OPTION-4-While Neola-dees-net-have-an-ophiion
as-to-whether-the-Board-selects OPTFION-3-a- O PTION-2-t-doesnot-recommend-the Board seleet OPTION-3-or



10/6/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL
OPTION-4;-witheut-eonsulting-with-Hts-Legal-Counsekl}

>oPTHION1T

sllow-each-party-to-propese/submitin-wrtingrelevanb-questions-that the parby-wonts-asked-ef-ony-party-er withess-and-the
dﬂﬁem%ﬂ%m%mmﬁ%ewwmemmmmm%waﬁmmm

ée%mnmﬂerﬁee@eﬂe%em%ﬂﬂw&eﬁewwam&%&aﬁﬁ&%@e&%%m%m
asked-must-be-relevant-ord-nob-etherwise mperrmissibler

[END-OF-OPTION-1}
fonr}

O-foRrTIoN-21

allow-each-party-to-propese/submitin-writingrelevant-questionsthot-the-parby-wants-osked-ofany-party-or-witness-and-the
decisiopmakerwill-ask-therelevant-and not-ethepvise impermissible-guestiens-of thespecifie party-or-witness-during-ope

-or-moereindividuamectingsinclodingfollownp-meetingswith-the parby-er-withess:
END-OF-OPFION-21
toRrR}

HePFION-33
atow-eachparty-topropese/submit-ir-wHting-relevant-guestons-that-the-party-woants osked-of ony-parby-or-withessand-the

decisiapmaker-will-asicthe-releventquestions that are-notetherwise-impermissibles-provide-each-parbywith-the-answersy

and-altevw-foradditionak-limited-follow—uprelevant-guestonsfrom-each-party- () -Fhe-deelsionmaker-wilexplain-te-the
party-propesing-thegueston{s-any-declsien-to-exelude-aquestion-as-netrelevantTEND-OF-OPFIONT

END-OF-OPTION3]

foR}

~rfoPTioN-43

providecach-party-with-anaudio-or-atdiovisualrecording-or-transeriptof the-fnvestigatersinterviews-of-the-parties-and

witresses-with-eretgh-Hime-forthe-parbesto-have-a-reasenableopportupityte-proposefsubmit-in-wilting-follow-up
questons;and-the-decisionmalcer

{whbreview-any-follow-up-gquestions-submitied-and-ask those-relevontand-nototherwise Impermissiblefellow—dp
questions-ofthe-specific-party-or-witness-that-the-decisionmaker-determines—in-the-decisionmaker's-sele-diseretion

—rroy-lead-to-probotive-evidence thabwillassist the decisionmake-in-determiningwhethersexdiserimination
ocetired—The-declslonmakers-deelslonto-ask-ornotasiaspecifie- follow-up-questien-proposed-byaporty-is-net
stbject-to-review—Any-gqtestions-asked-must-berelevantand-netothervlsempenmissibler

willasicthe relevantand-not-etherwise-impermissible-follew-up-questiens-ef- the specifie-porbyer-withessduring
ehe-(Hr-ermore-rdividuabmeetings:

ENB-OF-ORTION-4]
[END OF OPTIONS]
Determination of Whether Sex Discrimination Occurred:

Following an investigation and evaluation of alf relevant and not otherwise Impermissible evidence, the Title IX Coordinator
or designated decislonmaker will:

A, Use the preponderance of the evidence standard of proof to determine whether sex discrimination occurred.
[DRAFTING NOTE: Pursuant to the 2024 Title IX regulations, the Board may only use the "¢lear and
convincing” evidenca standard of proof if it uses that standard of proof in all other comparable
proceedings {l.e., when assassing the marlts of allegations presented pursuant to complaints filed under



10/8/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

the Board's general nondiscrimination and antiharassment pollcles - see Policies (Insert numbers of
nondiscrimination, antiharassment, and Section 504/ADA - e.g., 2260, 2260.01, 5517, and the
Employee policies that are going to be consolidated under new numbers)), Neola expects It will be a
rare situation when a board chooses to use a clear and convincing standard of proof. If the Board Is
unsure whether it meets the criterla to be able to use the “clear and convincing standard,” it should
consult with its Legal Counsel,] This standard of proof requires the decisionmaker to evaluate relevant and not
otherwlise impermissible evidence for its persuasiveness, If the decislonmaker, applying the applicable standard, Is
not persuaded by the relavant and not otherwise impermissible evidence that sex discrimination occurred,
regardless of the quantity of the evidence, the decisionmaker will not determine that sex discrimination occurred.

B. Notify the parties, In wrlting, of the determination whether sex discrimination occurred under Title IX including the
rationale for such determination, and the procedures and permissible bases for the complainant and respondent to

appeal.

C. Not impose discipline on a respondent for sex discrimination prohibited by Title IX unless there is a determination at
the conciusion of the grievance procedures that the respondent engaged in prohibited sex discrimination,

D. If there is a determination that sex discrimination occurred, the Title 1X Coordinator will, as appropriate;

1, coordinate the provision and implementation of remedies to a complainant and other people the District
Identifies as having had equal access to the District’s education program or activity limited or denied by sex

discrimination;

2, coordinate the impesition of any disciplinary sanctions on a respondent, Including notification to the
complainant of any such discipinary sanctlons; and

3, take other appropriate prompt and effective steps to ensure that sex discrimination does not continue or
recur within the District’s education program or activity,

E. Comply with the grlevance procedures before the Imposition of any disciplinary sanctions against a respondent; and

F. Not discipiine a party, withess, or others particlpating in the grievance procedures for making a false statement or
for engaging in consensual sexual conduct based solely on the determination of whether sex discrimination occurred.

[DRAETING NOTE: As addressed above, the Board must offer an appeal if the Title IX Coordinator dismisses a
complaint in the Evaluation stage {i.e., prior to commencing an investigation). While a board may etect not to
offer an appeal from the determination of whether sex discrimination occurred, Neola recommends the Board
inciude an appeal process. If the Board includes an appeat process, the appeal process must be, at a minimum,
the same appeal process the Board offers in all other comparable proceedings, including proceedings relating
to other discrimination complaints, Neola intends to update its nondiscrimination, antiharassment, and Section
504/ADA policies to provide for appeal procedures that are comparable to that which is included In the

following optlon.]
[ x [OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]

Appeal of Determinations:

If a party disagrees with the declsionmaker’s determination as to whether sex discrimination accurred, the party may file an
appeal. Appeals must be submitted, in writing, within __five (5)__ {(ENSERT # OF DAYS) days of the appealing party’s

recelpt of the Determination.
A party may appeal a Determination on the following bases:
A, procedural Irregularity that would change the outcome;

B. new evidence that would change the ocutcome and that was not reasonably available when the Datermination was
made; and

C. the Title I¥ Coordinator, investigator, or decisionmaker had a conflict of interest or blas for or against complainants
or respondents generally or the individual complainant or respondent that would change the outcome,

[DRAFTING NOTE: The Board may insert additional grounds on which an appeal may be filed.]




10/9/24, 3:31 PM

BoardDocs® PL

D. ()-therecommendedremedies-{including-disciplinary-sanctions/eansequencesyare-unreasenable-inright-ef the
findingseffoctfertheraturetpd-severibrof-the-sex-diserimination)
E. ¢-fOrHER] ;

x ] The complainant may not challenge the ultimate disciplinary sanction/consequence that is imposed, [END OF OPTION]

If a party appeals the decisionmaker’s determination, the Title 1X Coordinator will:

A. notify the parties of any appeal;

B. Implement appeal procedures equally for the parties;

C. designate an appeal decislonmaker, who will be a person who did not conduct the Investigation or render the
Determination, and {s appropriately trained (9ras-sebforthin-AG2264-TEND-OF-OPTIONT,;

1

5,

{ x) the Title IX Coordinator will designate the Superintendent to be the appeal decisionmaker, provided the
Superintendent has not been otherwise involved in the grievance procedures (l.e., did not serve as the
Investigator;, declsionmaker, or Informal resolution process facliitator) and Is appropriately trained; [END OF

OPTION]

-n-desigrating-anoppeatdecisionmakerthe Ftle B Coordinatorwill-work-withtheBoard-toldentify-and
appolntan-tndependentthird-party toserveas-theoppeal-deelslonmalker—this-individuat-shall-be-eonsidered
to-be-the Board'sdesignec-and-willsubmit-the-nppeal-decision-to-the Bourd-whe-will-promptiy-adeptit-as
weitten-and-forward-Hto-the HHe B-Coordinator-whe-will-send-tsimultancousiy te-the partles-FEND-OF

OPTION}

[DRAFTING NOTE: The preceding options are offerad for those districts where the Superintendent
or Board typically serves as the appeal decisionmakei; with vespect to Title IX, it is Neola's
opinion that It Is not feasible for the Board to serve as the declslohmaker for a number of reasons,

not the least of which is the mandatory training requiremaents.]

. provide the parties a reasonable and equal opportunity to make a statement In support of, or challenging, the

decisionmaker’s determination;

provide the appeal decislonmaker with the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence along with the
accurate description of the relevant evidence (If one was prepared and shared with the parties), any
responses the partles submitted to the investigator related to the evidence and/or the description of the
evidence (If one was prepared), and the declslonmaker’s determination; and

notify the parties, in writing, of the result of the appeal and the appeal decislonmaker’s rationale for the
outcome.

[END OF OPTIONAL LANGUAGE]

Parties Provided a Reasonable and Equal Opportunity to Make a Statement in Support of, or Challenging, the
Determination

[DRAFTING NOTE: The Board must select OPTION 1, OPTION 2, or OPTION 3]

HHOPTFION-1}

When-a-party-Hles-aroppealthe partyraust-setforth-the-reasor-for-the-appealrand-the-etherparty-wil-have
—{ENSERT-#-OF BAVS]-daystoprovide theappeal decsionmakerwitho-statement--suppert-of-thelposidon—Onee
the-deelslonmakerreceives-the-statement{or-the-deadiine for-filing-sueh-a-statement-expiresy-the-appeal-decisionmaker

wil-have ———PINSERT #-OF-DAYS]-doys-to-issue-a-decislon-er-the-appeals
END-OFOPTION-13

[OR]

[ x [OPTION 2]




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BeardDocs® PL

After a party files an appeal, both partles will have __five (5)__ [INSERT # OF DAYS] days to submit to the appeal
decisionmaker a statement In support of thelr position that they want the appeal decislonmaker to consider in rendering a
decislon. Once the decislonmaker receives each parties’ statement, or the timeline for submitting such statements expires,
the appeal decisionmaker will have __10__ [INSERT # OF DAYS] days to Issue a decision on the appeal.

[END OF OPTION 2]

toRr}

HOPFIGN-33
When-a-party-filesor-oppeai-the-appeal-deelsienmaker-shall-establish-a-tHmeline-for-each-party-to-submita-stetement-in
support-of-thelr-pasition-that-they-want- the-appeal decisienmaker-to-considerinrenderinga-decisionGnee-the
decislonmaker-recelves-the-partlesistatements;orthe timeline-established-by-the-appeatdecisienmakerfor-submittingsuch
stotements-explres,-the-appeal-declstenmalerwillhave ——INSERT#-6F DAYS]-doys-te-issue-a-decislon-onthe

appeak
FEND-OF-OPTION-3}
[END OF OPTIONS]

[DRAFTING NOTE: With respect to the timelines listed in the preceding options, Neola suggests any appeals
should be filed within five (5) days of the parties receiving written notice of the bismissal or Determination.
Neola further suggests that the timeline for submitting a statament in OPTION 1 be equivalent to the
timeframe in which an appeal has to be filed, and the timeline for submitting a statement In OPTION 2 be five
{5) days. Finally, Neola suggests the appeal decisfonmaker have ten (10} days from receipt of the statements

to Issue a decision.]
No new or additional evidence may be submitted during the appeal process.

The appeal decisionmaker shall determline the outcome of the appeal based on the appeal decisionmaker’s independent
review of the record (i.e., the relevant and not otherwise impermissible evidence, the feedback the parties provided to the
Investigator and/or decistonmaker based on their review of the relevant evidence and any description of the relevant
evidence that was prepared and shared with the parties, and the decislonmaker’s written determination) and the appeal
decislonmaker’s application of the law and Board policy to the facts in the record, The appeal decistonmaker must give due
deference and due weight to the declsionmaker’s factual findings and credibility determinations and should not overturn
them unless non-testimonial extrinsic evidence in the record justifies a contrary conclusion or unless the record read In its
entirety compels a contrary conclusion. Generally, the appeal decisionmaker is expected to uphold the decislonmaker’s
determination unless the appeal decisionmaker determines the decislonmaker’s determination is unlawful, unreasonable, or
against the manifest welght of the evidence. Every reasonable presumption must be made in favor of the decisionmaker's

determination,

The appeal decisionmaker shail

[BRAFTING NOTE: The Board must sefect either OPTION 1 or OPTION 2 unfess the Board appointed an
independent third party to serve as the Board's appeal decisionmaker, in which case the Board should select

OPTION 3.]
{ x) [OPTION 1]
stmultaneously notify the partles, in writing, of the result of the appeal and the rationale for the outcome.

[END OF OPTION 1]

tor}

) TOPTION-21

netify-the-TiHeIX-Coordinatortr-wiitingefthe-restit-of-the-appealond-therationale-for-the-outcomer-The-Fite 1%
Coordinator-wi-ther-simultanceusiy-petify-the parties-witihg-of theresulb of-the-appeal-and-the-appeal
decisionmaker’sFationale-for-the-outeomer

[END OF GPTION-2}



10/9/24, 3.31 PM BoardDocs® PL

tor}

HePTION-21

submit-the-appeal-decision-to-the Beard-whe-will-promptiy-adeptit-os-written-and-forward-it-to-the-Fitle B-Coerdinater-whe
witbsend-dt-simultancousiyto-the partles- The-appeak-desisionshall-setforth-theresulbof- the appeat-and-the-appeat
declstonmaleris-ratiorale-for-the-eutcomes

[END-OF-OPTION-3}
[END OF OPTIONS]

Supportive Measures:

The District will offer and coordinate supportive measures as appropriate for the complainant and/or respondent to restore
or preserve that person's access to the District’s education program or activity or provide support during the Board’s
grievance procedures or during the informal resolution process, For allegations of sex discrimination other than sex-based
harassment or retaliation, the District's provision of support measures does not requlire the District, Board employees, or
any other person authorized to provide aid, benefit, or service on the District’s behalf to alter the alleged discriminatory

conduct for the purpose of providing a supportive measure.

The Title IX Coordinator shall determine appropriate suppottive measures on a case-by-case basls. Supportive measures
may vary depending on what the Title IX Coordinator deems to be reasonably avallable. Supportive measures may include,
but are not limited to: counseling; extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments; school/campus escort
services; increased security and monltoring of certain areas of the campus (Including school buildings and facllities);
restrictions on contact between the parties; leaves of absence; changes In class, work, or extracurricular or any other
activity, regardless of whether there is or is not a comparable alternative; training and education programs related to sex-

based harassment; {£}+eferral-to-Empleyee-Assistonce Program-[END-OF-OPTION; and other similar measures.

Suppoitive measures must not unreasonably burden elther party and must be designed to protect the safety of the parties
and/or the District’s educational environment, or to provide support during the Board's grievance procedures o the

Informal resolution process,
The District will not impose such measures for punitive or disclplinary reasons.

The Title IX Coordinator may, as appropriate, modify or terminate supportive measures at the conclusion of the grievance
procedures, or at the conclusion of the informal resolution process, or the District may continue them beyaond that peint.

The District wili provide a complainant or respondent with a timely opportunity to seek, from an appropriate and impartial
employee, modification or reversal of the Title 1X Coordinator’s deciston to provide, deny, modify, or terminate supportive
measures applicable to them. The impartial employee must be someone other than the employee who made the challenged
decision and must have authotity to modify or reverse the decision If the impartial employee determines that the decision
to provide, deny, modify, or terminate the supportive measure was Inconsistent with the definition of suppertive meastires

as set forth In the Key Definitions section of this policy.

A party may seek additional modification or termination of a supportive measure applicable fo them If clrcumstances
change materially.

The District will not disclose information about any supportive measures to persons other than the person to whom they
apply, including informing ohe party of supportive measures provided to another party, unless necessary to provide the
supportive measure or restore or preserve a party's access to the District’s education pragram or activity, or as otherwise

permitted pursuant to the 2024 Title IX regulafions.

If the complalnant or respondent is an elementary or secondary student with a disabllity, the Title IX Coordinator shall
consult with one (1) or more members, as appropriate, of the student’s Individualized Education Program {IEP) team, If
any, ar one (1) or more members, as appropriate, of the student’s Section 504 team, If any, to determine how to comply
with the requirements of the IDEA and/or Section 504, in the Implementation of supportive measures.

The Superintendent may place an employee respondent on administrative leave from employment responsibilities during
the pendency of the Board’s grlevance procedures.

Disciplinary Sanctions and Remedies:



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

Foliowing a determination that sex-based harassment occurred, the District may impose disciplinary sanctions, which may
Include:

For Students

A. Informal Discipline
1. Orwritingassignrments;
2, rechanging-efseating-or-location;
3, rpre-schooh-(H-unehbme - )-after-schooHEND-OF-OPTIONS - detention;
4, )Hn-sehoot-diseiptiner
5, £)-Soturday-schosk:

B. Formal Disclpline
1. suspension of bus riding/transportation privileges;
2, removal from co-curricular and/or extracurricular activity(les), incleding athletics;
3. emergency removal;
4. suspension for up to ten (10) school days;

5. expulsion for up to eighty (80) school days or the number of school days remaining in a semester, whichever
Is greater;

6, expulsion for up to one (1) year;
7. permanent exclusion; and
8. any other sanction authorized by the Student Code of Conduct.
For Employees
A, (%) oral or written warning:
B. (% } written reprimands;
C. (% ) required counseling;
D. { x) required tralning or education;
E. £)-demeotiont
F. { x) suspension with pay;

G. suspension without pay;

H. termination and any other sanction authorized by any applicable Board Policy, Employee/Administrator Handbook,
and/or collective bargaining agreement.

The Dlistrict may also provide remedles which may Inciude disciplinary sanctions/consequences, The Title IX¥ Coordinator will
notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies, so an authorized administrator can consider the recommendation
and Implement appropriate remedies in compliance with applicable due process procedures, whether statutory or

contractual.

With respect to student respendents, the Title IX Coardinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies
{Including disclplinary sanctlons/consequences), so an authorized administrator can consider the recommendation(s) and
implement an appropriate remedy(les} in compliance with Pollcy 600 - Student Discipline, Policy 5605 ~
Suspenslon/Expulsion of Students with Disabllities, Policy 5610 ~ Emergency Removal, Suspension, Expuision, and

hiips:/go.boarddecs.comimilanst/Board.nsf/Private?opsn&loging 23126



10/9124, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

Permanent Excluslon of Students, Policy 5610.02 - In-School Discipline, and Policy 5611 ~ Due Process Rights. Discipline of
a student respondent must comply with the appiicable provisions of the Individuals with Disabifities Education Improvement
Act (IDEA) and/or Section 504 of the Rehabllitation Act of 1972 (“Section 504"}, and their respective Impiementing

regulations.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The Board should review applicable policy(ies)/administrative guidelines/employee
handbooks to determine whether changes are needed to establish timelines associated with impaosition of
discipline as resuit of possible delays caused by the Board’s obligation to follow the grievance procedures;
itkewlse, the Board may need to discuss with union representatives how Implementation of the grievance
procedures may impact any disciplinary provisions contained in applicable collective bargaining (e.g.,
timelines, permitted attendees at investigative interviews, etc.).}

Discipline of an employee will be implemented in accordance with Federal and State law, Board policy, and applicable
provisions of any relevant collective bargaining agreement,

Retaliation

Nelther the Board nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate agalnst any Individual for the
purpose of Interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title IX or this policy, ar because the Individual made a report
or complaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to participate In any manner In an investigation, proceeding, or
hearing under this policy. Intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination, including initiating a disciplinary process against
a person for a code of conduct violation that does not involve sex discrimination but arises out of the same facts and
circumstances as a complaint or Information reported about possible sex discrimination, for the purpose of Interfering with
the exerclse of any right or privilege secured by Title IX constitutes retaliation. Peer retaliation Is also prohibited. Retaliation
against a person for making a complaint or participating in an investigation is a serlous violatlon of this policy that can
result in the Imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.

Complaints alieging retaliation may be flled according to the grievance procedures set forth above, The District shall initiate
its grievance procedures upon recelving any complalnt alleging retaliation.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the Unlted States Constitutlon does not constitute retafiation
prohibited under this policy.

Charging an Individual with a code of conduct violation for making a materially false statement in bad faith In the course of
a grievance praceeding under this poficy shall not constitute retaliation, provided, however, that a determination that sex
discrimination occurred, alone, Is not sufficlent to conclude that any party made a materially false statement in bad faith,

Confidentiality

The District will keep confidential the identity of any Indivlduai who has made a complaint of sex discrimination, any
complainant, any Individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination, any respondent, and any
wltness, except as may be permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA"}, 20 U.5.C. 1232g, or
FERPA regulations, 34 C.F.R. part 99, ot as required by law, or to carry out the purposes of 34 C.,F.R. part 106, including the
conduct of any Investigation, hearing, or judicial proceeding arising thereunder (l.e., the District’s obilgation to maintain
confidentlality shall not impalr or otherwise affect the complainant’s and respondent’s recelpt of the information to which
they are entitled related to the investigatlon and determination of whether sex discrimination occurted),

Application of the First Amendment

The Board will construe and apply this pelicy consistent with the First Amendment to the U.S, Constltution {5)-and-the
prirciplesef-academic-freedomassetforthin-the-applicablecollective-bargaining-agreemertHEND-OF-8PFIONT. In no

case will a respondent be found to have committed sex discrimination based on expressive conduct that Is protected by the
First Amendment (endfer-the-prineiplesofacademicfreedom-specifledin-the-Board's-collective bargainingagreement

with-ltsteachers TEND-OF-GPTIONT.

Training

All employees, investigators, decisionmakers, facilitators of Informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator(s) and
deslgnees, and other persons who are responsible for Implementing the Board’s grlevance procedures or have the authority
to modify or terminate supportive measures shall receive tralning related to thelr duties under Title 1X and this Policy. The
training shall be provided promptiy upon hiring or change of position that alters their dutles under Title IX or this policy,

and annually thereafter. The training shall not rely on sex stereotypes,

‘fraining materials must be made available for inspection upon request by members of the public.



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDoss® PL

Recordkeeping
The District shall maintaln for a period of seven (7) calendar years the following records:

A, for each complaint of sex discrimination, records documenting the informal resolution process and/or the grievance
procedures followed and the resulting outcome;

B. for each notification that the Title IX Coordinator receives of Information about conduct that reasonably may
constitute sex discrimination under Titte IX, including nothlcations under 34 C.F.R, § 106.44(c){1} or (2), records
documenting the actlons the District took to meet its obligations under 34 C,F,R. §106.44; and

C. all materials used to provide the required training.
Outside Appointments, Bual Appolntments, and Delegations

The Board retains discretion to appoint suitably qualified persons who are not Board employees to fulfill any function of the
Board under this policy Including, but nat limited to, Title IX Coordinatar, Investigator, decislonmaker, appeal declsionmaker,

or facllitator of the informal resolution process.

The Board also retains discretion to appoint two {23 or more persons to jaintly fulfill the rofe of Title IX Coordinator,
investigator, decisionmaket, appeal decisionmaker, and facilltator of the Informal resolution process,

The Superintendent may delegate functions assigned to a specific Board employee under this policy Including, but not
limited to, the functions assigned to the Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decisionmaker, appeal declslonmaker, and
factlitator of the informal resolution process to any sultably qualified individuai and such delegation may be rescinded by

the Superintendent at any time.

[DRAFTING NOTE: The following optlon expressly sets forth authority that the Board has regardless of whether
it is included in this policy, but is offered for those boards of education that may want to affirmatively
communicate to/address these issues for readers of this policy.]

Hbiseretion-in-Application

The-Beard-retains-discretiontointerpretond-opply-this-poliey-inomanner thatis not cleardy- unreasenableeven-if the
Boards-interpretotion-er-application-differs-from-the-interpretotion-of any-specificcomplainantandferrespondent—

Bespite-the-Boardis-reasonable-efortstoantlelpatealleventualitiesin-drafiing-this-peliey-itHs-possible unanticipated-or
extraordinary-clreumstances-may-nobbe-spedficaly-orreasonably-addressed-by-the-exprass-poliey-larguagerwhich-ease
the-Beord-retalns-disereonteorespandto-the unanticipated-erexraordinaryclreumstanee ina-way-thatis net-clearly
vhreasensbie

The-previsions-of this-poliey-are-not-contractoal-in-noturerwhetherin-theirownHght-or-as porkof any-etherexpress-or
implied-contrast—Accordinglythe-Beard-retainsdiseretiontorevise this policyat any-Himeand-forany-teason—The-Bonrd
mey-apply-poliey-revisionsto-an-active-easeprovided that-deipgse-snet-cleary-unreasonables

{END-OF-OPTION}

© Neola 2024

Legal 20 U.5.C, 1092(F}(6)(A)(V)
20 U,5,C, 1232g

206 U.5.C, 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabllities Education Improvement Act
of 2004 {IDEIA)

20 U.5.C. 1681 et seq,, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX)
29 C.FR. Part 1636

34 C.FR, Part 99

34 C,FR, Part 106

34 U.5.C, 12291(a)(8)

Artan

[y ' w0 A P



10/6/24, 3.31 PM BoardDaocs® PL

34 1.S.C. 12291(a)(10)
34 U,5.C. 12291(a)(30)

42 U.5.C, 1983

42 U.5.C. 2000c et seq., Title 1V of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq,

42 U.5,C, 2000e et seq.

42 W.5.C, 200099

OCR's Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance (2001)

hing'tinn hanrddnece cnmimlinnelRaard neffPrivata?nnanfinning naoR



10/9724, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

%,
ONSTED

COMMUKITY SCHOOLS

Book Policy Manual

Section Special Update - Title IX - June 2024 MI Board Revislons

Title Copy of NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS OR
ACTIVITIES

Code po2266 - CH/IR 20240905

Status

Adopted June 21, 2021

2266 ~- NONDISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF SEX IN EDUCATION PROGRAMS OR ACTIVITIES (The Board's
Policy and Grievance Procedures for Responding to Sexual Harassment Alleged to Have Occurred Prior to

8/1/2024)

Effective August 1, 2024, this policy shall only pertain to Reports or Formal Complaints of Sexual Harassment that are
based on conduct alleged to have occurred on or before July 31, 2024,

Introduction

The Board of Education of the Onsted Community School District (herelnafter referred to as “the Board” or “the District”)
does not discriminate on the basis of sex (Including sexual erientation or gender identity), in its education programs or
activities, and Is required by Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, and its implementing regulations, not to
discriminate In such a manner, The requirement not to discriminate In its education program or activity extends to
admission and employment, The Board Is committed to maintaining an education and work environment that Is free from

discrimination based on sex, including sexual harassment,

The Board prohibits Sexual Harassment that occurs within its education programs and activities, When the District has
actual knowledge of Sexual Harassment in its education program or activity against a persen in the United States, it shall

promptly respond in a manner that Is not deliberately indifferent,

Pursuant to its Title IX obligations, the Board Is committed to eliminating Sexual Harassment and will take appropriate
actlon when an Individual is determined responsible for violating this policy. Board employees, students, Third Party
vendors and cantractors, guests, and other members of the Schoof District community who commit Sexual Harassment are
subject to the full range of disciplinary sanctions set forth in this policy. The Board will provide persons who have
expertenced Sexual Harassment ongoing remedies as reasonably necessary to restore or preserve access to the District’s

education programs and activitles,

Coverage

This policy applies to Sexual Harassment that occurs within the Pistrict’s education programs and activities and that Is
committed by a member of the Schoo! District communilty or a Third Party,

This pollcy does not apply to Sexual Harassment that occurs off scheol grounds, in a private setting, and outside the scope
of the District’s education programs and activities; such Sexual Misconduct/Sexual Activity may be prohibited by the
Student Code of Conduct if committed by a student, or by Board pollcles and administrative guldelines, applicable State

and/or Federal laws If committed by a Board employee,

Consistent with the U.S. Department of Education’s iImplementing regulations for Titie 1X, this policy does not apply to
Sexual Harassment that occurs outside the geographic boundaries of the United States, even if the Sexual Harassment
occurs In the District’s education programs or activities, Sexual Harassment that occurs outside the geographic boundartes



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

of the United States is governed by the Student Code of Conduct if committed by a student, or by Board policles and
administrative guidelines, applicable State and/or Federal laws and/or Employee/Administrator Handbook(s) If committed

by a Board employee.

Refinitions

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined hereln; words not defined herein shall be construed according
to their plain and ordinary meanings.

Sexual Harassment: “Sexual Harassment” means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or more of the folfowing:

A. A Board employee conditioning the provision of an ald, benefit, or service of the District on an Individual's
particlpation In unwelcome sexual conduct (often called “quid pro guo” harassment);

B, Unwelcome conduct determined by a reascnable person to be so severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it
effectively denles a person equal access to the District’s education program or activity; or

C. “Sexual assault” as defined In 20 U,8,C. 1092(f)(6)A(v}, or “dating violence” as deflned In 34 U.5.C. 12291(a}(10),
“domestic violence” as defined in 34 U.S5.C. 12291(a)}{(8), or “stalking” as defined in 34 U,5.C. 12291(a)(30).

“Sexual assault” means any sexual act directed against another person, without the consent of the victim, including
Instances where the victim s incapable of giving consent, and the "nonforelble" sex offenses of Incest and Statutory
Rape. Sexual assault Includes rape, sodomy, sexual assault with an object, fondfing, Incest, and statutory rape,

1. Rape is the carnal knowledge of a person (i.e., penetration, no matter how slight, of the genital or anal
opening of a person), without the consent of the victim, including instances where the victim Is Incapable of
glving consent because of age or because of temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity,

2. Sodomy is oral or anal sexual Intercourse with another person, without the consent of the victim, including
Instances where the victim Is incapabie of giving consent because of age or because of temporary or

permanent mental or physlecat incapacity,

3. Sexual Assauft with an Obfect is using an object or instrument to unlawfully penetrate, however slightly, the
genital or anal opening of the body of another person, without the consent of the vicHm, including instances
where the victim is incapable of glving consent because of age or bacause of temporary or permanent mental
or physical incapacity, An “object” or “Instrument” is anything used by the offender other than the offender’s

genitalia.

4. Fondling is the touching of the private body parts of another person for the purpose of sexual gratification,
without the consent of the victim, Including Instances where the victim is incapable of giving consent because
of age or because of temporary or permanent mental or physical incapacity. Incest Is sextal intercourse
between persons who are related to each other within the degrees whereln marrlage is prohibited by State

law.

Statutory Rape is sexual intercourse with a person who is under the statutory age of consent as deflned by
State law.

o

6. Consent refers to words or actions that a reasonable person would understand as agreement to engage in the
sexual conduct at Issue, A person may be incapable of giving consent because of age or because of
temporary or permanent mental or physical Incapacity, A person who Is Incapacitated is not capable of giving

consent,

7. Incapacitated refers to the state where a person does not understand and/or appreclate the nature or fact of
sexual activity due to the effect of drugs or alcohol consumption, medical condition, disability, or due to a

state of unconsclousness or sleep.
D, “Domestic violence” includes felany or misdemeanor crimes of violence comimitted by:
1. a current or former spouse or Intimate partner of the victim;
2, a person with whom the victim shares a child in common;

3. a person who is cohabltating with or has cohabltated with the victim as a spouse or Intimate partner;




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDacs® PL

4. a person similarly situated to a spouse of the victim under the domestic or family violence laws of the
jurisdiction in which the crime occurred; or

5, any other person against an adult or youth victim who Is protected from that person’s acts under the
domestic or family violence laws of the jurisdiction in which the crime occurred,.

E. "Dating violence” means violence committed by a person who s or has been In a soclal relationship of a romantic or
intimate nature with the victim. The existence of such a relationship shall be determined based on consideration of
the length of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of interaction between the persons

involved in the relatlonshlp.

F. “Stalking” means engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific person that would cause a reasonable person
to - (1) fear for the person's safety or the safety of others; or (2) suffer substantiai emotional distress.

Complainant; “Complainant” means an individual who s alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute Sexual
Harassment,

Respondent: "Respondent” means an individual who has been reported to be the perpatrator of conduct that could
constitute Sexual Harassment.

Formal Complaint: "Formal Complalnt” means a document filed by a Complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator
alleging Sexual Harassment against a Respondent and requesting that the District investigate the allegation(s) of Sexual
Harassment, At the time of filing a Formal Complaint with the District, 2 Complainant must be participating in or attempting
to participate In the District’s education program or activity. A “document filed by a complalnant” means a document or
electronic submissfon (such as by electronic mail or through an online portal that the Board provides for this purpose) that
contalns the Complainant’s physical or digital signature, or otherwise Indicates that the Complainant is the person filing the
Formal Complalnt. Where the Title IX Coordlnator signs a Formal Complalnt, the Title IX Coordinator is not a Complaltnant
or a party to the Formal Complaint and must not have a conflict of interest or bias for or against complainants or
respondents generally or an Individual complainant or respondent,

Actual Knowledge: “Actual knowledge” means notice of Sexual Harassment or allegations of Sexual Harassment to the
District’s Title IX Coordinator, or any District official who has authority to Institute corrective measures on behalf of the
Board, or any Board employee. The mere abifity or obligation to report Sexual Harassment or to inform a student about
how to report Sextal Harassment, or having been trained to do so, does not gualify an Individual as one who has authority
to institute corrective measures on behalf of the District. “Notice” includes, but Is not limited to, a report of Sexual
Harassment to the Title I¥ Coordinater, This standard Is not met when the only District official with actual knowledge Is the

Respondent,

Supportive Measures: “"Supportive measures” means non-disciplinary, non-punitive individuallzed services offered as
appropriate, as reasonably avallable, and without fee or charge to the Complalnant or the Respondent before or after the
filing of a Formal Complaint or where no Formal Complaint has been filed, Such measures are designed to restore or
preserve equal access to the District’s education program or activity without unreasonably burdening the other party,
including measures deslgned to protect the safety of all parties or the District’'s educational environment, or deter Sexual
Harassment. Supportive meastres may Include counseling, extensions of deadlines or other course-related adjustments,
modifications of work or class schedules, school/campus escort services, mutual restrictions of contact between the parties,
changes In work locations), leaves of absence, increased security and monitoring of certain areas of the campus {including

school buiidings and faciiltles), and other similar measures.

Education Program or Activity: “Education program or activity” refers to all operations of the District, including but not
limited to In-person and online educational Instruction, employment, extracurricular activitles, athletics, performances, and
commtnlty engagement and outreach programs. The term applles to all activity that occurs on school grounds or on other
property owned or occupled by the Board, It also includes locations, events and circumstances that take place off-school
property/grounds over which the Board exercises substantial control over both the Respondent and the context in which the

Sexual Harassment occuys,

School District community: “School District community” refers to students and Board employees (i.e., administrators,
and professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other persons subject

to the control and supervision of the Board,

Third Parties: "Third Parties” include, but are not limited to, quests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g.,
visiting speakers, particlpants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors deing business with, or seeking to do business
with the Board, and other individuals who come In contact with members of the School District community at school-related

events/activities {whether on or off District property).

B T T e I I Ty Ry 't o Iy L P T A



10/0/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

Inculpatory Evidence: “Inculpatory evidence” Is evidence that tends to establish a Respondent’s responsibility for alleged
Sexual Harassment.

Excuipatory Evidence: “"Exculpatory evidence” is evidence that tends to clear or excuse a Respondent from allegations of
Sexual Harassment,

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwlse, the term “day” or “days” as used In this policy means bustness day(s) {l.e, @
day(s) that the Board office is open for norma!l operating hours, Monday - Friday, excluding State-recognized holldays).

Elligible Student: “Eligible Student” means a student who has reached eighteen (18) years of age or is attending an
Institution of postsecondary education.

Title IX Coordinator(s)

The Board of Education designates and authorizes the following individual(s) to oversee and coordinate its efforts to comply
with Title IX and its implementing regulations:

Karen Spinger

Human Resources
517-467-2173

10109 Siee Rd,.

Onsted, MI 49265
springer.k@onstedschools.us

Tim Comden

High School Principal
517-467-2171

10109 Slee Rd.

Onsted, M1 49265
comden.t@onstedschoois.us

The Title 1X Coordinators shall report directly to the Superintendent. Questions about this policy should be directed to the
Title IX Coordinator.

The Superintendent shall notify applicants for admission and employment, students, parents or legal guardians of
elementary and secondary scheol students, Board employees, and ail unlons or professional organizations holding collective
bargalning or professional agreements with the Board of the following information:

The Board of Education of the Onsted Community School District does not discriminate on the basis of sex In its education
program or activity, and Is required by Tille IX and its Implementing regulations not to discrimlnate in such a manner. The
requirement not to discriminate in its education program or activity extends to admission and employment, The District’s

Title IX Coordinator{s}) Is/are:

Karen Springer

Human Resources
517-467-2173

10109 Slee Rd,

Onsted, MI 45265
springer.k@anstedschools.us

Tim Comden

High School Principal
517-467-2171

10109 Slee Rd.

Onsted MI 49265
comden.t@onstedschools.us

Any Inquirfes about the application of Title IX and Its Implementing regulations to the District may be referred to the Title IX
Coordinator{s), the Assistant Secretary for the U.S. Depairtment of Educaton’s Office for Civil Rights, or both.

The Board has adopted a grievance process that provides for the prompt and equitable resolution of student and employee
complaints alleging any actlon that Is prohiblted by Title 1X and/or its Impfementing regulations. The grievance
process Is Included in Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex In Education Programs or Actlvities, which Is



10/9124, 3:31 PM BaardDocs® PL

avaltable at: www.onstedschools.us. The grievance process specifically addresses how to report or fite a complaint of sex
discrimination, how to report or file a formal complaint of Sexual Harassment, and how the District wiil respond.

The Superintendent shall also prominently display the Title X Coordinator's(s’) contact information - Including name(s)
and/or title(s), phone number(s), office address(es), and e-mall address{es) - and this policy on the District’s website and
in each handbook or catalog that the Board makes available to applicants for admission and employment, students, parents
or legal guardians of elementary and secondary schaol students, Board employees, and all unions or professional
organizations holding collective bargaining or professional agreements,

Grievance Process

The Board Is committed to promptly and equitably resolving student and employee complaints alleging Sexual Harassment.
The District’s response to allegations of Sexual Harassment will treat Complainants and Respondents equitably, Including
providing supportive measures to the Complalnant and Respondent, as appropriate, and following this Grievance Process
before imposition of any disciplinary sanctlons or other actlons, other than supportive measures, agalnst the Respondent.

The Title 1X Coordinator(s), along with any investigator(s}), decision-maker(s), or any person(s) designated to facifitate an
informal resolution process, shall not have a conflict of Interest or blas for or agalnst Complainants or Respondents

generally or an individual Complainant or Respondent,

If & datermination of responsibility for Sexua! Harassment is made against the Respondent, the Board will provide remedies
to the Complainant. The remedies will be deslgned to restore or preserve equal access to the District's education program
or activity. Patentlal remedies include, but are not limited to, Individualized services that constitute supportive measures.

Remedies may also be disciplinary or punitive In nature and may burden the Respondent.

Report of Sexual Discrimination/Harassment

Any person may report sex discrimination, Including Sexual Harassment {whether or not the person reporting is the person
alleged to be the victim of conduct that could constitute sex discrimination or Sexual Harassment), in person, by mail, by
telephone, or by electronic mall, using the Title IX Coordinator's(s’) contact Information listed above, or by any other means
that results in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person’s oral or written report, Reports may be made at any time
(including during nen-business hours), by using the telephone number(s) or electronic mail address{es), or by mali to the

office address(es}, listed for the Title IX Coordinator(s).

Students, Board members, and Board employees are required, and other members of the School District community, and
Third Parttes are encouraged, to report allegations of sex discrimination or Sexual Harassment promptly to thefa Title IX
Coordinator or to any Board employee, who will In turn notify thefa Title 1X Coordinator. Reports can he made orally or In
writing and should be as specific as possible, The person making the report should, to the extent known, Identify the
alleged victim(s), perpetrator(s), and witness(es), and describe in detall what occurred, including date(s), time{s), and

location(s).

If a report invoives allegations of Sexual Harassment by or Invoiving the Title 1X Coordinator, the person making the report
should submit It to the Superintendent, or ancther Board employee who, In turn, will notify the Superintendent of the
report. The Superintendent wiil then serve in place of the Title IX Coardinator for purposes of addressing that report of

Sexual Harassment.

The Board does busihess with varlous vendors, contractors, and other Third Parties who are not students or employees of
the Board. Notwithstanding any rights that a given vendor, contractor, or Third Party Respondent may have under this
policy, the Board retains the right to fimit any vendor’s, contractor’s, or Third Party's access to school grounds for any
reason. The Board further retains all rights it enjoys by contract or law to terminate its relationship with any vendor,
contractor, or Third Party irrespective of any process or outcome under this policy,

A person may file criminal charges simultaneously with filing a Formal Complaint, A person does not need to walt untll the
Title IX Investigation Is completed before filing a criminal complaint, Likewlise, questions or complaints relating te Title IX
may be filed with the U.S. Department of Education’s Office for Civil Rights at any Hme.

Any allegations of Sexual Misconduct/Sexual Activity not Involving Sexual Harassment will be addressed through the
procedures outlined in Board policies the applicable Student Code of Canduct, applicable collective bargalning agreement,

and/or Employea/Administrator Handbook,

Because the Board Is considered to have actual knowledge of Sexuval Harassment or allegations of Sexual Harassment if any
Board emplovee has such knowledge, and because the Board must take specific actions when it has notlce of Sexual
Harassment or aliegations of Sexual Harassment, a Board employee who has independent knowledge of or recelves a report
involving allegations of sex discriminatfon and/or Sexual Harassment must notify the/a Title IX Coordinator within two (2)




10/9124, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

daVys of learning the informatlon or receiving the report, The Board empleyee must also comply with mandatory reporting
responsihilitles pursuant to M.C.L, 722.623 and Pollcy 8462 - Student Abuse and Neglect, If applicable, If the Board
employee’s knowledge Is based on another Individua!l bringing the Information to the Board employee’s attention and the
reporting Individual submitted a written complaint to the Board employee, the Board employee must provide the written

complaint to the Title IX Coordinator.

If a Board employee falls to report an incldent of Sexual Harassment of which the Board employee Is aware, the Board
employee may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and Including termination.

When a report of Sexual Harassment Is made, the Title X Coordinator shall promptly {i.e., within two (2) days of the Title
IX Coordinator’s recelpt of the report of Sexual Harassment) contact the Complainant (including the parent/guardian If the
Complainant is under eighteen (18) years of age or under guardianship) to discuss the avaitability of supportive measures,
constder the Complalnant’s wishes with respect to supportive measures, inform the Complainant of the avallability of
supportive measures with or without the filing of a Formal Complaint, and explaln to the Complalnant the process for filing
a Formal Complaint. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for coordinating the effective implementation of supportive
measures. Any supportive measures provided to the Complainant or Respondent shall be maintalned as confidential, to the
extent that malntaining such confidentiality will not impalr the ability of the District to provide the supportive measures,

Emergency Removal Subject to limitations and/or procedures imposed by State and/or Federal law, the District may
remove a student Respondent from Its education program or activity on an emergency basis after conducting an
Individualized safety and risk analysis. The purposes of the individualized safety and risk analysis is to determine whether
the student Respondent poses an Immedlate thvreat to the physical health or safety of any student or other individual arlsing
from the allegations of Sexual Harassment that justifies removal, If the District determines the student Respondent poses
such a threat, It will so notify the student Respondent and the student Respondent will have an opportunity to challenge the
decision immediately following the removal. See Policy 5610 - Emergency Removal, Suspension, and Expulsion of

Students and Policy 5611 - Due Process Rights,

If the Respondent Is & non-student employee, the District may place the Respondent on administrative leave during the
pendency of the grievance process.

For all other Respondents, Including other members of the Schoo] District cornmunity and Third Partles, the Board retains
broad discretion to prohlbit such persons from entering onto its school grounds and other properties at any time and for
any reason, whether after receiving a report of Sexual Harassment or otherwise.

Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment

A Formal Complaint may be filed with the Title IX Coordinator In person, by mall, or by electronic mail, by using the contact
Information set forth above. If a Formal Complaint involves aliegations of Sexual Harassment by or involving the Title IX
Coordinator, the Complainant should submit the Formal Complaint to the Superintendent, who will designate another
person to serve in place of the Title IX Coordinator for the limited purpose of Implementing the grievance process with

respect to that Formal Complaint.

When the Tltle IX Coordinator receives a Formal Complaint or signs a Formal Cemplalnt, the District will follow its Grievance
Process, as set forth herein. Specifically, the District will undertake an ohjective evaluation of all relevant evidence ~
Including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence ~ and provide that credibility determinations will not be based on a

person’s status as a Complainant, Respondent, or withess.

It is a violation of this policy for a Complainant(s), Respondent(s), and/or witness(es) to knowlngly making false statements
or knowlingly submitting false Information during the grievance process, including intentionally making a false report of
Sexual Harassment or submitting a false Formal Complaint. The Board will not tolerate such conduct, which Is a violation of

the Student Code of Conduct and the Employee/Administrator Handbook.

The Respondent is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct until a determination regarding responsibility is made
at the conclusion of the grievance process.

Timeline

The District wilf seek to conclude the grievance process, Inciuding resolving any appeals, within sixty {(60) days of receipt of
the Formal Complaint,

If the Title IX Coardinator offers Informal resofution processes, the Informal resolution processes may not be used by the
Complainant or Respondent to unduly delay the Investigation and determination of responsibility. The timeline, however,
may be subject to a temporary delay of the grlevance process or a limited extenslon for good cause with written notice to
the Complainant and the Respondent of the delay or extension and the reasons for the action, Good cause may inciude

hitps:ffgo.boarddacs.cami/mlionst/Baard.nsf/Private?ependdoning 6/14




10/0/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

considerations such as the absence of a party, a party’s advisor, or a witness; concurrent law enforcement activity; and the
need for language assistance or accommodation of disabilities, The Title 1X Coordinator will provide the parties with

reasonable updates on the status of the grievance process,

Upon receipt of a Formal Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator will provide written notice of the following to the parties who
are known:

A, Notice of the Board’s grievance process, including any informal resolution processes;

B. Notice of the aliegations of misconduct that potentially constitutes Sexual Harassment as defined In this policy,
including sufficient details known at the time and with sufficient time to prepare a response before any initial
interview. Sufficient detalls include the Identities of the parties invelved in the incident, If known, the conduct
allegedly constituting Sexual Harassment, and the date and location of the alleged incident, if known. The written

notice must:

1. include a statement that the Respondent Is presumed not responsible for the alleged conduct and that a
determination regarding responsibility will be made at the conclusion of the grievance process;

2. inform the parties that they may have an advisor of their choice, who may be, but Is not required to be, an
attorney, and may inspect and review avidence,

3. inform the parties of any provision in the Student Code of Conduct, board policy, and/for
Employee/Administrator Handbook that prohibits knowingly making false statements or knowingly submitting

false information during the grievance process,

If, duting the course of the investigation, the investigator becomes aware of allegations about the Complainant or
Respondent that are not included in the original notice provided to the partles, the Investigator wil notify the Title 1X
Coordinator and the Title IX Coordinator will decide whether the Investigator should Investigate the additional allegations; I
the Title IX Coordinator decides to include the new allegations as part of the investigation, the Title IX Coordinator wiit
provide notice of the additional allegations to the parties whose identities are known,

Dismissal of a Formal Complaint

The District shall Investigate the allegations In a Formal Complaint, unless the conduct alleged In the Formal Complaint:
A. would not constitute Sexual Harassment (as defined in this policy) even If proved;
B, did not occur in the District’s education program or activity; or

C. did not occur against a person in the United States,

If one of the preceding clrcumstances exist, the Title IX Coordinator shall dismlss the Formal Complaint, If the Tite IX
Coordinator dismisses the Formal Complaint due to one of the preceding reasons, the District may still investigate and take
action with respect to such alleged misconduct pursuant te another provision of an applicable code of conduct, Board policy,

and/or Employee/Administrator Handbook.

The Title IX Coordinator may dismiss a Formal Complaint, or any allegations therein, if at any time during the Investigation:

A. a Complainant notifles the Title IX Coordinator In writing that the Complainant would like to withdraw the Formal
Cemplaint or any allegations therein;

B. the Respondent Is no longer enrolled in the District or employed by the Board; or

C. speclfic circumstances prevent the District from gathering evidence sufficient to reach a determination as to the
Formal Complaint or allegations therein,

If the Title IX Coordinator dismisses a Formal Complaint or allegations theretn, the Title IX Coordinator must promptly send
written notice of the dismissal and the reason(s) therefor simultaneously to the partles,

Consolidation of Formal Complaints

The Title IX Coordinator may consolidate Formal Complaints as to aliegations of Sexual Harassment against more than one
Respondent, or by more than one Complainant agalnst one or more Respondents, or by one party agalnst the other party,
whaere the allegations of Sexual Harassment arise out of the same facts or clrcumstances,




10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

Where a grievance process involves more than cne Complainant or more than one Respondent, referances in this policy to
the singular “paity,” “Complalnant,” or “Respondent” include the plural, as applicable.

Informal Resalution Process

Under no circumstances shall a Complainant be required as a condition of enrollment or continuing enrellment, or
employment or continuing employment, or enjoyment of any other right, to waive any right to an Investigation and
adjudication of a Formal Complaint of Sexual Harassment. Similarly, no party shall be required to participate in an informal

resolution process.

If & Formal Complaint is filed, the Title IX Coordinator may offer to the parties an informat resolution process. If the parties
mutually agree to participate in the Informaf resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator shall designate a trained Individual
to facliitate an Informal resolution process, such as mediation, that does not Involve a full Investigation and adjudication,

The informal resolution process may be used at any time prior to the declsion-maker(s) reaching a determination regarding

rasponslbility,

If the Title IX Coardinator is golng to prepose an Informal resolution process, the Title IX Coordinator shall provide to the
parties a written notice disclosing:

A. the allegations;

B. the requirements of the informal resolution process Including the cdrcumstances under which It precludes the parties
from resuming a Formal Complaint arising from the same allegations; and

C. any consequences resulting from participating In the informal resolution process, including the records that will be
malntalned or could be shared.

Any time prior to agreeing to a resolution, any party has the right to withdraw from the Informal resolution process and
resuine the grievance process with respect to the Formal Complaint,

Before commencing the informal resolution process, the Title 1X Coordinator shall obtain from the parties their voluntary,
written consent to the informal resolution process.

During the pendency of the Informal resolution pracess, the Investigation and adjudication processes that would otherwise
accur have stayed and all related deadlines are suspended.

The Informal resolutioh process Is not avallable to resolve allegations that a Board employee or another adult member of
the Schoo! District community or Third Party sexually harassed a student.

The informal resolution process is not available to resolve allegations involving a sexual assault Involving a student
Complainant and a student Respondent.

Investigation of a Formal Complalnt of Sexual Harassment

In conducting the Investigation of a Formal Comiplaint and throughout the grievance process, the burden of proof and the
burden of gathering evidence sufficlent to reach a determination regarding responsibility is on the District, not the partles,

in making the determination of responsibility, the decision-maker(s) is{are) directed to use the preponderance of the
evidence standard. The deciston-maker{s} Is charged with considering the totallty of all avafiable evidence, from all relevant

sQurces.

The District is not permitted to access, conslder, disclose, or otherwise use a party’s records that are made or malntained
by a physlclan, psychiatrist, psychologist, or other recognized professional or paraprofessional acting In the professional’s or
paraprofessional’s capacity, or assisting In that capacity, and which are made and malntalined In connection with the
provision of treatment to the party, unless the party provides the District with voluntary, written consent to do so; If a
student party Is not an Eligible Student, the District must obtain the voluntary, written consent of a parent.

Similarly, the investigator(s) and deciston-maker(s) may not require, allow, rely upon or otherwise use guestions or
evidence that constitute, or seek disclosure of, information protected under a legally recognized privilege, unless the person

holding such privilege has walved the privilege in writing,

As pait of the Investigation, the parties have the right to:




1019724, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

A, present witnesses, Including fact and expert witnesses, and other Inculpatory and exculpatory evidence; and

B. have others present during any grievance proceeding, including the opportunity to be accompanled to any related
meeting or proceeding by the advisor of thelr choice, who may be, but is not required to be, an attorney, The
District may not [imit the cholce or presence of an advisor for either the Complainant or Respondeant in any meeting

or grievance proceeding,

Nelther party shall be restricted in their abllity to discuss the allegations under investigation or to gather and present
relevant evidence.

Both parties shall have an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence obtained as part of the investigation that is
directly related to the allegations ralsed in the Formal Complaint, including the evidence upon which the District does not
Intend to rely In reaching a determination regarding responsibility and inculpatory or exculpatory evidence whether
obtalned from a party or other source, so that each party can meaningfully respond to the evidence prior to the conclusion

of the Investigation.

Prior to completion of the investigative report, the investigator wilf send to each party and the party’s advisor, if any, the
evidence subject to inspection and review In an electronic format or a hard copy, and the parties wilj have at Jeast ten {10)
calendar days to submit a written response, which the investigator will consider prior to completion of the investigative
report, The District will make all such evidence subject to the partles’ inspection and review avallable at any hearing to give
each party equal opportunity to refer to such evidence during the hearing, including for purposes of cross-examination,

At the conclusion of the investigation, the investigator shall create an investigative report that falrly summarizes relevant
evidence and send the report to each pairty and the party’s advisor, if any, for their review and written response. The
investigator will send the investigative report in an electronic format or a hard copy, at least ten (10} calendar days prior
to the decislon-maker(s) issuing a determination regarding responsibility,

Determination of Responsibility

The Title IX Coordinator shall appoint a declsion-maker(s) to Issue a determination of responsibllity, The declslon-maker(s)
cannot be the same person(s) as the Title IX Coordinator(s} or the investigator(s),

After the investigator sends the Investigative report to the parties and the decision-maker(s), and before the decision-
maker(s) reaches a determination regarding responsibllity, the decisfon-maker(s) will afford each party the opportunity to
submit written, relevant questions that a party wants asked of any party or witness, provide each party with the answers,
and allow for additional, {imited follow-up questions from each party. The decision-maker(s} must explain to the party
proposing the questions any decision to exciude a question as not relevant.

Questions and evidence about the Complainant’s sexual predisposttion or prior sexual behavior are not relevant, unless
such questlons and evidence about the Complalnant’s prior sexual behavior are offered to prove that someone other than
the Respondent committed the conduct alleged by the Complainant, or if the questions and evidence concern specific
tncidents of the Complainant's prior sexual behavier with respect to the Respondent and are offered to prove consent, The
decislon-maker(s) must explain to the party proposing the questions any declslon to exciude a guestion as not relevant,

Determination regarding responslbility: The decision-maker(s) will Issue a written determination regarding
responsibliity. To reach this determination, the decision-maker{s)} must apply the preponderance of the evidence standard.

The written determination will include the following content:
A. identification of the allegations potentially constituting Sexual Harassment pursuant to this pollcy;

B. a description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the Formal Compiaint through the determination,
inclueding any notifications to the parties, interviews with paities and witnesses, site visits, fand] methods used to

gather other evidence;
C. findings of fact supporting the determination;
. D. conclusions regarding the application of the applicable code of conduct to the facts;

E, a statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including a determination regarding responsibitity,
any disciplinary sanctlons the declslon-maker(s) ts recommending that the District impose on the Respondent(s),
and whether remedles desighed to restore or preserve equal access to the District’s education program or activity
should be provided by the District to the Complalinant(s); and :



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL.

F. the procedures and permissible bases for the Complainant{s} and Respondent{s} to appeal.

The following disciplinary sanctions/consequences may be Imposed on a student Respondent who Is determined responsible
for violating this policy {i.e., engaging In Sexual Harassment):

A. Informal Disclpline
1. writing assfgnments;
2. changing of seating or location:
3, pre-school, lunchtime, after-school detention;
4. In-school disclpline;
B, Formal Discipline
1. suspension of bus riding/transportation privileges;

2. ramoval from co-curricluar and/or extra-curricluar activity(ies), including athietics;

3. emergency removal;

4, suspension for up to ten {10) school days;

5, long-term suspenslan or expulsion;

6. any other sanction authorized by the Student Code of Conduct,
1f the decision-maker{s) determines the student Respondent Is responsible for violating this policy {l.e., engaging In Sexual
Harassment), the decislon-maker{s) wiil recommend appropriate remedies, including discipiinary sanctions/consequences,

The Title IX Coordinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies, so an authorized administrator can
consider the recommendation{s) and implement an appropriate remedy{ies) in compliance with Policy 5600 ~ Student
Discipline, Poiicy 5605 ~ Suspenslon/Expuision of Students with Disabllities, Policy 5610 - Emergency Removal, Suspension,
and Expulsion of Students, Policy 5610.02 - In-Schoo! Discipiine, and Policy 5611 ~ Due Process Rights. Discipline of a
student Respondent must comply with the applicable provisions of the Individuals with Disabiilties Education Improvement
Act (IDEA) and/or Section 504 of the Rehabllitation Act of 1972, and thelr respective implementing regulations,

The follawing disciplinary sanctions/consequences may be Imposed on an employee Respondent who Is determined
responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in Sexual Harassment}:

A. oral or written warning;
B. written reprimands;
C. performance improvement plan;

D. required counseling;

E. requlred tralning or education;

F, demotion;

@G. suspension with pay;

H, suspenslon without pay;

1. termination, and any other sanction authorized by any applicable Employee/Administrator Handbook and/or
collective bargaining agreement. ‘

If the decision-maker(s) determines the employee Respondent s responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging In
Sexual Harassment), the decision-maker(s) will recommend appropriate remedies, Including disciplinary
sanctlons/consequences, The Title IX Coordinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedles, so an



10/8/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

authorized administrator can conslder the recommendation(s) and implement an appropriate remedy(ies} in compliance
with applicable due process procedures, whether statutory or contractual,

Discipline of an employee will be implemented In accordance with Federal and State law, Board policy, and applicable
provislons of any relevant collective bargaining agreement.

The foltowing disciplinary sanctions/consequences may be Imposed on a non-student/non-employee member of the School
District community or Third Party who Is determined responsible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging In Sexual

Harassment):

A. oral or written warning;

B. suspension or terminatlon/cancellation of the Board's contract with the Third Party vendor or contractor;

C. mandatory monitoring of the Third Party while on school property and/or while working/interacting with students;
D

. restriction/prohibition on the Third Party ablility to be on school property; and

E, any combination of the same.

If the declsion-maker(s) determines the Third Party Respondent is respansible for violating this policy (i.e., engaging in
Sexual Harassment), the decislon-maker(s) will recommend appropriate remedies, including imposition of sanctions. The
Title IX Coordinator will notify the Superintendent of the recommended remedies, so appropriate action can be taken,

The decislon-maker(s) will provide the written determination to the Title IX Coordinator who will provide the written
determination to the pariles simultaneously.

In ultimately, imposing a disciplinary sanction/consequence, the Superintendent will consider the severity of the incident,
previous disclplinary violations (if any), and any mitigating circumstances.

The District’s resolution of a Farmal Complaint ordinarily will not be Impacted by the fact that criminal charges involving the
same Incldent have been filed or that charges have been dismissed or reduced.

At any point In the grievance process, the Superintendent may Involve local Jaw enforcement andjor file criminal charges
related to allagations of Sexual Harassment that Involve a sexual assault.

The Title 1X Coordinator Is responsible for effective impiementation of any remedtes,

Appeal

Both partles have the right to file an appeal from a determination regarding responsibifity, or from the Title IX Coordinator’s
dismissal of a Formal Complaint or any allegations therein, on the following bases:

A, Procedural irregularity that affected the outcome of the matter (e.g., material deviation from established
procedures};

B. New evidence that was not reasonably avallable at the time the determination regarding responsibility or dismissal
was made, that could affect the outcome of the matter; and

C. The Title IX Coordinator, Investigator(s), or decision-maker(s) had a conflict of interest or blas for or agatnst
Complainants or Respondents generally or the Individual Complalnant{s) or Respondent(s) that affected the outcome

of the matter.

Any party wishing to appeal the declslon-maker(s)’s determination of responsibility, or the Title IX Coordinator’s dismissal
of a Formal Complaint or any allegations thereln, must submit a written appeal to the Title IX Coordinator within five (5)
business days after receipt of the decision-maker(s)’s determination of responslibility or the Title IX Coordinator’s dismissal

of a Formal Complaint or any allegations therein,

Nothing hereln shall prevent the Superintendent from implementing appropriate remedies, however, excluding disciplinary
sanction, while the appeal Is pending.

As to all appeals, the Title IX Coordinator will notify the other party In writing when an appeal Is filed and implement appeal
procedures equally for both parties,



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDacs® PL
The dec¢islon-maker(s) for the appeal shall not be the same person{s) as the declslon-maker(s} that reached the
determination regarding rasponsibility or dismissal, the investigator(s), or the Title IX Coordinator(s). The decisfon-
maker(s) for the appeal shall not have a conflict of Interest or blas for or against Complalnants or Respondents generally or
an individual Complalnant{s) or Respondent(s) and shall recelve the same training as required of other decision-makers.

Both partles shall have a reasonable, equal opportunity to submit a wiltten statement In support of, or challenging, the
outcome.

The decision-makKer(s) for the appeal shall determine when each party’s written statement Is due.

The declslon-maker(s) for the appeal shall Issue a written decislon describing the result of the appeal and the rationale for
the result. The original deciston-makers(s’} determination of responsibility will stand If the appeal request Is not filed in a
timely manner or the appealing party fails to show clear error and/or a compelting rationale for overturning or modifying
the original determination. The written decision will be provided to the Title 1X Coordinator who will provide it
simultanecusly to both partles, The written decislon wilf be Issued within five (5) business days of when the parties’ written

statements were submitted.

The determination of responsibility associated with a Formal Complaint, including any recommendations for
remedies/discipiinary sanctions, becomes final when the time for filing an appeal has passed or, If an appeal Is filed, at the
point when the decision-maker(s} for the appeal’s decision is delivered to the Complainant and the Respondent.

Retallation

Neither the Board nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual for the
purpose of Interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title 1X, its Implementing regulations, or this policy, or because
the Individual made a report or comptaint, testified, assisted, or participated or refused to particlpate in any manner in an
Investigation, proceeding, or hearing under this pollcy. Intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination, including charges
against an individual for code of conduct violations that do not invelve sex discrimination or Sexual Harassment, but arlse
out of the same facts or circumstances as a report or complaint of sex discrimination, or a report or Formal Complaint of
Sexual Harassment, for the purpose of Interfering with any right or privilege secured by Title 1X, its Implementing
reguiations, or this policy, constitutes retaliation, Retaliation against a person for making a report of Sexual Harassment,

filing a Forma} Complaint, or participating In an investigation.
Comptaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the grievance process set farth above,

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does not constitute retallation
prohiblted under this poficy.

Charging an Individual with a code of conduct violation for making a materially false statement In bad faith in the course of
a grievance proceeding under this policy shall not censtitute retaliation, provided, however, that a determination regarding
responsiblilty, alone, Is not sufficient to conclude that any party made a materially false statement in bad faith.

Confidentiality

The District will keep confidential the identity of any Individual who has made a report or complaint of sex discrimination,
including any individual who has made a report or filed a Formal Complalnt of Sexual Harassment, any Complalnant, any
individual who has been reported to be the perpetrator of sex discrimination, any Respondent, and any witness, except as
may be permitted by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act ("FERPA"), 20 U,S.C. 12329, or FERPA regulations, 34
CFR part 99, or as required by faw, or to carry out the purposes of 34 CFR part 106, including the conduct of any
investigation, hearing, or judictal proceeding arising thereunder {i.e., the bistrict’s obligation to malntaln confldentiality
shall not Impalr or otherwise affect the Complainant’s and Respondent’s recelpt of the Information to which they are entitied

related to the Investigative record and determination of responsibility).,

Application of the First Amendment

The Board will construe and apply this policy consistant with the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, In no case will a
Respondent be found to have committed Sexual Harassment based on expressive conduct that is protected by the First

Amendment,
Training

The District’s Title IX Coordinator, along with any Investigator(s), deciston-maker(s), or person{s) deslgnated to facilltate an
Informal resolution process, must recelve training on:



10/9/24, 3:31 PM BoardDocs® PL

A. the definition of Sexual Harassment {as that term is used In this policy);

B, the scope of the District’s education program or activity;

C. how to conduct an Investigation and implement the grievance process appeals and informal resolution processes, as
applicable; and

D. how to serve impartially, including by avolding prejudgment of the facts at Issue, confiicts of interests, and blas.

Ail Board employees wili be traihed concerning their legal obligation to report Sexual Harassment to the Title IX
Coordinator. This training will include practical information about how to identify and report Sexual Harassment,

Recordkeaping

As part of Its response to alleged violatlons of this pollcy, the District shal create, and malntain for a period of seven (7)
calendar years, recards of any actions, including any supportive measures, taken in response to a report or Formal
Complaint of Sexual Harassment. In each instance, the District shall document the basis for its conclusion that its response
was not deliberately Indlfferent, and document that it has taken measures designed to restore or preserve equal access to
the District’s education program or activity. If the District does not provide a Complainant with supportive maasures, then
the District will document the reasons why such a response was not clearly unreasonable in light of the known
circumstances. The documentation of certaln bases or measures does not {imit the District in the future from providing

additional explanations or detailing additional measures taken.
The District shall maintain for a period of seven (7) calendar years the following records:

A, each Sexual Harassment Investigation including any determination regarding responsibiiity, any disciplinary
sanctions recommended and/or imposed on the Respandent(s), and any remedias provided to the Complainant(s)
designed to restore or preserve equal access to the District's education program or activity

B. any appeal and the result therefrom
C. any informal resolution and the result therefrom, and

D. all materfals used to train Title 1X Coordinators, investigators, declsion-makers, and any person who facilltates an
Informal resofution process.

The District wiil make its tralning materials publicly avallable on its website. If a person fs unable to access the District’s
website, the Title IX Coordinator will make the training matetlals avallable upon request for Inspection by members of the

public,
Qutside Appointments, Dual Appointments, and Delegatlons

The Board retains discretion to appolnt suitably qualified persons who are not Board employees to fulfill any function of the
Board under this policy, including, but not limited to, Title IX Coordinator, investigator, decision-maker, deciston-maker for

appeals, facilitator of Informal resolution processes, and advisor.

The Board also retains discretion to appoint two or more persons to jointly fulfill the role of Title IX Coordinator,
investigator, declsion-maker, declsion-maker for appeals, facilitator of informat resolution processes, and advisor.

The Superintendent may delegate functions assigned to a specific Board employee under this policy, including but not
limited to the functions assigned to the Title 1X Coordinator, Investigator, decision-maker, decislon-maker for appeals,
facilitator of informal resolutian processes, and advisor, to any sultably qualified individual and stch delegation may be

rescinded by the Superintendent at any time,

Discration in Application

The Board retains discretion to interpret and apply this policy in a manner that is not clearly unreasonable, even If the
Roard’s Interpretation or application differs from the interpretation of any specific Complainant and/or Respondent.

Desplte the Board's reasonable efforts to anticipate all eventualities in drafting this policy, It Is possible unanticipated or
extracrdinary circumstances may not be specifically or reasonably addressed by the express policy language, In which case
the Board retains discretion to respond to the unanticlpated or extraordinary clircumstance In a way that Is not clearly

unreasonable,



10/8/24, 3:31 PM BoardDacs® PL

The provisions of this policy are not contractual in nature, whether In thelr own right, or as part of any other express or
implled contract. Accordingly, the Board retalns discration to revise this policy at any time, and for any reason. The Board
may apply policy revisions to an actlve case provided that dolng so is not clearly unreasonable,

© Neola 2024282%

Legal 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq,, Title 1X of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX)

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Impravement Act
of 2004 (IDEIA)

42 11,5,C, 2008c et seq,, Title IV of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq,

42 U.S.C, 2000e et seq.

42 {J.5.C. 1983

34 C.FR, Part 106

OCR's Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance (2001)

20 U,5.C, 1092(F){6)(AXW)

34 U.8.C. 12291{a){10)

34 U.S.C. 12291(a)(8)

34 U.S.C, 12291(a)(30)



